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About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries are one of the world’s largest circular knitted fabric
manufacturers, providing vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing. In addition
to its core business of manufacturing and sale of knitted fabric which generates majority of the total revenue, the
Group’s product range also includes dyed yarns, sewing threads and garments. As a major knitted fabric supplier to
garment manufacturers in over 40 countries that supply apparel products including sportswear, casual wear, sleep
wear and inner wear to many internationally renowned retailers and brands, Fountain Set's worldwide sales reached
HK$6.94 billion (US$892 million) in the financial year 2013.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings)
Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative

offices in 5 countries and a global staff force of approximately 12,800.

Since June 2012, Chinatex Corporation has become the largest shareholder of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited.
Chinatex is under direct administration of the State-Owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the

State Council of the PRC and is one of the 500 largest enterprises in the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set, please visit www.fshl.com

To learn more about Chinatex, please visit www.chinatex.com
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# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.
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BB RETRHE

For the
12 months ended
31 December 2013

For the
16 months ended
31 December 2012

HZ2013F BZ20126F
12A31H E12/8 A 12A31H L1618 A
HK$Mil G B#E T HK$MIl & &% T
Operating Results e
Revenue EER 6,942.8 9,167.1
Financial Performance BBRER
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of the Company ADRABEAEERF,/ (BE) 91.3 (324.2)
Profit/(Loss) margin B/ (BE) % 1.3% (3.5%)
Earnings/(Loss) per share (HK cents) BREMN,/ (BB) (BI)
- Basic -EX 7.6 (33.5)
- Diluted —§E 7.6 (33.5)
Dividends i3]
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BRERF 2 RBEREER)
Per share (HK cents) ik GBI 2.0 Nil
Dividend payout ratio B E 26.3% NATER

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

RW2013F12A31H R2012412A31H
HK$Mil B B#& HK$MI & &% T
Financial Position at Year/Period End REE/HBLERZHBRR
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BEERTZAEREER)
Net current assets MEEEFE 1,993.2 1,464.4
Total assets BERE 6,132.6 6,020.1
Non-current bank borrowings FRBRTEE 516.6 240.6
Total bank borrowings BRITEE 1,355.5 1,483.1
Net bank borrowings FITEEFE 205.6 265.0
Total liabilities BEAE 2,812.9 2,773.7
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEFE(BTL) 2.59 2.50
Capital expenditure BARY 132.2 103.0
Financial Statistics g Tk
Return on equity (%) BERRE (BMHL) 3.1% (10.6%)
Consolidated tangible net worth SAFENEE 2,920.5 2,870.7
Consolidated total bank debt to consolidated tangible 4R A #R1TE ELHEA
net worth FERAELD 0.5 0.5
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated HEENTERHTNBE RS
interest expense FE X h 10.3 12
Consolidated current assets to consolidated BARBEEHEEREY
current liabilities BRELA 1.9 16
Inventory turnover period (days) FERA®H(A) 97 78
Trade and bills receivable turnover period (days) EEREBRENGERES (R) 67 67
Trade and bills payable turnover period (days) EELZERAFEREE (B) 59 46
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS & K #ist =
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Note: In August 2012, the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 August to 31 December. Hence the figures for
the period ended 31 December 2012 cover the 16 months period from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY Bf ¥ # &

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT e W E R
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended 16 months ended year ended
31 August 31 August 31 August 31 December 31 December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
BZ2009F BZ2010F BEN11F BE012F HEZ2013F

8A3IALERE 8A3IALERE 8A3IHILFE  12A31RIEI6MEA 12A31ALEE
HK$000 /87 HK$000 /87 HK$000 T8 HK$000 T8~ HK$'000 T

Revenue RET 5,451,492 6,148,949 7,593,839 9,167,089 6,942,807
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEpEH/ (BE) 8,280 250,095 343,191 (333,457) 86,398
Income tax FER (12,475) (6,516) (103473) (4,304) 14,290
Profit/(loss) for the year/period 2EE/SHEH/ (BE) (4,195) 243,579 239,718 (337,761) 100,688
Attributable to: JEf -
Owners of the Company KRREEA (48,928) 223,798 210,886 (324,167) 91,304
Non-controlling interests RS 44733 19,781 28,332 (13,594) 9,384

(4,195) 243579 239,718 (337,761) 100,688
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY B ##f &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION SEMBARRE
At At At At At
31 August 2009 31 August 2010 31 August 2011 31 December 2012 = 31 December 2013
12009%8 A31H 1201068 A31H 201168 A31E  M2012412A8318  R2013%12A31A
HK$000 F/5 T HK$000 F/5 T HK$000 F/5 T HK$000 F/5 T HK$'000 F& 75
(restated) (& EF)  (restated) (ZE7F])
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,620,034 2,479,434 2,300,207 2,023,461 1,867,767
Current assets MHEE 3,434,138 4,386,539 4,308,695 3,996,634 4,264,878
Current liabilities TBaRE 1,865,990 2,974.955 2,699,104 2,532,214 2,271,639
Net current assets THEETE 1,568,148 1,411,584 1,609,591 1,464,420 1,993,239
Total assets less current liabilities BEBERRDARE 4188232 3,891,018 3,909,798 3,487,831 3,861,006
Non-current liabilities FREaE 1,639,475 1,077,923 871,572 308,101 582,359
Net assets EEFE 2,548,757 2,813,095 3,038,226 3,179,780 3,278,647
Capital and reserves EARGE
Share capital B 158,802 158,802 158,802 240,609 240,609
Reserves [ 2,235,079 2,474 523 2,679,224 2,769,113 2,876,611
Equity attributable to owners RRAEEA
of the Company Bl 2,393,881 2,633,325 2,838,026 3,009,722 3,117,220
Non-controlling interests FERER 154,876 179,770 200,200 170,058 161,427
Total equity EniE 2,548,757 2,813,095 3,038,226 3,179,780 3,278,647
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS #1E & &

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

BEEHBERLA
Name of Awards/Certifications £%18/:2 75 4 7 Issued by 2% H Bz

1 Environmental Management System Certification*® Beijing NGV Certification Centre Limited
BREERAAIZZE IIRBEBHAREROLER QA

~GB/T24001-2004 1SO014001:2004

2 Outstanding Export Enterprise of Yancheng City* People’'s Government of Yancheng
B TES L A By A R
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Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IREEESABER QT
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l EEHARDANLRE
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Name of Awards/Certifications 2£78/:2 & % 18 Issued by 2% H B8 {7

3 2012 Outstanding Enterprise of
Production Safety*
NWI2FELEERETESRE

4 Wuxi Outstanding Enterprise of Employment*
EmE TSR

5 2012 ToplOO Star Enterprise*
2012 EARAERE

6 Excellent Laboratory of China
Knitting Industry*
HREHBITEEESERE

7 Jiangyin Fuhui Textile Institute”
VL e i 4 B 47 8B 9K P

8 2012 Jiangsu Province Environmental Protection —
Environmental Integrity Green Enterprise*

012F THEBHSRABRRERE ZRFRBEREEE

Jiangyin Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone
Management Committee*
AIRENMBNEXAEREELZE S

People’s Government of Wuxi

Jiangyin Municipal Committee of the Communist
Party of China, People’s Government of Jiangyin

RETRME TR ™mARBA

China Knitting Industry Association

MEEHETEDHES

Jiangyin Science and Technology Board*
Lk R 2R B

Environmental Protection Department of Jiangsu
Province

TE A RIRRER
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Issued by
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12

13

Environmental Management System Certification
Iﬁiﬁ B I@%‘/\wun;um%
~GB/T24001-2004 1S014001:2004 Standard

Quality Management System Certification
/\Eﬁii%/%ﬂ/b mu:& E
~GB/T19001-2008 1SO9001:2008 Standard

Oeko-Tex Standard 100

Qutstanding Enterprise of Energy Conservation in
Shatian Town 2012*
20124F &) MRS e TIE SR By

2012 Guangdong Province Environmental Protection —
Environmental Integrity Green Enterprise*

2012FF ERE EH S RRR AR E 2 RIRFEARE R R

China Great Wall Quality Assurance Centre

RIWE BRSO

China Great Wall Quality Assurance Centre
RWME ERAF L

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Dongguan Shatian Energy Committee Office*

REMY AEEH LR THEREPNEARIE

Department of Environmental Protection of
Guangdong Province

BERERERER
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS #2718 ) 78 &

=z= qIMO

CERTIFICATE

Mill Qualification Program (MQFP)
Achievement Award
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Name of Awards/Certifications 2218/32 & 4 &

Issued by 2 H B {1

14  Mill Qualification Program
Achievement Award

15 DuPont Teflon fabric protector Preferred Mill
It B Teflon 4y 38 1} 5k & 328 5 2F 0

16 Organic Content Standard (OCS)
EREREE

17 Global Organic Textile Standard (GOTS) 3.0
3.0hR 2 FRE 4 & i IR 4

18 Low Carbon Manufacturing Programme (LCMP) Gold Label
ERMES SRR

Intertek Sustainability Solutions
DuPont
EEMFBA A

Institute for Marketecology (IMO)
¥ A RE T ST SR AR
Institute for Marketecology (IMO)
¥ = A RE T S TSR AT

WWF
HRERZEE

* English names are only translation of the official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese name shall prevail.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Directors of the Company (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the Group for
the financial year of 2013, and to provide you the overview of the Group’s

strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded revenue
of HK$6,942,807,000 (for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012:
HK$9,167,089,000) and attributable profit for the year of HK$91,304,000
(for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012: loss of HK$324,167,000).

Our overall financial performance has turned around.

European and the U.S. economy have shown signs of steady growth in
2013, but the fundamentals were not solid. In the fourth quarter, the U.S.
consumer confidence index has fallen back to the level of the first quarter
due to the debt issue and this resulted in the slowdown of the tapering pace
of Quantitative Easing. Meanwhile, in order to stabilize economic growth, the
Chinese government has implemented various reform measures as modest
stimulus for the market, and China economy has gradually become stable
and within its growth target. For the textile and apparel market, although
consumer demand for textile and apparel products was recovering gradually,
some retailers were still focusing on clearing inventory and enhancing
its profitability, as such, the overall business environment remained

challenging.

In 2013, with the stable progress of the structural adjustment as well as the
transformation and upgrading of the printing and dyeing industry, the overall
business environment of the printing and dyeing industry remained relatively
stable. It was slow growth in production in the first three quarters, but
starting from the fourth quarter, some of the major provinces began to turn
the negative growth since 2012 around with a higher growth rate compared
with the same period in 2012. The incremental growth of profitability for
the first and second quarter has decreased slightly, but started to achieve
stable growth from the third quarter, resulted in a decrease in losses for
many corporates, and a slight increase in the ratio of profit to cost and
sales margin in the second half of the year. In addition, although the overall
industry was still growing at slow speed, some of the industry leaders have

already achieved apparent growth.
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Given the above-said background, Fountain Set Group has grown its
business with innovation and implemented sophisticated management
to enhance efficiency, to ensure stringent control over costs as well as
to improve gross margin; and at the same time focused on adjusting our
product structure and kept on strengthening product positioning. As such,
we can ensure that various business activities can be carried out effectively.
Under the leadership of the Board and our management, all of our staff
stood together with one heart, and adhered to our general direction of “To
stabilize operation; To adjust our structure; To enhance efficiency”, which
made our annual operating objectives being accomplished and achieved a

turnaround in our annual results.

OUTLOOK

As we step into 2014, although there are more clear signs for recovery,
the outlook of global economy is still uncertain, especially when the
economies of some European countries shown signs of decline recently,
major economic data of European countries and the U.S. may not be as
expected. Growth of emerging economies may also slow down. In China,
as the government will continue its structural adjustment program and
maintain stable growth, coupled with the continued fluctuation of Renminbi,
its growth may slow down significantly. As the Chinese government has been
placing more importance on environmental protection and raising the salary
guideline for corporates, production costs of corporates shall be inevitably
increased. Besides, China’s policy of selling its cotton reserve will also bring

along various effects to textile corporates.

In 2014, the Group will continue to deepen its reform measures, and
will strengthen research and development of new products according to
consumer market changes and customer needs, as well as securing actual
orders. Meanwhile, the Group will help various production companies to
position their products and deliver quality products and customer services.
The Group will also implement stringent control over the increase of
controllable costs, and make frequent review on the movement of all kind
of expenses, so as to effectively reduce our production costs. Furthermore,
we will arrange our fund in an orderly manner to upgrade our equipment,
with an aim to reduce energy consumption. In the meantime, as a printing
and dyeing corporate, we will always continue make effect in environmental
protection, strictly follow the emission standard, as well as investing in
equipment upgrade. We will continue to look into the strategy for the long
term growth of the Group, so as to lay down a solid foundation for us to

become a top profit-making company in the industry as soon as possible.
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We expect 2014 to be a difficult year, as such, we need to be determined
and take challenges with courage. Fountain Set Group has more than 40
years of solid foundation in the textile industry. We believe that all of our
staff will work hard to follow the direction and objectives established by the
Board, and stick together with one heart to overcome all challenges and to
implement the working plan set by the Board. With our spirit of “diligence,
frugality, sincerity, and integrity”, our staff will keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts. We are confident

in the future of Fountain Set Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
of our customers, suppliers, bankers and other partners for their continuing
trust and support, and also to the Group’s management and all of our loyal

and dedicated employees.

| would also like to express my deepest appreciation to all shareholders for

their continuing support to us.

LI Lan

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

21 March 2014
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited has made several operational reforms
during this financial year, although the global economic growth continued
to be slow, operating environment remained challenging, the early results of

the transformation plan began to show real progress.

The Group’s overall financial performance was a successful turnaround
with a net profit for the 12 months ended 31 December 2013 as compared
to a net loss for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012. It was mainly
attributable to the improvement in operation efficiency through adopting
a series of measures by the Group to reduce operating and management
costs; together with a decline in international cotton prices resulting in
relatively stable costs of raw materials; and the increase in the Group's
operational efficiency gained by constantly optimizing the management

structure and operational processes.

As a knitted fabric manufacturer, our end-buyer customers consist of
renowned international and domestic brands to the major markets for the
U.S., Europe and China. The Group’s production capacity maintained at
about 25 million pounds of fabric dyeing per month which was diversified
among four fabric mills in both China and Sri Lanka. Currently, Jiangyin
mill, established in 2003, is the largest fabric production site of the Group,
accounts for approximately half of the Group’s total production capacity
while Dongguan mill produces value-added products with relatively smaller
volume. On the other hand, with the proximity advantage, Colombo mill
focuses servicing brands and retailers in Europe and our latest developed
fabric mill in Yancheng, which has commenced production since 2010,
specializes in developing differentiated products. Since land and supporting
arrangement have been reserved strategically at the initial stage, hence
Yancheng mill has the largest potential development. When market
environment allows, Yancheng mill is able to provide production capacity

increment for the Group’s fabric business.
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For the 12 months ended 31 December 2013, the Group has achieved
the following progresses in each key areas: 1) successfully optimized
the production allocation to improve the mill utilization; 2) upgraded
textile equipment to improve efficiency and reduce energy consumption,
to leverage the advantages of the whole value chain of knitting, dyeing,
and printing as well as rapid response feature; 3) continued to liquidate
part of the non-profitable companies and businesses, integrated the
garment business to reduce the labor cost of labor-intensive works and
our enterprise, and focused on the high value-added orders to ensure
sufficient orders and enhance the competitiveness, after the termination of
the yarn spinning business, winding up of textile machinery manufacturing
enterprise and disposition of the minority interests in a fabric mill in India
in the financial year of 2012; 4) successfully optimized the work allocation
among senior and middle employees at headquarters and production bases
and improved the management system and procedure so as to effectively
enhance the execution ability of the overall management; 5) the Group
achieved great success through the cost controlling methods, and with costs
effectively reduced, the Group can allocate funds to other reasonable use;
and 6) successfully deepen the methods of energy savings and emission
reduction so that the overall energy consumption of the production mills

declined about 10% than that of 2012.

Customers

As a fabric manufacturer, the Group’s direct customers are garment factories
as actual business transaction is created. At the same time, the Group has
also developed a long-lasting and strong cohesiveness relationship with the
retailers and brand owners since our establishment back in 1969. These
so called “end-buyer” customers are commonly the ones to dictate, select
and negotiate fabric contents, volume and price directly with the Group.
The Group is also committed in developing new and innovative fabric for
our customers with over four-decade of our expertise and craftsmanship
in the circular knitted fabric industry. Our end-buyer customers consist of

renowned international and domestic brands.
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Products

The Group has been actively developing and offering a wide range of

knitted fabric under a trademark of “fabric by Fountain Set™” which is a

consolidated brand name of our comprehensive knitted fabric. Our quality

and innovate products include the following:

1. Performance series: “UV-Protection”, “Anti-Mosquito”, “Nano water
and oil repellent”

2. Eco series: organic cotton, complete cotton (made by blending
combing noils and virgin fibers) and original bamboo

3. Moisture management series: our own brands “Invisi.dri™” (with

the ability of picking up moisture from the skin but without showing

“Comforton™”

any “water stain” marks on the fabric surface),

(utilizes the “push-and-pull” method to wick perspiration away),

Dr Dry® and “Sukool™” (powerful finishing provides superior

moisture management); use of patent technology of US Cotton Inc.,

interweaving design of waterproofed cotton and general cotton, as well

as “TransDry”, self developed cotton products with quick moisture
absorption capability

4.  Fresh series: our own brand “ActivFresh™ C, B and S” for odor

management and anti-microbial fabrics

Capital Investment

The Group is committed in continuous investing in infrastructure, machinery
and information systems according to the operation needs and future
development plan. With more than ten mills and factories within the Group,
regular infrastructure maintenance and machinery upgrade are necessary
to ensure continuous improvement in operations. The Group plans to
implement enterprise resource planning system SAP during 2014. It is
expected that the overall operational efficiency and productivity will be highly

improved.

Dividend

In view of the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of HK2 cents per share for
the year ended 31 December 2013. The total dividend for the year would be
HK2 cents per share as compared with Nil per share for the period ended

31 December 2012.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
With effect from 10 August 2012, the financial year end of Fountain Set

Bt 7% Bl BE

ERN2012F8A10R - BHEE (SE)BRA
B RFEABEAELNSASIRERALI2A
31H - WREENFEREERN2013FIAEL?
AHI2E A MM IS EE  MELEE R HIEE
Z PR R AE E2012412 A31 B (L16ME A M

(Holdings) Limited has been changed from 31 August to 31 December.
This annual report accounts for financial results of the Group from January
to December 2013, with a total of 12 months, compares with key operating
and financial indicators of the Group for the 16 months ended 31 December

2012. iz
The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended ~ AEEEHZE2013F12A31B FFEZTBEE R
31 December 2013 are set out below: B EEZ250T
For the For the
12 months ended 16 months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
HZE2013%F B ZE2012%F
12A31H 11218 A 128318 (F161E A
Income Statement Items WEKRER
(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless (BR¥5RIGIERSNT B © 21T
otherwise stated) AT AESIR)
Revenue BER 6,942,807 9,167,089
Gross Profit EF 754,637 787,276
EBITDA SRR hn AT B R g 3 375,546 101,251
Profit/(Loss) for the year/period =EE/HPEERN,
(E18) 100,688 (337,761)
Profit/(Loss) attributable to PN/NSIE 2= DN S
owners of the Company &aBF,/ (BE) 91,304 (324,167)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) BREARAT (EE)
GEALD 7.6 (33.5)
Key Financial Ratios FTEMBLER
Profitability ratios B FIGEL HEFE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%) 10.9% 8.6%
EBITDA margin (%) BT E M 5 AR R (%) 5.4% 1.1%
Expenses as a % of revenue B R F
Distribution and selling expenses HDEKEEER 2.6% 3.2%
Administrative expenses THER 7.5% 9.8%
Finance costs A& AR 0.5% 1.0%
Asset efficiency BEME
Inventory turnover period (days) FERESR(H) 97 78
Trade and bills receivables turnover period BEREREWHIE
(days) A (R) 67 67
Trade and bills payables turnover period BENRERENFIE
(days) AEH(R) 59 46




EEEE(RE)FARSE]

20135 5

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &3 g5y Ed 5 T

At 31 December At 31 December
2013 2012
R2013F12831H 2012412 A31H

Asset ratios BERE

Current ratio IS 1.9 16

Net debt/EBITDA ratio FER BRITEEHENFEER 0.5 26
Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to
HK$6,942,807,000 (16 months in 2012: HK$9,167,089,000).

Revenue by business segments

In current year, the Group’s core business, production and sales of dyed
fabrics, sewing threads and yarns, generated revenue of HK$5,976,440,000
(16 months in 2012: HK$7,977,076,000), accounted for 86.1%
(2012: 87.0%). Revenue from production and sales of garments was
HK$966,367,000 (16 months in 2012: HK$1,190,013,000), accounted for
13.9% (2012: 13.0%) of the Group’s total revenue.

=
E@EEE2013F12A31IB L FENLE %
%H3#£6,942,807,000/8 7T (2012F 1618 A &
9,167,089,000/8 7T )

BEEETELEFRFERTE

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics,
Sewing Threads and Yarns

SLERHE RN - BAGNY

Production and Sales of Garments

s R HEKK

R2013FHEE SEZOEB - HEREES
B0 AR K B & 3 FEE 55,976,440,00078
7L (201241618 A A7,977,076,000/8 7T) - 15 &
[ & X A EH86.1% (2012 : 87.0% ) « BiE &
S5 B TX /Y & 3250 5966,367,00075 7T (20124F16
18 B 51,190,013,000/ 7T) 1 £ ML ¥ A
#913.9% (2012 : 13.0% ) °
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Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2013, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to HK$6,188,170,000 (16 months in 2012: HK$8,379,813,000)
and overall gross profit margin was 10.9% (2012: 8.6%).

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group's overall distribution and
selling costs approximately amounted to HK$180,542,000 (16 months in
2012: HK$294,682,000), accounted for 2.6% (2012: 3.2%) of the Group’s

total revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses approximately amounted to HK$518,103,000 (16 months in 2012:
HK$895,285,000), accounted for 7.5% (2012: 9.8%) of the Group’s total

revenue.

Earning before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization
(EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s EBITDA approximately
amounted to HK$375,546,000 (16 months in 2012: HK$101,251,000) and
the EBITDA margin was 5.4% (2012: 1.1%)

Finance Cost

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s finance costs
approximately amounted to HK$36,419,000 (16 months in 2012:
HK$87,288,000), represented 0.5% (2012: 1.0%) of the Group’s total

revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$132,227,000 (16 months in 2012: HK$102,996,000) in additions of
property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid lease
payments. The Group expects the capital expenditure for the next financial
year will be approximately HK$180,000,000.

3 & AR K E A
EEEHE2013F12A31B I FE 2 EEBHE
X 7N 56,188,170,000/8 7t (20124 1618 A &
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Income Tax Credit/Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2013, income tax credit of the Group
approximately amounted to HK$14,290,000 (16 months in 2012: expenses
of HK$4,304,000).

Profit/(Loss) for the year/period

For the year ended 31 December 2013 profit for the year was
HK$100,688,000 (16 months in 2012: Loss HK$337,761,000) and profit
margin was 1.5% (2012: loss margin 3.7%).

Inventory

The Group’s inventory approximately amounted to HK$1,636,772,000
(2012: HK$1,340,553,000) as of 31 December 2013. The inventory
turnover period was 97 days, an increase of 19 days compared with that of

2012.

Trade and Bills Receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade and bills
receivables amounted to HK$1,265,935,000 (2012: HK$1,259,918,000).
Trade and bills receivables turnover period was 67 days, which is similar to

that of 2012.

Trade and Bills Payables

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade and bills payables
amounted to HK$1,001,781,000 (2012: HK$783,712,000). Trade and bills
payables turnover period was 59 days, an increase of 13 days compared to

that of 2012.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s total assets amounted to approximately

HK$6,132,645,000 (2012: 6,020,095,000).

position were as follows:

The key figures of financial

ﬁimu@] E& ﬁﬁkﬁ/ﬁ

M2013%F12AH318 -

SEEEREYD

6,132,645,000/% 7T (2012 : 6,020,095,000/%&
TT) e MR EZERT

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

7A2013F12HA31H R2012412 A31H

HK$'000 F&7T HK$'000 T r

Non-current assets EmBEE 1,867,767 2,023,461
Current assets MENEE 4,264,878 3,996,634
Total assets EERE 6,132,645 6,020,095
Current liabilities MENEE 2,271,639 2,532,214
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 582,359 308,101
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R = 161,427 170,058
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZANA @A A EBIGER 3,117,220 3,009,722
Total liabilities and equity BERERGE 6,132,645 6,020,095

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation

by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank

borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank

borrowings.
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At 31 December 2013, the principal financial covenant figure/ratios

n—.l- E‘ﬂﬂ *ﬁ'

M2013F12A318  TEWNHHBROEIE LR

(according to the banks’ definitions) were as follows: (RBRITHER)W T :
At 31 December 2013 | At 31 December 2012
A2013%F12HA31H 2012412 A31H
Consolidated tangible net worth BEFBEMEE HK$2,920,523,000 HK$2,870,705,000
Consolidated total bank debt to AERIRITTEEY
consolidated tangible net worth ReEFEREELD 0.5 0.5
Consolidated EBITDA to A BB EHERTFE
consolidated interest expense HiRAF B Wl 10.3 1.2
Consolidated current assets to A REBEEY
consolidated current liabilities A mBBELA 1.9 1.6
Consolidated capital expenditure HAEEARAX HK$132,227,000 HK$102,996,000

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had complied with all financial
covenant figure/ratios. As at 31 December 2012, the Group was in breach
of the Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest expense ratio and
obtained waiver letters from relevant banks not to demand for immediate

repayment of bank loans.

The Group follows stringent and prudent risk management policy to manage
foreign exchange and interest rate risks. The sales and the purchase of raw
materials of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US
dollars and RMB. Since the Group mainly produces in China thus is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB exposure. In order to mitigate this
type of risk, the Group has entered into forward contracts to hedge against

certain of its exposure to reduce currency risk.

In addition, bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and US dollars, interests are mainly charged on a floating rate basis.
Due to the slow recovery of the global economy in this year, it is expected
that interest rates will remain at the current level in the coming year. The
Group will continue monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the market and

arrange appropriate financial instruments to minimize the interest rate risk.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had approximately 12,800 full time
employees (2012: 12,500). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the performance of individual employee and on the basis of the salary
trends in various regions, and are reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group’s
profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary bonus to its
employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees, and
also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing education
so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to production, selling
and management.

Outlook

The Group remains cautious of the global macro-economic environment
in 2014. Nevertheless, the Board and the management believe that the
Group's strategies and the above initiatives are rational and on the right
tracks thus maintain a relatively optimistic outlook on business for the longer
term. Going forward, the Group commits to enhancing our operational
efficiency through a series of proactive measures to achieve sustainable and
financially stable corporate development.

BERMEBE
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the year from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013, the Company has consistently adopted
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing

Rules as guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised nine members, consisting
of four Executive Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The number of Independent Non-
Executive Directors represents one-third of the Board as required by
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profile of all Directors are set out on
pages 37 to 41. The relationship among members of the Board (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships, if any)

are also disclosed.

All Directors entered into letters of appointment or service contracts with the
Company, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of
the Company. Article 102(A) of the articles of association of the Company
provides that at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest one-third or any other number subject to such manner
of rotation as may be required by the Listing Rules or other codes, rules,
and regulations prescribed from time to time by the applicable regulatory
authority, shall retire from office. Article 93 of the articles of association
of the Company also provides that any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election, but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors

who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the business operations of the Group in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) by formulating strategic
directions and monitoring the financial and management performance of the

Group.
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The overall management of the Group’s business was vested in the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business to the executive management team, and focused its attention on
matters affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the
Shareholders. The executive management team assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule was
formulated to identify specific matters that shall be reserved to the Board
and those delegated to the management. The Board had given clear
directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to the
Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval
of the Shareholders in accordance with the articles of association of the

Company, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Five Board meetings were held and regular Board meetings were held at
approximately quarterly interval during the year ended 31 December 2013
(the “Year”). Each of the Directors has actively participated in each meeting
in person, via telephone or videoconferencing. The Board consents were

given by-vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of the 2013 regular Board meetings were determined in 2012 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14
days before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow

Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors accessed to the services of the Company Secretary who
regularly updated the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
Director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of respective duties, might take
independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to three other
committees. Minutes of Board meetings were taken by the Company
Secretary and, together with any supporting documents, were available to all
Directors. Draft and final versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors

for their comment and record respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has determined to be
material, the individual Director declared respective interest and was
required to abstain from voting in which he/she or any of his/her associates
have material interest and that he/she shall not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. The matter was considered at a Board
meeting attended by Independent Non-Executive Directors who had no

material interest in the transaction.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meetings

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings, the

Audit Committee meetings, the Remuneration Committee meetings, the

Nomination Committee meetings and the general meetings are set out in the

following table:
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Meetings Attended/Eligible to attend for the year ended 31 December 2013

REZ2013512831ALEECERRE AEREEZCE

Annual  Extraordinary
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
ESfz EEg ERZER FMZEe® E¥Z5e RREFAE RREAAR
Executive Directors HiTEZE
Madam LI Lan FEutL b5/ - - 3/3 11 171
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor ERTEE 55 - - - int il
Mr. GONG Zhengyi BELE b5/ - 4/4 - 11 171
Mr. ZHAO Yao BRLE 3/5 - - - 01 171
Non-executive Directors: HHTEE:
Dr. YEN Gordon BEHEL 5/5 - - - 1 1
Mr. Zhang Chong RESE 5/5 44 - - int 11
Independent non-executive Directors: BV AEHTEE:
Mr. NG Kwok Tung HEREE b5/ 4/4 4/4 - 11 171
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, s8s, 7 Bk %E -
REHEE X TP+ 5/ 4/4 - 3/3 171 171
Mr. YANG Shibin BELAE 4/5 - 3/4 213 171 171
Date of the meetings 208 25/1/2013 16/1/2013 25/1/2013 20/3/2013 31/5/2013 25/1/2013
26/3/2013 20/3/2013 20/3/2013 31/5/2013
31/5/2013 91712013 31/5/2013 23/8/2013
23/8/2013 19/8/2013 19/8/2013
8/11/2013
Training of Directors Sk

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the

duties and responsibilities as a Director, the relevant laws, rules and

regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of interest and

business of the Group and such induction materials will also be provided to

newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
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All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest

developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable

regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness

of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision

A.6.5 of the Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the Year, all Directors

have participated in continuous professional development by attending

seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the following topics to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of

training to the Company:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors
Madam LI Lan

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor
Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Non-executive Directors
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. Zhang Chong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony,
SBS, JP
Mr. YANG Shibin

Note:
(a)  corporate governance
(b)  regulatory

(c)  finance, business operation/management

Directors’ Insurance

Topics of Training covered (Note)

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of

the legal action against the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEQ”)

During the year under review, the Company had compiled with all applicable
code provisions of the Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
However, with effect from 21 March 2014, the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company, Madam Li Lan, takes up the position of Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, details of which were set out in the
announcement dated 21 March 2014. This deviates from Code Provision A.
2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which stipulates that the
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive officer should
be divided. However, having considered the current status of the Group,
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the same
person enables the Group to more efficiently plan its overall strategy and
achieve the budgeted target. The Board believes that the balance of power
and authority under this arrangement is adequately ensured by the Board
which comprises experienced, professional and high caliber individuals with

sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

All the existing Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors, were appointed for a specific term. Each of the Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings of the

Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board considered that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent and have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise in

accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors had complied with the required standards set

out in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties for
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices

n (i) corporate governance and (ii) compliance with legal and regulations
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and management; and (c)
reviewing the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report).

Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the Year, the Company has applied the principles of, and

complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, each with a specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference
have been approved and reviewed by the Board and were updated with
reference to the Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each
of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee have been posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures
and arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The
respective committee secretary took full minutes of the meetings of these
committees and the work of these committees was reported to the Board

regularly.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors, 2) to review and
approve the Company’s remuneration policy and 3) to review and approve
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives for the Board for approval. The Company’s
remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of remuneration in
accordance with current market conditions to attract and motivate the

Directors and staff for their contribution.
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The Remuneration Committee presently comprises one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. GONG Zhengyi,
Mr. YANG Shibin and Mr. NG Kwok Tung, and is chaired by Mr. YANG
Shibin. The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year
and details of attendance are shown in the table on page 27. A summary
of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is set out as

follows:

o made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and

assessed their performance;

o reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration proposals

with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and

o ensured that no director or any of respective associates is involved in

deciding their respective remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and the Executive Committee at least annually, 2) to
identify and recommend suitably qualified candidates as new director(s)
or to fill Board vacancies as they arise and to assess candidates as new
member(s) of the Executive Committee or to fill Committee vacancies as they

arises, for the approval of the Board.

Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether the
relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills and knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural
background and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the
policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”) as adopted by the Board during

the year and summarised as follows:

Purpose

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable

and balanced development of the Company.
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Measurable Objectives AstE BE

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of HBEMEETEERBIE RV ZTLEBEAE

diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualification, regional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge and other experience of Directors. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected

candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Review

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the Policy and

recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

The Nomination Committee presently comprises one Executive Director
and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Madam LI Lan, Mr.
CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, $8S, JP and Mr. YANG Shibin and is chaired by
Madam LI Lan.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year and details
of attendance are shown in the table on page 27. A summary of the work of

the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follow:

° made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and assess independence of Independent

Non-Executive Directors;

° reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

° reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed
the balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the

appointment of new directors to the Board. The Committee will first consider

necessary changes in respect of the structure, size and diversity of the

Board, identify suitably qualified candidates by considering their professional

knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal

skills and time commitments, and makes recommendations to the Board
for decision. The nomination criteria also include the nominee’s skills and

experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s business.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Company’s financial reporting process and internal controls. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee is to consider the appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor the integrity of the Group’s
financial statements with focus on the changes in accounting policies and
practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit adjustments, going
concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to review the

Group’s financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee presently comprises one Non-Executive Director and
two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Chong, Mr.
NG Kwok Tung and Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP and is chaired by
Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year and details of
attendance are shown in the table on page 27. A summary of the work of the

Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o provided recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
reappointment of external auditors, and approved the audit fee and
terms of engagement of the external auditors;

° reviewed and monitored external auditors’ independence and

objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards, and discussed with external auditors before
audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations;

. reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report,
and reviewed significant financial reporting judgments contained in
them;

. reviewed financial controls, internal controls and risk management

systems;
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e discussed the internal control system with management to ensure o HIEIEBE:TmASEIERLS WHREEEE

that the management had performed its duty to achieve an effective ERTBEELAEINNBELE RS - G
internal control system. Such discussion included the adequacy of MMy EERBE S EER BT 2E

j

KR BIRENEHEERERR

resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes

and budget of accounting and financial reporting function;

e  ensured co-ordination between internal and external auditors, and e  FERAEBAINLAZEENH TIESTIRE &

ensured that internal audit function was adequately resourced and had RN EZDEEARBNETE EHWER
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and monitored EBE - WHBBEERMA A R RER
its effectiveness; WEPEAZ I AL 89 B B

e reviewed financial and accounting policies and practices; and e REVEREIAERRERES: X

e reviewed external auditors’ management letter, any material queries o % B0 SNIEAZ BREN BB IR B M B AX B N A BA K

raised by auditors to management regarding the accounting records, H ZEBMR et VKRB HEER
financial accounts or systems of control and management’s response. mMERERONEMNEARAREEERN
[5] fE o
AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION REEME

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees paid/payable to #H E2013F 128318 It F[E @ siEF M IEFTAR
BDO Limited, in respect of audit and non-audit services amounted to Bt /BN FEB I EEZEHMEEMEIR
approximately HK$3,626,000 and HK$436,000 respectively. NAElZE RS BI# A3,626,0007 7T 5&436,00078

IT ©

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR EE=ERXEMYBMBHRRNE(T
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial BEEEHNBREAREAATMEBRERNEE -ES
statements of the Company. The Directors were not aware of any material I NEIZE(E(A] A B Al se ¥ AN &2 @R b @ B e 4 /8
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant &&ZENBEXREARMZ EHRBERZERE
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The external ~ ATEAEARZ - SMNEZ AT R EMEBRE T
auditors’ statement about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages Ry BRE 51| R 553 54 8 ©

53 and 54.

INTERNAL CONTROLS A B EE 4

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal controls and ZEE&EA & ANEE 2 NEBESIEHIE st £
for reviewing its effectiveness and convening meetings regularly to discuss X R EH B €= - swbt s L& MEMREIEE

financial, operational and risk management control. TEH-
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below
is a summary of how the Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general

meeting (the “EGM”) and putting forward proposals at general meetings.

Convening an EGM

Pursuant to Sections 566-569 of the new Companies Ordinance (Cap 622
of the laws of Hong Kong), shareholder(s) holding at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote a general meetings,
may by written request authenticated by the shareholder making it and sent

to the Company, to require the Directors to call a meeting.

The written request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (ii) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be

moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement and such meeting must be held

within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

If the written request received by the Company identify a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the notice
of the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business that may
be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution of which notice has been
included in such notice of meeting. If the resolution to be proposed as a
special resolution, the Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting,
the text of the resolution and specifies the intention to propose the resolution

as a special resolution.

If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the written request
mentioned above, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,

may themselves call a general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (ii) in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the

Directors.
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The business that may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution of Al EZME RS FEENEZR BECHIAKRE
which notice has been included in the notice of meeting. BARIANA RS -

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must

be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Section 580 of the new Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 of
laws of Hong Kong), a Shareholder may request the Company to circulate a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned
in any proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with in any general

meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a written request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at
the meeting; or (ii) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on

a proposed resolution at the meeting.

The written request must identify the statement to be circulated,
authenticated by the person(s) making it, and received by the Company at
least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The expenses of circulating such
statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s) who requested the circulation
of the statement unless the Company resolves otherwise or (i) the meeting
to which the requests related is an annual general meeting of the Company;
and (ii) requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement
are received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement

at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings
to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other
Shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations
Representative of the Company whose contact details are shown under

“Shareholder Information” of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional documents

during the Year.
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Executive Director

Madam LI Lan

Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of Nomination Committee

Aged 59, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board, an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 6 June 2012.
Madam LI has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company
since 21 March 2014. Madam LI has been the Deputy General Manager
of Chinatex Corporation* (4 Bl # %7 & B ‘X &) (“Chinatex”). Madam
LI has almost 31 years of experience in the textile industry. She joined
the predecessor of Chinatex, China National Textiles Import and Export
Corporation* (# B %5 4% & & £ 0 422 @) (“General Corporation”) in
1983 and previously held positions as Deputy General Manager of General
Corporation, General Manager of Chinatex Knitwear and Manufactured
Goods Import and Export Corporation* (#1812 E45#EH A7), and
Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Cotton and Yarn Import and Export
Corporation* (R &40 A2 F]) . Madam LI graduated with a Bachelor
degree in Economics, major in French from the Faculty of French Literature,
Beijing Foreign Trade College (currently known as University of International
Business and Economics), China in 1983. Madam LI is currently a council
member of the 2nd annual China’s Association of Economy and Trade
Across Taiwan Straits.

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Vice-Chairman of the Board

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 48, joined the Group in 2002 as General Manager of the garment
business and became an Executive Director in 2004. He was promoted to
Executive Director and Group General Manager in 2009 and appointed as
Group Managing Director in May 2011. Mr. HA has been appointed as Vice-
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company in June
2012. He has ceased to act as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since
21 March 2014. He serves as an Assistant Chairman of the Hong Kong
Jiangyin Trade Association; a Director of the Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Limited; a Director of HK Wuxi Trade Association; a Founding
Member of the Hong Kong Professionals & Senior Executives Association
and a Member of Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. He has been
accredited as Honorary Citizen of Jiangmen City in the PRC; and was also
awarded the “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong” from the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries in 2010. He possesses a degree in Production
Engineering from Coventry University, UK. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA
has over 12 years of operations and management experience in the garment
trading and manufacturing industry. Mr. HA is the brother-in-law of Dr. YEN
Gordon.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 59, was appointed as an Executive Director and the member of the
Remuneration Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. GONG is currently the
General Manager of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited (R 47 (&%) 5 8%
BFR/AF]), a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. GONG has almost 29 years of
experience in the textile industry. He joined the predecessor of Chinatex, the
General Corporation, in 1984 and served as General Manager of Chinatex
Raw Materials International Trading Corporation, a subsidiary of Chinatex.
He also held position as General Manager of Chinatex (Australia) Wool
Company Proprietary Limited (R #75RAFIEFEALQF*), a subsidiary
of Chinatex. Mr. GONG graduated from Hebei University, China, Faculty of
Chinese Studies with a major in Chinese Literature in 1979. He obtained a
Certificate of Marketing and Management in Macquarie Graduate School
of Management, Australia in 1997. Mr. GONG also has obtained the

qualification of Foreign Trade Management Economist.

Mr. ZHAQO Yao

Executive Director

Aged 50, was appointed as Executive Director on 27 November 2012. Mr.
ZHAO is currently the Assistant President of Chinatex and the General
Manager of Asset Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and
General Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (FF %
EEREEEE AR AT, General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (B3I 4 AT EGRAF]), General Manager
of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.* (R4 EEBER A
7)), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng
Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.* (EFA E L EE#AE MR A 7F), Chairman of
Shanghai Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* ( F/EZEFE + KB AR
‘A 7A]), Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science & Technology
Co., Ltd.* ( HiFEENBRIEFARAT) . Mr. ZHAO has almost 26 years
of experience in the textile industry. He joined the predecessor of Chinatex,
the General Corporation in 1987 and held positions as Financial Manager
of Wah Gar Knitwear Factory Company Limited (BE/EFERZCEEE"),
General Manager of Suzhou Zhongfa Property Management Co., Ltd.* (#&k
MY EABR A F), Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (R &1¥1% 2 7)) , Vice President of Chudai Trading
Co., Ltd.* (BA&FR AKX &4t), a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO
graduated with a diploma in industrial accounting from Renmin University of
China in 1987.

* For identification purpose only
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Non-Executive Director

Dr. YEN Gordon

Non-Executive Director

Aged 44, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Group since 31 May
2013. He joined the Group in 1999 as the Assistant to Chairman and was
promoted to an Executive Director in 2004, then assumed the additional
role of Chief Financial Officer in 2012. He also serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director and the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of Hopewell Holdings Limited. Dr. Yen is a Member of the Henan Province
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
the People’s Republic of China; member of the Textile Advisory Board to
the Trade & Industry Department; Chairman of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Textiles; Director of GS1 HK Limited; and Director of the Hong
Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Manufacturing Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master degree
in Business Administration from McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate
degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. YEN has extensive experience in
the infrastructure sector. Dr. YEN is the brother-in-law of Mr. HA Kam On,

Victor.

Mr. ZHANG Chong

Non-executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Aged 43, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director and the member of
the Audit Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. ZHANG is currently the General
Manager of Investment Management Department of Chinatex. Mr. ZHANG
has over 18 years of experience in the textiles industry. He joined the
predecessor of Chinatex, the General Corporation in 1995 and held positions
as the General Manager of Strategy Department, Deputy General Manager
of Strategy Department and General Manager of Investment Department of
Chinatex, Deputy General Manager of Enterprise Management Department
of Chinatex, officer of Policy Research Office and assistant of Manager
Office of General Corporation. Mr. ZHANG graduated with a Master degree
in Business Management from the Faculty of Business Administration,
University of International Business and Economics, China in 1995. Mr.
ZHANG is currently studying an Executive Master in Business Administration
(EMBA) at China Europe International Business School (CEIBS).

FHITES

BERE LT
HHTEE
IREF445% - 8201345431 B HAEREBIE#IT
EF oAb 19995 I A S E A X FF BYIE - 102004
FEARBUTES RR20R2FRTEREHH
E°@W%A%u:é’%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ?Zé“HE%ﬁLh%%
YNEZEeXER -BELATEIBEERRE
TXBHEHBELTNZESEE BEHE
FﬁﬁﬂmE‘55\‘%%?5’&wﬁ%Tﬁ%@é%&é}%ﬁﬁ/)‘\‘lﬁ
CEE-WEAEEATEASLETRES LS
- NMEAXERASIRERELTEMNES
BIABIHEEELEM -EMALEEZ A
BETTEAREZRTERFLELR -BELA
BRTEEZIREK.

BEE
FHITEE
BERZEEHKS
BFLA35% N2012F6 A6HEZ T AFEHITES
RBEZZEE KB -RAEERTFHIBREEE
B - RAEERBBBISFN EHAITE
ZHEER R EEIQSFENMAFH AT — B A
B SRR B RPALIE  BEEERE
BB  RITEBHAKIE DB RIRLE
IARBRRBRFRER B RECENRNEENIE -
RICHEIE1995F REM P EEINEEE HKNED
XEER BSEESEITEM - REEBAIHE
RAPEEER TEEMRCEB)SEEEAETHE
8 R F2(EMBA) ©



I8 Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2013

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EER SR EEASEN

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Independent Non-executive Director

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 63, joined the Group’s Board in 1993 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Universe International Holdings
Limited until his retirement on 2 December 2013 and a Non-Executive
Director of Wah Ha Reality Company Limited, both of which are listed
companies in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and
a Licentiate in Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma
in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered
Professional Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Professional Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial

Planners.

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, sss, sp

Independent Non-executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 63, joined the Group’s Board in 2004 as an Independent Non-
Executive Director. Mr. CHOW has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for the past 34 years and is a partner in the law firm, Messrs. Peter
C. Wong, Chow & Chow. He is a Non-Executive Director of Kingmaker
Footwear Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He also sits on
the board of The Link Management Limited which manages The Link Real
Estate Investment Trust. For the period from June 2005 to July 2011, Mr.
CHOW was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Mr.
CHOW was the Chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities
and Futures Commission until 31 October 2012. He is the Deputy Chairman
of Appeal Board on Public Meetings and Processions and a member of
Process Review Panel for the Financial Reporting Council. He is also a
Member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Member of the Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club.
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Mr. YANG Shibin

Independent non-executive Director

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 44, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the member of the
Nomination Committee on 6 June 2012. Mr. YANG has over 22 years of
experience in the textiles industry. He is currently the Deputy Secretary-
General of China National Textile and Apparel Council and chairman of
China Knitting Industry Association (“CKIA”). Mr. YANG joined the CKIA in
2005. Between 2002 and 2005, Mr. YANG held positions as the Deputy
General Manager, General Manager of Changshu Ecoya-Soy Fiber Company
Limited™ (& 24T /LR R4 44 4 4 5 R 2 5] ) of Changshu. Between 1997
and 2002, he served as the secretary-general of China Textile Industry
Enterprise Management Association and Deputy Consultant of State Bureau
of Textile Industry. Mr. YANG has been serving as an Independent Director
of Shanghai Dragon Corporation (_E/88EERMDER A F]), a company
listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange, since 2007. Mr. YANG has been
serving as an Independent Director of Shenzhen Textile (Holdings) Co.,
Ltd., a company listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 2010. Mr.
YANG has been serving as a Director of Huafu Top Dyed Yarn Melange
Co., Ltd., a company listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since 2011.
Mr. YANG graduated with a Master degree in Engineering from the Faculty
of Engineering, Donghua University, China in 2004. He graduated with a
Master degree of Executive Master of Business Administration from China

Europe International Business School, China in 2009.

* For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE €&

The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated EEHREZAAAZ FHELEEZELTBRE -

financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEEK

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is ZARFA—EERELERAF AEBTERELH

principally engaged in the textile and garment businesses including the — 8 MAKIKER  BIEEE MEEHBAE - SR IA

production and sale of knitted fabric, garments and the sale of dyed yarns
and sewing threads. The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are

set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 55. No interim dividend was declared for the period
ended 30 June 2013. The director now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK2 cents to the shareholders on the register of members on 4
July 2014, amounting to HK$24,061,000, and the retention of the remaining
profit for the year.

Subject to the approval of Shareholders of the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”) to be held on 25 June 2014, it is expected that the
payment of final dividend will be made on or before Tuesday, 22 July 2014.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out in page 52.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$101,943,000 to property,
plant and equipment which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the

Group’s manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company during the Year are set out in

note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2013 amounted to HK$1,488,717,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$616,584,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this

annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Madam LI Lan (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. YEN Gordon (re-designated from an Executive Director to
a Non-Executive Director with effect from 31 May 2013)

Mr. ZHANG Chong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP
Mr. YANG Shibin

Pursuant to Article 102(A) of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
GONG Zhengyi, Mr. ZHANG Chong and Mr. YANG Shibin will retire and,

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

ATz A7k

M2013% 128310 AAF A HEFREZ
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, no director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one

year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on

pages 37 to 41 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive and their respective associates in the shares of the
Company (the “Share”), underlying Shares and debenture of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”")), (a) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Listing

Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in Shares:

B b SCRT#E BE & S 12013912 A31 H - I 4 i}
BRI CRRAFAS FEREFZES
BANRNEARAMMB AR Y AEEEIFRA
TRIERFEE CEEHBERIN KI5 R TEIED
ARG E L

BERARREFTREZFBHENAFREITAE
F418 -

EECESER

2013124310 - RBEARRF(@REHRPE
fEBIE3521678 TR E 2 B TR - sl(b)iz £
BRAFTR FAREFETESRH ZIZESFH
(MZEFA ) BBAAARREBHERINE
BRAF (BT 2B KRB EE RITHA
BRBEEEEZHEATHAD R R EE
(REEHFMIEEABEXVEE T2 RE) 2R
7 (TRE1R]) - ABRARR D KB EZP A 2K

BT :

R iF AR

Approximate %
of the Company’s

total issued
share capital
Number of HIEARRATE
Name of director Shares Capacity 2HERITRA
EEnE KRG EE &% Btk
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 91,521,096 Beneficial owner 7.61

Bt EnBEBA
11,564,000 Spouse interests 0.96

(Note) [
(Kta)

Dr. YEN Gordon 6,400,000 Beneficial owner 0.53

BEE LT ERBEARA

Note: Biat -

As at 31 December 2013, Ms. Law Ho Suen, Victoria, spouse of Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor
held 11,564,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor, spouse of Ms. Law Ho
Suen, Victoria, is deemed to be interested in 11,564,000 Shares held by Ms. Law Ho Suen,
Victoria.

M2013F12A310  #A R+ (ANER L KEZ KB #H
H11,564,000 810 (EREZERAA) - ERLEERER
e £ 2 BLfB - AR (E A 28 AT e X £ 5 A 2 11,564,000/ %
DA -
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Long positions in underlying Shares — Share options:

RIEERDNFRBER: —BiE:

Number of
Name of director Date of grant Exercise period share options
EEHE BE B TEH BREZE
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 17.09.2010 17.03.2014 - 17.03.2017 4,600,000
Bt (Note 1)
(K7at1)
18.08.2011 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 3,300,000
(Note 2)
(H1iz2)
Dr. YEN Gordon 18.08.2011 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 3,300,000
BREHIELT (Notes 2)
(H17t2)
Notes: Bt
1. 30% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017, up 1. BB AL 2 30%H2014F3A17H £201743H17H 7]
to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 FITE - BEARHE 2 & %60%H201543A17H £2017
and all share options are exercisable from 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017. FE3A7HA T R HBEREHR20165F3A17H
F201743A17A A F17fE-
2. 20% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017, up 2. 8 % 1 2 20% 20128 A19H £201748A18H 1]

to 40% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017,
up to 60% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2014 to 18 August
2017, up to 80% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2015 to 18
August 2017 and all share options are exercisable from 19 August 2016 to 18 August
2017.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive nor their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in any Shares,
underlying Shares and debenture of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (a) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO or (b) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

FAT(0 B AR 2 & £40% 201398 A19A £2017
F8A18H Al T 171 : BARIE 2 &% %60% 201448
198 Z201748A18A A F171% : B R # 2 & %80%
201548 A19H £201748A18A Al F17(#: k&
P A% H20164F8 A19H £201748A18A A F 47
-

B LRAREEN MEEE TRERKKERA
ZHMBEALTRARBREERMBEEE (AEE
7 REIEIRGIFEXVESFTI T 285 ) Z Btn - 187
B kERETHREBRBEARR(QEREF AR
fRBIE3I52(F AR E 2 B M ATRC 8 R (D)IRIFE
STRIZEBAMA R B R P 2 R SRR o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted share option scheme on 25 January 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”) and 20 January 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”). Particulars
and movements of the Company’s share option schemes including the 2002
Scheme and the 2011 Scheme during the Year, are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS'’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than a director or chief executive of the Company as disclosed
above, in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section

336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

i8R T &l

7 A B 200241 A250 201141 A208 4
RERRERTEl (2 71A [2002F 5H8] ] & [20114 5T
2]) ABAARRIBREE 0 1E2002F 51 &
K201 B 2 FBERRAFE Z#E) - HPk
B RMTE32

FERRREMRRES

2013512431 H  REBEA R RIIRES KBAE K
PIEI36EMER BN ZRR LM - B L5
MEFRTBAHCOEBZ N FEALR
RREAD AR R A RS SOA B BRI
T

Rty RARRE IR B iF BB :

Approximate %
of the issued
share capital

F SRR NN
Name of substantial shareholder Number of Shares Capacity 2 RITRA
FTERREAB RoEE =20 Bt
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment 409,036,000 Beneficial owner 34.00
Co., Ltd. (“Yieldfull”) (Note 1) BB A
(B7F1)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment 409,036,000 Interest of controlled corporation 34.00
Management Co., Ltd. (“Jinhui”) (Note 1) ZHEB RS
(K1at1)
Chinatex Corporation (“ Chinatex”) 421,068,000 Interest of controlled corporation 35.00
PEFRSHEERE ([FE5]) (Note 1 and 2) = A B H) R
(K1at1k2)
Mr. HA Chung Fong 37,038,000 Beneficial owner 11.57
BMFRE (Notes 3) EmEAA
(B17#3)
102,108,948 Other interests
(Notes 3 and 5) Hih i

(H1a23%5)
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Approximate %
of the issued
share capital

R R NN
Name of substantial shareholder Number of Shares Capacity BRITRAE
FTERRER R EE 514 Aotk
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 139,146,948 Spouse interests 11.57
Bk + (Note 3) [
(K15£3)
Super Brilliance Company Limited 102,108,948 Beneficial owner 8.49
(“Super Brilliance”) (Notes 4 and 5) EmEA A
(H1at455)
Island Treasure Investments Limited 102,108,948 Interest of controlled corporation 8.49
(“Island Treasure”) (Notes 4 and 5) ZHEB S
(Kat4K5)
Onwide (H.K.) Limited (“Onwide”) 102,108,948 Trustee 8.49
ZM (EB)BRAR ([RF]) (Notes 4 and 5) 2FEA
(Hat4k5)
Mr. Wong Tak Leung, Charles 102,108,948 Interest of controlled corporation 8.49
TERLE (Notes 4 and 5) 72 ) [ A B
(H1at455)
Ms. Law Ho Suen, Victoria 11,564,000 Beneficial owner 0.96
A e+ EmEA A
91,521,096 Spouse interests 7.61
(Note 6) fic (5 7 2
(Krzt6)
Notes: Kzt -

Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui and Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinatex. Therefore, each of Jinhui and Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Yieldfull.

As at 31 December 2013, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited held 12,032,000 Shares
as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinatex. Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinatex (H.K.)
Holding Limited

Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA Chung Fong, was deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Mr. HA Chung Fong.

Super Brilliance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Treasure, Island Treasure is a
wholly-owned subsidiary by Onwide and Onwide is owned as to 100% by Mr. WONG
Tak Leung, Charles. Therefore, each of Island Treasure, Onwide and Mr. WONG Tak
Leung, Charles is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Super Brilliance.

Yieldfull &Jinhuiz & &K B A 7 flinhuiA R 41 2
2EMB AR AL JinhuiRFHE&ARRIERE
Yieldfull P #5 A 7 2 #E 25

M2013F12A318 - F 45 (BB ZEREBRAFFHE
12,032,0000 15 (fEAEZBEAA) «F 4 (BH)
ERAEBRARATHZZEMBRR B PEHH
BIERATL (B BERER A RFFRG 2 % -

IRk Z t REMRF EEZRE AMEEFEREEE
RIT S A PR D 2 s o

Super Brilliance&lsland Treasurez 2 & M B A &)
Island Treasure B2 Mz 2 EMB AR RMHTER
F AR B 100% 25 o E I - Island Treasure * Zf & T
B R 54 & B R VERE A Super BrilliancefT A7 2
T o
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5. Onwide is the trustee of the HA Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA Chung
Fong for the benefit of his family.

6. Ms. Law Ho Suen, Victoria, spouse of Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor, is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2013.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries, is a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in
this annual report and note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2013 or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements other than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Chapter 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the continuing connected
transactions entered into during the Year are set out in note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

5. 2 M Bthe HA TrustB){E5E A »the HA Trust B EAF 5T
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The Company’s auditor has confirmed that all of the continuing connected
transactions set out under note 41 to the consolidated financial statements
(a) have been approved by the Board; (b) are in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) have been entered into
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the transactions;
and (d) have not exceeded the respective cap amounts in respect of each of

the continuing connected transactions.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have also reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the above continuing

connected transactions have been entered into by the Group:
(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the

Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered that all Independent Non-
Executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the

guidelines.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. Remuneration Committee will
review and approve remuneration policy for the Directors of the Board for

approval.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the Directors of the
Board for approval, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. No Director, or
any of his associates, and executive, is involved in dealing with his own

remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements and under heading “Share

Option Schemes” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in any business competes or is likely to compete, either directly

or indirectly with the business of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five

largest suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company have an interest in any of the Group’s five

largest customers or suppliers.

Annual Report 2013
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling

HK$611,000 (2012: HK$1,240,000)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set

out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 36.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares throughout the

Year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO

Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LI Lan

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
21 March 2014
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Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2013 are as follows:
M2013F12A31H - AEEREWENFIBLT -

The Group’s

Location Lease Use effective interest
it Bh HEFH k=S AEEERER
Unit A2 on 5/F., & unit Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Al on 7/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building, FREFE BEEMMAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R RS BK29-395%
REITEKRE
SEAERTEALE
Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and Medium-term land use Office 100%

12, Block A, United Plaza, Futian District,
Shenzhen City

ARYIT AR R 8 A IR B A B R B R
5 RIS ARIE

A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08% 107112

rights
A HA b {5 P A

FINES
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BDO

TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 55 to 168, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2013, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as

evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year ended
31 December 2013 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit

Practising Certificate Number P0O5544

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &4 W EH &

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F12A318 It F &

For the 12 months

For the 16 months

ended ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
EHE20135% HZE2012%F
12A31HE12(8R 12A31HF16fEA
NOTES fifi# HK$'000 F/E 7T HK$000 F/& T
Revenue EEL 6 6,942,807 9,167,089
Cost of sales HERA (6,188,170) (8,379,813)
Gross profit EX 754,637 787,276
Other income Hip U A 45,573 115,209
Other gains and losses Hiplhs REE 21,252 (1,542)
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEER (180,542) (294,682)
Administrative expenses THER (518,103) (895,285)
Finance costs AR 7 (36,419) (87,288)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBLR 2B KEFE 39 = 42,855
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREARR (FR) 86,398 (333,457)
Income tax FriEH 8 14,290 (4,304)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period =_EE/HEERN/ (BR) 9 100,688 (337,761)

Profit/(loss) for the year/period attributable to: EEREE/HERAR/

(B8) :
Owners of the Company ARAREB A 91,304 (324,167)
Non-controlling interests FERER 9,384 (13,594)
100,688 (337,761)
HK cents El HK cents ;&N
Earnings/(loss) per share SREF/ (EB)

Basic and diluted ERRE#E 2 7.6 (335)




L1-8  Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2013

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME % & 2 HE W@ &R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #{Z2013F12A318 It & &

For the 12 months For the 16 months
ended ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
EHZE2013% HZE2012%F
12A31HE12(8R 127318 L1618 A
NOTES f1:# HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F/ &L
Profit/(loss) for the year/period _REE/HBER/ (BR) 9 100,688 (337,761)
Items that will be reclassified to HEFERENHESR
profit or loss in subsequent years: B HE:
Exchange differences arising on translation of HMEGNEBEEZ
foreign operations ERER 18,045 2,159
Reclassification adjustment of translation reserve HENBRABELZREZ
upon disposal of subsidiaries EFHBRE 39 - (13,537)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REE/HMEB2EKS
for the year/period (%) 18,045 (11,378)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) _REE/SHRzENE/
for the year/period (Fx) @A 118,733 (349,139)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) EEREE /HH2ERE/
for the year/period attributable to: (AX)@BE:
Owners of the Company ARAREB A 107,575 (336,707)
Non-controlling interests FERER 11,158 (12,432)

118,733 (349,139)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4: & Bf # AR i &=

As at 31 December 2013 #2013 12A31H

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

M2013%12A31H 20124 12H31H
NOTES i HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties REME 4 33,800 2,548
Property, plant and equipment ME BEREE 15 1,624,510 1,827,010
Prepaid lease payments - non-current portion BRNEERE-FERBHN 16 107,784 110,273
Other intangible assets HEnEREE 17 30,284 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEHMENEEZ
other intangible assets BEe - 18,371
Investment in life insurance policies AERBREZHRE 20 37,346 36,742
Deferred tax assets BIEMIEBEE 19 34,043 28,517
1,867,767 2,023,461
Current assets RBERE
Inventories FE 21 1,636,772 1,340,553
Trade and bills receivables EELZERERGE 22 1,265,935 1,259,918
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRHE ReREMER
B 23 191,146 166,404
Prepaid lease payments — current portion BRAEFE-REHH 16 2,610 2,607
Derivative financial instruments THEERTIA 24 14,170 2,044
Tax recoverable A EFE 4,282 7,065
Short-term bank deposits REROER 25 346,889 302,577
Bank balances and cash BTREERRE 25 803,074 915,466
4,264,878 3,996,634
Current liabilities nBeE
Trade and bills payables EENZERENTE 26 1,001,781 783,712
Other payables and accruals BN RBREER 27 339,799 342,160
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders R FEPR R B R 5008 28 80,100 80,100
Deferred income - current portion EIEMA—-RE TR 29 1,458 1,458
Derivative financial instruments fTEERMIA 24 = 15,037
Tax payable ERHE 9,555 67,261
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year ~ #R1T R EMEE - —FRE|H 30 838,946 1,234,735
Bank overdrafts BITEX 30 = 7,751
2,271,639 2,532,214
Net current assets TBEEFE 1,993,239 1,464,420

Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTBDAE 3,861,006 3,487,881
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & & B & ik R &

As at 31 December 2013 #2013F12H31H

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

R2013%12A31H 2012412 A31H
NOTES fifs# HK$'000 &7 HK$000 F/& T
Non-current liabilities kRBAR
Deferred income — non-current portion EIEWA - ERB G 29 63,676 65,134
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year BILEMEE-——FRIH 30 516,598 240,587
Deferred tax liabilities RRERIEERE 19 2,085 2,380
582,359 308,101
Net assets EEFE 3,278,647 3,179,780
Capital and reserves EXR R
Share capital A 31 240,609 240,609
Reserves i 2,876,611 2,769,113
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ANEHEE ANEHES 3,117,220 3,009,722
Non-controlling interests FRBER 161,427 170,058
Total equity BB 3,278,647 3,179,780

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 168 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2014 and

are signed on its behalf by: =
LI Lan HA Kam On
] BERZ
Director Director

BF BE

FEL5E 168 B MERE IS RAR B N2014F3A21H
HESSRABLRZAEEN YHATHNESKER



EEEE(RE)ARST

2013FFi# KEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bt # R i &

As at 31 December 2013 #2013 12A31H

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

M2013F12A31H R2012612H31H
NOTES B 5 HK$'000 T T HK$000 F/& T
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VERY TG 15 6,564 7,445
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEHMENEELZ
other intangible assets BEffEe = 18,371
Investment in life insurance policies AERBREZHRE 20 37,346 36,742
Investments in subsidiaries HBARIRE 18 32,768 32216
76,678 94,774
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BEHE ek
Hit e z0E 23 4,311 9,497
Amounts due from subsidiaries B2 R FT R FE 18 3,171,311 3,216,698
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIA 24 12,238 1,901
Tax recoverable AERIE 192 371
Short-term bank deposits RERTER 25 = 81,591
Bank balances and cash BITEERRE 25 125,897 234,668
3,313,949 3,544,726
Current liabilities nBaE
Other payables and accruals HEth B FEREER 27 9,638 25,046
Amounts due to subsidiaries YNGR 18 1,000,810 1,462,462
Derivative financial instruments e 24 - 15,037
Tax payable ERHE - 41,000
Bank and other borrowings — due within one year  $R1T R EMEE - —FRE|H 30 15,461 362,910
1,025,909 1,906,455
Net current assets TBEEFE 2,288,040 1,638,271
Total assets less current liabilities EEMERADER 2,364,718 1,733,045
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bt ¥R i &

As at 31 December 2013 #2013F12H31H

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

R2013F12A31H R2012412H31H
NOTES fifi# HK$'000 T&7 HK$000 F &
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank and other borrowings — due after one year BOREMEBEE-—F&IES 30 - 240,587
Deferred tax liabilities BEREEE 19 187 -
187 240,587
Net assets EEFE 2,364,531 1,492,458
Capital and reserves EXR R
Share capital A 31 240,609 240,609
Reserves f#E 33 2,123,922 1,251,849
Total equity ERdE 2,364,531 1,492 458
LI Lan HA Kam On
=W BHRR
Director Director

EF BFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #R& = B B *

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F12A318 It F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

NNEIE 2PN 3
Capital Share Non-
Share Share redemption Translation options  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
&x BiRiE FER
BE  ROEE BEEE ELRE RE LERE  EEERA “fE #E ER4E
HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000 — HK$000 — HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FHET FHET FET FET FHET FET FET
(note a)
(Hiita)
At 1 September 2011 R2011459A1H 158,802 197,124 210 (36,778) 3,395 42,193 2,473,080 2,838,026 200,200 3,038,226
Exchange differences BEGIEBELEY

arising on translation of EXEE

foreign operations - - - 997 - - - 997 1,162 2,159
Reclassification adjustment HENBA R fﬁﬁb

of translation reserve upon BEZENIER

disposal of subsidiaries (H1:#39)

(note 39) - - - (13,537) - - - (13,537) - (13,537)
Loss for the period 2HEERE - - - - - - (324167) (324,167)  (13594) (337,761)
Total comprehensive expense = HiE2ER S AE

for the period - - - (12,540) - - (324,167) (336,707) (12,432)  (349,139)
Equity-settled share-based AEREE R B

payments ER7AR - - - - 10,268 - - 10,268 - 10,268
Dividend recognised as RAELZIKRE

distribution - - - - - - (7,940) (7,940) - (7,940)
Transfers Eoled - - - - - 1,109 (1,109) - - -
Dividends paid to BERRETIFERER

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - (17,710 (17,710)
Issue of shares (nofe b) BTG (HaEb) 81,807 429488 - - - - - 511,29 - 511,295
Share issuance expense BIRMEY - (5,220) - - - - - (5,220) - (5,220)
At 31 December 2012 A2012%12A31H 240,609 621,392 210 (49,318) 13,663 43302 2,139,864 3,009,722 170,058 3,179,780
Exchange differences BEGIEBELEY

arising on translation of ERER

foreign operations - - - 16,271 - - - 16,271 1,774 18,045
Profit for the year 2EERF - - = = = = 91,304 91,304 9,384 100,688
Total comprehensive income RFEZ2ANELE

for the year - - - 16,271 - - 91,304 107,575 11,158 118,733
Equity-settled share-based NEREERG A

payments reverse B2 (R - - - - (77 - - (77 - (77)
Transfers Eﬂﬁé - - - - - 36877 (36,877) - - -
Dividends paid to RS FIAERBRE

non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - (19,725)  (19,725)
Acquisition of additional lhe:2yll- NGl

interests in existing subsidiary ~ EBIME - - - - - - - - (64) (64)
At 31 December 2013 R2013512A31A 240,609 621,392 210  (33,047) 13,5586 80,179 2,194,291 3,117,220 161,427 3,278,647
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ZRE =B B R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #{Z2013F12A318 It & &

Note a:

Note b:

The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages of profit
after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries as reported under the
PRC statutory financial statements. According to the provision of the articles of
association of the subsidiaries, the statutory reserves shall only be used for making
up losses, capitalisation into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary’s
operation and for the welfare of the subsidiary’s staff and workers.

On 6 June 2012, the Company allotted and issued a total of 409,036,000 shares
of HK$0.2 each at the price of HK$1.25 per share to Chinatex Yieldfull Investment
Co., Ltd. (“Yieldfull”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
wholly-owned by Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”), a state-owned enterprise under
the direct supervision and administration of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of
the PRC. Immediately after the issue of shares, there were 1,203,046,960 shares in
issue and Chinatex effectively held approximately 34% of the issued share capital
of the Company and became the single largest shareholder of the Company.

Hista -

Hiath -

EEFBEETEREARKAME ([FE]) KM
BARNEFRPENEEMBRENZREREZ
BZEMBARE THENRERNBHENRE-
BRI B A RASERBANGR A HEEEY
FAREMER  BRRA - ERAENBRRNE
BEMBRATIEIRIANBEH -

2012566 A6H AR AR B R1.258 T 2 B
fic % K %17 A $£409,036,0004% & % [ {50.2/8 7T
2 %15 FChinatex Yieldfull Investment Co., Ltd.
([Yieldfull |) » — RN EBRE L BHSEMERLZ A
A APETHEEAR ([FH])2EHE  mH
S —RKATEEBEREEEEEEELZE]E
EEEREBUREREE CEBHE  BHEHET
[t 1% - 7R A BB B #1717 1,203,046,9600% * if
RHERIFAAR R B BEITRALZ4% WK A
DA E—HARR -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #REREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #Z2013F12A318 It F &

For the 12 months

For the 16 months

ended ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
HZE2013% HZ20126
128318 k128 A 12A318 1168 A
HK$'000 ¥ HK$000 T/
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEA
Profit/(loss) before taxation BHRATEF, (EE) 86,398 (333,457)
Adjustments for: R
Government grants B (766) (47,907)
Amortisation of deferred income B AR 8 (1,458) (1,946)
Depreciation of investment properties BEMEINE 246 59
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERREEITE 259,258 343,883
Equity-settled share-based NEREENRORBERZ
payments (reverse)/expense A3 (EE) /X (77) 10,268
Finance costs BB A 36,419 87,288
Interest income FBHA (7,411) (15,221)
Loss on disposalfwritten-off of property, HE/EEmE KRR
plant and equipment REzER 12,483 2,955
Gain on acquisition of additional interests WEREHEAREIMERZ
in an existing subsidiary e (60) -
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBRRZABKEFE - (42,855)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised EERWHEZREERXE
on trade receivables, net (BE),/#RFE (2,245) 12,690
Release of prepaid lease payments BAEEREED 2,609 3,478
Operating cash flows before movements MBELEHH s EERENE
in working capital 385,396 19,235
(Increase)/decrease in inventories BEZ (&M, md (295,219) 344,255
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables 2% R EHEEINFE 2
W/ (Em) 712 (4,740)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BIHE REREMEKFTIELZ
deposits and other receivables (&) /md (57,932) 59,366
Increase in trade and bills payables EEREEENTEEN 226,475 76,564
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals ~ EftEMNZEREAER 2
ORd)/#Em (10,407) 24,203
Net cash generated from operations EEMBzREFE 249,025 518,883
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREBHEH (2,676) (60,440)
Overseas tax paid BREINRIE (12,802) (15,443)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEFEAMENASTE 233,547 443,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z#REREREK

For the year ended 31 December 2013 #{Z2013F12A318 It & &

For the 12 months For the 16 months

ended ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
HZ2013% HE2012F
12A31HE12(8R 12A31HE16MEA
NOTES Hifi# HK$'000 & T HK$'000 T %71

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARMEHE 39 = 117371
Interest received EUFI 8 9,022 13,691
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERZEMENE

plant and equipment 4,550 4,702
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEDE BERLE 15 (101,943) (99,396)
Purchase of other intangible assets EEHMEVEE (3,624) -
Payment for prepaid lease payments IHBAHERE - (3,600)
Upfront payments under life insurance policies ASRBREZERTE 20 - (36,178)
Deposits paid for acquisition of other BEEMEVEAEZERNEZES

intangible assets - (18,371)
Net mavement in derivative financial instruments TESMIANEETE (27,163) (27,714)
Government grants received B BT B 766 47,907
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ R&EEFANESSE (118,392) (1588)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEER
Repayment of bank and other borrowings EBRBIREMEE (2,835,059) (4,517,524)
Interest paid BFE (36,332) (81,386)
Payments for consideration payable S REMAE - (23,501)
Payment for share issuance expenses THBITROAX - (5,220)
Payment for acquisition of additional shares SEIRE R

from non-controlling shareholders Btr 2 58 (4) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERREFIEERRE (19,725) (17,710)
Dividends paid ERNEE - (7,940)
Proceeds from issue of shares BIRAATEZE = 511,295
New bank and other borrowings raised nESRITRAEMEE 2,714,950 3,785,749
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ B&EEFANESFE (176,170) (356,737)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND BERERAREERN D)/

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 mEE (61,015) 84,675
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEE /HRHBBEN

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR/PERIOD BeRERREEE 1,210,292 1,124,552
EFFECT ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXSBHHRER

EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ZRRLEANYE 686 1,065
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REEE /HBREBH

AT END OF THE YEAR/PERIOD ReRERREER 1,149,963 1,210,292
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReREARLER

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: ERNDH
Short-term bank deposits RHRITEX 346,889 302,577
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRSE 803,074 915,466
Bank overdrafts BITES - (7,751)

1,149,963 1,210,292
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B sREMia

31 December 2013 2013%12H31H

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information

to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar

(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Yieldfull and ultimate parent
is Chinatex, a state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and
administration of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets

Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

Since 6 June 2012, Chinatex has held approximately 34% of the issued
share capital of the Company. In view of the fact that the principal operating
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are statutorily required
to have their financial year end date set at 31 December, pursuant to a
resolution of the board of directors dated 10 August 2012, the financial
year of the Company (together with its subsidiaries collectively referred to
as the “Group”) has been changed from 31 August to 31 December. The
management considered that the Group’s operation has no significant
seasonal/cyclical effects. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
statements now presented cover a period of 12 months from 1 January
to 31 December 2013 and the comparative figures presented for the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and related notes covered a period of 16 months
from 1 September 2011 to 31 December 2012, and therefore they are not

entirely comparable.

1. &N
AATBESBEMRIOATERATHER
BREBRARSHARAT ([BFT)) L.
AR T AP E A R T B s B AR
BATERBE

HAEMBHRTIAETLES) BT AERREN

WeEE -
RRRT—EREER cHIEMBARN

EREBHIINMEISA -

EEZRAE HEEES QR AYieldfullr MEZKE
RABFY —FREAPHBESREREEEERE
BLEECHEEEREEUNERBEAZEAD
%o

B2012566 A6AE - FHEFAEARD D EITR
ARHI34% o AR AR RIEFR BIRK S 2 £ B % 2
NEEEMBRFEEEE BT AI2A318 1R
BEEHHA2012F8F10B 2 ESSRFER AR
B(EREMBRR KB AIANKE])Z MK
FEEHBAIRERAI2A3IR - ERERA
FEiM AR HASEEETEEAY
BRI BRAMEIZZEREUBHRERE
H2013F1A1HBRE12A31HIF12ME A Hif - i
BlER RAZERER RAeRREHE -
%%éiﬁ@;ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁiﬁwZtts*fi%&?umaﬁaIiﬁé‘f
WEH2011F9A 1A B £2012F12A31H 1E16
8 AEAR - At Ree 2 m L& o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & iR M

31 December 2013 2013F12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first effective on 1
January 2013

2. RMEEBUMBREER ([FEY
HEHmEER])

(a) KMB BB RE LR ZBTA—

F2013F1A1H B8R &K

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other BEEGTENELIR At EIEIES
(Revised) Comprehensive Income BRI (L&1835]) ]

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle BB @SR 20094 220114
(BETA) 1B ER 2 G B

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle BB 5 R & %R 2010F £20124F
(fEETA) A2 FE s

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle BB REZAER 20114F £20134F
(7T =) BE 2 F R DU

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial BB BEwEER REeMEER

Liabilities BT 2 AER] AR TRAE

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BBV R E %R ONE R B e
SE10%%

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements BT FRELER] HEZH
F115%

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities BB @SR REMEREZ #Eam
E12%% =

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BBV R E %R AV EERE2
135

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements BB G ERFE275% LSV E

HKAS 28 (2011)

Investments in Associates and Joint

(2011)

BB W ERB8%

Ventures (2011) NEIZ®E

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits BB FTERF195% B B &7
(2011)

HK(IFRIC) — Stripping Costs in the Production Phase EH5 (AR BEHmE BERBEEERED

Interpretation 20 of a Surface Mine REZEY) EEZ DN

—REE205%

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans RS R B E R
NS C N

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

RAZEFETAHARENM B RRLBEEAY

@,

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B sREMia

31 December 2013 2013%12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. KMEBUKBREER ([HEH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) BEmEER]) (&)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not (b) CEMEBERERZ TG EIEE]
yet effective BB HRELER

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s T3] fLEARE BB MR AR 2 F 5] &EIERT
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have — &B I 1SRG L BIAE O B M - MR AR IRAR K

not been early adopted by the Group. REERZERRW-
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial ARG EREINNRy HESREER
Liabilities! BRI TRAE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BAVBREEAFSE SpIT A
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Hedge Accounting? BB ISR & 2R Himg A
HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 O FAEM B RE

ERETRRELBES
AR FE395F 2 BRI A

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities? BN REZER AT
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 F105% - BB SR
(2011) SREBFI2FRE S

Bt ERIE275% 2

EFTAN (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee AEBGHEREINREy TEHEMNEE:
(2011) Contributions? {&&] 2 (2011) EEHR
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31 December 2013 2013F12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements by adding appliance
guidance to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is

considered equivalent to net settlement.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial assets
measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-trade equity investments,
which the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value attributable
to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of

financial assets and financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 — Hedge Accounting

The amendments overhaul hedge accounting to allow entities to better
reflect their risk management activities in financial statements. Changes
included in HKFRS 9 to address the own credit risk issue on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss can be applied in
isolation without the need to change any other accounting for financial
instruments. The amendments also remove the 1 January 2015 effective

date for HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B sREMia

31 December 2013 2013%12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) -

Investment Entities

The amendments apply to a particular class of businesses that qualify as
investment entities. An investment entity’s business purpose is to invest
funds solely for returns from capital appreciation, investment income or
both. It evaluates the performance of its investments on a fair value basis.
Investment entities could include private equity organisations, venture

capital organisations, pension funds and investment funds.

The amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirements
in HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and require investment
entities to measure particular subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss rather than to consolidate them. The amendments also set out the
disclosure requirements for investment entities. The amendments are

applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional provisions.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are independent of the number
of years of service to be recognised as a reduction in the service cost
in the period in which the service is rendered instead of allocating the

contributions to periods of service.

Amendments to HKAS 39 — Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting

The amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a hedging instrument to a central counterparty meets specified

criteria.
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31 December 2013 2013F12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HK (IFRIC) 21 - Levies
HK (IFRIC) 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability to pay a levy
imposed by government when the activity that triggers payment, as identified

by the relevant legislation, occurs.

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent charges to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear. Among them HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment has
been amended to clarify how the gross carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation are treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.
The carrying amount of the asset is restated to revalued amount. The
accumulated depreciation may be eliminated against the gross carrying
amount of the asset. Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may be
adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the

difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after

taking into account accumulated impairment losses.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B sREMia

31 December 2013 2013%12H31H

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis

except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar

(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year/period
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other members

of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in

issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration

classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business combinations
whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group
first applied HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance with
the transition requirements in the standard. Such balances are not adjusted
upon first application of the standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of
such consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of these business

combinations and are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in

equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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31 December 2013 2013%12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements

of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the

straight-line method.

An investment property is realisable upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the item is realisable.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The useful

lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 2% — 4.5% or period of
the lease term

10% - 33%

10% - 20%

20% - 30%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments
provided during the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction are carried
at cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the

manner intended by management).

(e) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the

leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are

consumed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

(h) Intangible assets

(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as
follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 10% — 20% or period of the contract term
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an

indication that an asset may be impaired.

(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements of
financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (i.e. derivative financial instruments) are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables,

available-for-sale financial assets and derivative financial instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see

accounting policy on impairment of loans and receivables below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets (including investment in
life insurance policies) are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after

the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or breach
of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because

of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the respective credit period and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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31 December 2013 2013F12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognised

in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss is not reversed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The
Group'’s financial liabilities are generally classified into derivative financial

instruments and other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders, bank and other
borrowings and bank overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately. Derivative financial instruments not held primarily
for trading purposes are classified as non-current assets or liabilities when

the remaining maturity of the instruments is more than one year.

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS

18 “Revenue”.

(v) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the

financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

(v) Derecognition (Continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(j) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the

useful lives of the related assets.

(k) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

A provision for restructuring is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position on conditions that the Group has a detailed formal plan
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the restructuring
will be carried out, by starting to implement that plan or by announcing its

main features to those affected by it.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.

(m) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and title has passed, at which date the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can

be measured reliably.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’

rights to receive payment have been established.

(n) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-managed
retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

(0) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year/period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years/periods and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,

rather than through sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes

are also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (“foreign currencies”) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the year/period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or

loss on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the

share options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

(s) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which

means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an

associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other

entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or

is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may

be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are different from

expected, a material impairment or reversal may arise.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower
than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be

required.

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others (i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Singapore and Macau). All
of these geographical areas are operating segments except “Others” which

is an aggregation of operating segments.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. BXFRIEESR (&)
(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit/(loss) from the WA TAAEBERERENEERH  BAOR DK

production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads, yarns and garments Xz &2 EBRBN, (BHE)RIEE HEiL

and results by reportable segment for the year/period. AR D FEEIEZ DT ©
For the 12 months ended 31 December 2013 B E2013F12AH31H 1121 A
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others total  Eliminations ~Consolidated
B HE Al #E HERF EM BOM HitHE  AEAE e &a

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEx FET FET FET FEn FET FET FEx FET FET

Revenue 258
External sales HIMNEE 1,557,143 1,182,204 898,638 1,088,893 861,736 338,137 203,499 812,557 6,942,807 - 6,942,807
Inter-segment sales PEBEE
(note) (Hi) 4,970,384 3,049,991 - - 533,229 73,899 - 125,695 8,753,198 (8,753,198) -

Total segment revenue AREFEEE 6,527,527 4,232,195 898,638 1,088,893 1,394,965 412,036 203,499 938,252 15,696,005 (8,753,198) 6,942,807

Results Ed
Segment profit AEEF 136,667 96,877 87,643 106,873 53,832 22,371 19,963 76,066 600,298
Interest income FIEBA 7411
Unallocated income FAEMA 50,607
Depreciation and TERBH

amortisation (262,113)
Other unallocated expenses ~ Eft A& &t (273,386)
Finance costs BEMRA (36,419)

Profit before taxation BEARN 86,398



28 Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B EMa

31 December 2013 2013F12H31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERSEEN (E)
(Continued)
For the 16 months ended 31 December 2012 H22012F 128318 IL161E A
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
B TE a2 BE  HEHF EM BN EtnE  HBEE Hi Fa

HKS000  HKSDOO — HKSUOD  HKSUOO  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOO — HKSUOO  HKSDOO  HKSDOD
TET TET TET TiET TET TET TET TiET TET TET TET

Revenue B¥8
External sales HINEE 2,365,369 1632676 1,230,409 1,375,842 953,049 373,227 246,600 999917 9,167,089 - 9,167,089
Inter-segment sales PREHE

(note) (Hi) 6,749,742 4,029,705 - - 596,937 129,983 - 285,343 11,791,710  (11,791,710) -

Total segment revenue SREXREE 9105111 5662381 1230409 1375842 1549986 503,210 246600 1285260 20958,799 (11,791,710) 9,167,089

Results ES
Segment profit HEET 146,538 69,513 76,615 86,351 32,733 30,454 15,042 62,283 519,529
Interest income FEBA 15,221
Unallocated income RABBA 5,745
Depreciation and TEREE

amortisation (347,420)
Other unallocated expenses ~ EfAA X i (482,099)
Finance Costs BERK (87,288)
Net gain on disposal of LERBARAZ

subsidiaries s E 42,855
Loss before taxation BHAER (333,457)

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices with reference to the prevailing market rates. A5 - DM E 2 BRNHLXBER 2 MIBERMETE
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and other expenses (including non-production related
employee benefits expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.),
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, loss on disposal/written-
off of property, plant and equipment, net gain from derivative financial
instruments, finance costs, net gain on disposal of subsidiaries, etc.. This

is the measure reported to the board of directors of the Company for the

6. EXERIBEEH (K)

AERRO B G BER AR EE M EARL 2 &5
BERMAR - D BB F o8& 0 AR ZF] -
EHRIRAFAPRITERAREMER (B
FERLEZRERMNAS EFME RITEM
) EREHE FISKA-HE GEHEDE.
WERREEE TEeRIAZKHFE &
BERARHERBRRZASREFES D
REBDEREMFEMAARREETEER L
EE-HOREERBBEALBIELONEKE

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis HZERRBERARRAEES L7
on segment assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the
board of directors of the Company.
Other segment information HihnEEs
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: EREAGESERM
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others  Consolidated
£ E =5 BE  HE@ETF EM BN HA%E &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET AT FET FET FEn FET FET FEr
For the 12 months ended ~ HZ2013512A31R
31 December 2013 IE12f8 B
Impairment loss (reversed) 2% REREMNFIAL
recognised on trade and  JRER% (BE),/
bills receivables, net BRFE (2,089) 3412 (3,847) (232) (109) (26) 1 645 (2,245)
For the 16 months ended ~ E{Z2012% 128318
31 December 2012 Lt16{HA
Impairment loss (reversed) 2% RZBEENFIELZ
recognised on tradeand  (EIEX (BE)/
bills receivables, net BREE (288) 3412 9,051 297 248 ) 1 (29) 12,690
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. BXHERIEEHR (&)
(Continued)

Revenue from the Group’s products AEBEEMZEHERE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers AT ARERSI D AEBIKGIINBERFLERE 2

by products: AT

For the 12 months ended  For the 16 months ended

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
H 22013128310 HZ2012412A31H
L1218 B IF16fE A
HK$'000 F#&7 HK$000 F/& 1

Production and sales of dyed fabrics, sewing threads EREECH BORRY (M)
and yarns (note) 5,976,440 7,977,076
Production and sales of garments BB RBERK 966,367 1,190,013
6,942,807 9,167,089

Note: The balance substantially represents revenue from sales of dyed fabrics for the year/ M5t REE /BN L EIELE T T ERAMEEH-
period.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-

current assets (note) at the end of the reporting period:

6. EXBERAIBER (H)
b 19 A Y
REERE AEM2ZIERBEE (H2) R

g ZoHfrmT:

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

M2013F12A31H R2012%12A31H

HK$'000 & T HK$000 T T

The PRC F 1,570,681 1,749,854
Hong Kong ak 88,443 77,599
America e 188 173
Sri Lanka HEHER 173,791 166,550
Others Hibi R 621 768
1,833,724 1,994,944

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the 16
months period ended 31 December 2012.

W ERBEETBIERERAEE -

EHRIBEFPZEHR

MEZE2013412 4318 L E RFZE2012612A
1A LLI6EAMME HEXKEENETEFP 2 EXE
EAREEEEEREEBI0%

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAKN
For the 12 months ended  For the 16 months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
#HZ2013F12A31H HZ2012412A31H
IE12{8 A 1F16fE A
HK$'000 T HK$000 T/

Finance costs on: BERA:
Bank and other borrowings wholly repayable BRFERZHEEZ

within five years RITREMEE 36,419 87,283
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8. INCOME TAX

8. FifEM™
For the 12 months ended
31 December 2013

For the 16 months ended
31 December 2012

HZ2013%12831H HZ2012%12831H
k1218 A 11618 A
HK$'000 T HK$'000 F %71
Current tax: REERE:
Hong Kong N 2,721 625
The PRC H 13,612 8,849
Other jurisdictions B Rl A 1,876 146
18,209 9,620
(Over)/under provision in prior years: BAEFE (REERE) BEIR:
Hong Kong N 612 562
The PRC H (758) (2,086)
Other jurisdictions HibrlEmE (264) (289)
(410) (1,813)
Overprovision for the total tax undercharged BAFEIURBREEREE
in previous years (8,040) -
9,759 7,807
Deferred tax (note 19); BRBIE (M5E19)
Hong Kong N 206 (64)
The PRC H (24,372) (3,543)
Other jurisdictions HEiy s 117 104
(24,049) (3,503)
(14,290) 4,304
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8. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 December 2012: 16.5%)

of the estimated assessable profit for the year/period.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%. Certain of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled
to exemption from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two calendar years
and thereafter, they are entitled to 50% relief from the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the following three calendar years (the “Tax Holiday”). The
reduced tax rate for the relief period is 12.5% for such periods. The Tax

Holiday was expired on 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the profit
generated from a subsidiary of the Company is entitled to exemption from
the Sri Lanka income tax until April 2014. Accordingly, no provision for the

income tax was made on the profit for both periods.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD") initiated a tax audit on the Company and its subsidiaries for the
years of assessment from 2001/02 onwards. In March 2008, 2009 and
2010, February 2011, January 2012 and February 2012, notices of
estimate additional assessment (the “Protective Assessments”) for the
years of assessment 2001/02, 2002/03, 2003/04, 2004/05, 2005/06 and
2005/06 in an aggregate amount of HK$14,352,000, HK$19,844,000,
HK$18,390,000, HK$62,834,000, HK$35,019,000 and HK$12,343,000,
respectively, were issued to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the

Company by the IRD.
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8. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year of assessment
2003/04, out of the aggregate amount of HK$18,390,000, two Protective
Assessments of HK$4,375,000 issued to the Company and a Hong Kong
subsidiary, respectively, were in effect alternative assessments to that of an
overseas subsidiary. Regarding the Protective Assessments for the year of
assessment 2004/05, out of the aggregate amount of HK$62,834,000, two
Protective Assessments of HK$2,266,000 and HK$23,194,000 issued to
the Company and a Hong Kong subsidiary, respectively, were also in effect
alternative assessments to that of the above overseas subsidiary. Regarding
the Protective Assessments for the year of assessment 2005/06, out of
the aggregate amount of HK$47,362,000, two Protective Assessments of
HK$1,687,000 and HK$15,985,000 issued to the Company and a Hong
Kong subsidiary, respectively, were also in effect alternative assessments to

that of the above overseas subsidiary.

Objections against the Protective Assessments were lodged. For the
years of assessment 2001/02 and 2002/03, full amounts were held over
unconditionally. For the years of assessment 2003/04, 2004/05 and
2005/06, amounts were held over on the condition that Tax Reserve
Certificates in the amount of HK$1,600,000, HK$23,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 were purchased in May 2010, April 2011 and March 2012,

respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has submitted a
settlement proposal, on a complete without prejudice basis, to the IRD in
order to finalize the tax audit and the tax provision of the Group for the years
of assessment 2001/02 to 2011/12. After negotiations, the Group has finally
come up with an agreement with the IRD that the total tax undercharged
for the years of assessment 2001/02 to 2011/12 is approximately
HK$33,000,000, and the related interest payable and compound penalty
is approximately HK$9,300,000 in aggregate (collectively referred as “Total
Tax Payment”), while the Group has purchased tax reserve certificates
totaling HK$34,600,000 for the aforesaid years of assessment. The Group
has then redeemed the tax reserve certificates to offset part of the Total Tax
Payment and settle the remaining portion by cash. Since a tax provision of
HK$41,000,000 has been made for the year ended 31 August 2011, the
Group has concluded the Total Tax Payment and credited the tax being over-

provided during the year.
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81,687,000/ 7T 115,985,000/ 7T 5 Bl 8 Hi 45 7
NEIR—EEMB AR NE R LG Figsh
BB A RRBEMERT L 2 R B Al 5HRT R

BULEREEFHEEDRE - 2001/02%
2002/03RBFE 2 2B HERRERGE
f12003/04 ~ 2004/05 % 2005/06: 3 Fi FE 2 £ 58 E
2 BIR20104E5 8 - 201144 A R201243 A B B
1,600,0005% 7T * 23,000,000 7T % 10,000,000/
TEZ TSR R

BZE2013F12A3IB EFEHM  AEBE AR
BREZ2HEEEMNNOMBREREE NESCT
A AR £ E2001/02E2011/12 3 H FENFHERE
R RE SEEE AEERKEARKRE
FX 1 3% + [ 22001/0222011/12:3 11 4F /€ HR R A9
LU B 75 48 58 #9 /533,000,0007 7T+ K FE 1< 48 5
8 Kk REHET A £ 4149,300,000/% 7T (4578 A
Mafisl) MASEEH LR EFEBES
#£34,600,0007# 7T f#Hi 75 o Bt - A E 2 E
FEH AN @BT W ABSENB T
7 AREIZ201148A31 B ILFE D EH IS #
141,000,000/ 7T + 7N 5 B JA 78 4F [ 48 4 1@ B 3K
REt AR BB -
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8. INCOME TAX (Continued)

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 19.

The tax (credit) charge for the year/period can be reconciled to the profit/

(loss) before taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows:

8. Fr8® (M)

BEEERIAZ FFIBENMEEL

=FE /RN EREROTIR (FHA) X
BRBATRF, (1R BRI T

For the 12 months ended
31 December 2013

For the 16 months ended
31 December 2012

B Z2013512A31H B Z201212A31H
LL12{8A 168 A
HK$'000 F% 7 HK$000 F# 7T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRFa RN,/ (51) 86,398 (333,457)
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or losses BEEBFHEERNER
in the jurisdiction concerned B ETENTE (15,491) (83,798)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose ERTENROREY 2 6,058 34,866
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose WABERBNT B2 (5,375) (13,220)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (8,450) (1,813)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised BWEBBARERNNBLE 29,762 88,497
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised HtEERER GRS E 9,138 4,546
Income tax at concessionary rate REIREHEOREH - 1,738
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised ERRATAHERANTIEER (23,617) (4,194)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously not recognised & F @1 AR £ BT H 1B (5,815) (21,719)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax on PRC and A B RBIN B A ENR L
overseas subsidiaries BRERER R (502) (605)
Others Hith 2 6
Tax (credit) charge for the year/period =REE/HBHE GIA) X (14,290) 4,304
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

REE HEEF, (FHHE)

For the 12 months ended
31 December 2013

For the 16 months ended
31 December 2012

B Z2013512A31H B Z201212A31H
IF12{8 A 11618 A
HK$'000 F% 7 HK$000 F% 7T
Profit/(loss) for the year/period has been arrived =REE/HBERN/ (EE)
at after charging: EHE T FISIE:
Auditors’ remuneration i a| 3,678 4,214
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRABBREZEERA 6,188,170 8,379,813
Depreciation of investment properties (note 14) RENEZHE (Hi214) 246 59
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 15) )% - #22 LRE 2T E (H:#15) 259,258 343,883
Employee benefits expense EERMZL
(including directors’ emoluments set out in note 10) (BEENHFIOZESHE) 953,548 1,218,138
Impairment loss recognised on trade and bills BREEEREBRERFIEL
receivables, net AEBLXFE = 12,690
Loss on disposaliwritten-off of property, HE/HEnE #BRIGEzER
plant and equipment * 12,483 2,955
Net exchange losses # (& 5 B8 FE 14,172 1,358
Release of prepaid lease payments included in BEEATEEANERNHERES T
- cost of sales —HERA 2,592 3,455
— administrative expenses -THER 17 23
and after crediting: REEA:
Amortisation of deferred income* BB 55 1,458 1,946
Interest income* B A 7,411 15,221
Net rental income from investment properties* BEMENHSBANFE" 2,370 413
Net gain from derivative financial instruments * TEEMTI Az WaFE" 47,907 2,771
Impairment loss reversed on trade and bills EEREBEMHEL
receivables, net WEBXFERD 2,245 -
Government grants* (note) BIwHEL* (B17t) 766 47,907
* Included in other income o BEEEMGKAR
# Included in other gains and losses # BEEEMEEREEBA
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9. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD (Continued)

Note: Government grants for the 16 months ended 31 December 2012 mainly represent
a grant of HK$37,145,000 received from the PRC local government authority as a
compensation to the Group for relocating and disposing of certain property, plant and
equipment. There were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (31 December 2012:

sixteen) directors during the year/period were as follows:

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2013

HA Kam
On, YEN GONG
LI Lan Victor Gordon Zhengyi

e} ERZ BR# BiTE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEx FEn FET FEx

9. REE HHEERN (EH)
(%)

Wit #Z=20129F12 A31 R 1E16/E8 B 2 BUT # 8 == 2 5 IR
£ 55 B 38,77 B 237,145, 0007 72 1186 - DA 1 3
MEE R ES TR R BT
AR B2 o

10. EEREEMESEHR

) EXM=

REEHIREC s E 45907 (20124512 A31
B:l6f)hE—UEEHMMLMT:

B Z2013F12A31H 12/EA

CHow
ZHAO NG Kwok  Wing Kin, YANG ZHANG
Yao Tung Anthony Shibin Chong Total

il HER JEES BiE 3] aE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEn FET FET FEx FEn FET

(note)
(Hit)
Fees we - - 117 200 - 250 200 200 - 967
Other emoluments Eife
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 2,542 3,817 1,555 - - - - = = 7914
Equity-settled share-based payments Mgz & E M IRKH B
B3 - 1,157 429 - - - - - - 1,586
Retirement benefits scheme BIRERE IR
contribution - 286 93 - - - - - - 379
2,542 5,260 2,194 200 - 250 200 200 - 10,846
Note: ES

Dr. YEN Gordon was re-designated from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director on 31
May 2013.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year.

BEHITLR013F5A31 B AT EEHERINTE
Eo

REFE AEEYEAEAESHMES  UE
% 1 BB 7N R [ 3 7 A\ 7 5 B i ) 2 R o5 B BB A
B RFEMBESHETMMNE -
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10.

(a)

INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

For the 16 months ended 31 December 2012

10.

(a)

EEREEMER (H)

E=M= (8)

B ZE20124F12 431 H 1E161E A

HA Kam WONG CHOW FUNG YEH
HA Chung On,  HAHon YEN GONG ZHAO NG Kwok Kwong CHEN CHEN  Wing Kin, YANG  YiHao,  ZHANG CHAN
LI Lan Fong Victor Kuen  Gordon  Zhengyi Yao Tung Chi Rong  Minghong  Anthony Shibin Yvette Chong ~ YukYin Total
3% By EBR  EEE  RERR  RER R EER  IBT RE  REYE BB BtE BEGE FE REE 4k
HKSU00  HKSDO0  HKSUO0  HKSDOD  HKSUOO  HKSOOD — HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSUO0  HKSDOD  HKSUO0  HKSOOD  HKSUO0  HKSOOD  HKS D00
fér TEr FEr FEr FEn TEn TEr TEr FEr FEr FEn TEn TEr TEr FEr FEr TEn
(note ) (note i) (note fi) (note ) (note iv) (notev)  (notes) (ot vi) (noteix) — (notev)  (note i) (notex)
(note vi) (note vii)
(i) (W) (#idtin) (Heti) (W) (i) () (W) (Witv) (Wit
(Hati) (W
Fees . . . . W Som . w18 % LB
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits - 15682 5089 1020 4446 - - - - - - - - - - - 63
Equity-settled share-based
payments - - 1973 - 1973 - - - - - - - - - - - 3%
Refirement benefits TR |
scheme confributon #3 B e ®® - - e
- 15682 7444 1,089 6,715 100 - 333 153 - - 267 114 153 - 5 32105

Notes: Mat -

(i)  Madam LI Lan, Mr. GONG Zhengyi and Mr. CHEN Rong were appointed as Executive ()  ZT# &+ SFH L MEREER2012F6 A6 #
Directors of the Company on 6 June 2012. ZEARNNBRITES -

(i)~ Mr. HA Chung Fong has resigned as Chairman and appointed as Honorary Chairman (i) B4 R2012F6 A6H BHE X FBGS  WES(E
of the Company on 6 June 2012. He has resigned as Executive Director and has BRNRNEBEERF - HR20126F11 A27BETHITE
continued to act as Honorary Chairman and senior consultant of the Company with ERK TEBERTAARRBEBEFE R AR -
effect from 27 November 2012.

(i)~ Mr. HA Hon Kuen has resigned as Executive Director on 6 June 2012. (i) EEEEEN2012F66HBTHITEEHS -

(iv)  Mr. ZHAO Yao was appointed as Executive Director on 27 November 2012. (iv) MEREAMN2012F11A27THERTARNITES-

(v)  Mrs FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette and Mr. WONG Kwong Chi have resigned as  (v) BEEMEL LR THZRER2012F6 A6 B IE L
Independent Non-Executive Directors on 6 June 2012. ERITEEW -

(vi)  Mr. CHEN Rong has resigned as Executive Director on 27 November 2012. (i) FBRBEAER2012F11A27HBHTHITE SR

(vii) Mr. ZHANG Chong and Mr. CHEN Minghong were appointed as Non-Executive  (vii) 3RJB4E4 RIS AR201266 A6 A EEE A3EH
Director on 6 June 2012. TE=S-

(viii) Mr. CHEN Minghong has resigned as Non-Executive Director on 27 November 2012. (viil) BRI ER2012611 B27 HEHIFFATTE EBTS -

(ix)  Mr. YANG Shibin was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 6 June  (ix) 5 HELAR20126F6 A6 EL T BB IFNITE
2012. E

(x)  Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin has retired as Non-Executive Director on 12 January 2012. (x)  BRIBBRENR2012F1812BBTIFATEERS -

During the period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the period.

R AEBESEREMESINME  AE
7% I BR 7N 55 [ 3 70 N 7R B2 [ s 1) A2 B i B Bk
E-THRBEEERETAME -
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

10. EEREEMEER (H)

(b) EEM=
The five highest paid employees included one (31 December 2012: three) HEMEAI5ZEEBIEIA (2012F12A318 :3
directors, whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of i) E & - HEN & B0 Ll BT (a) « 82 4L

the remaining four (31 December 2012: two) employees are as follows: (20124 12A318 : 2f) EEWE ST ¢

For the 12 months ended
31 December 2013

For the 16 months ended
31 December 2012

HZ2013%12831H HZ2012412A31H
L1218 A 1F16fE A
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/E T
Salaries and other benefits HeREMRER 17,853 6,418
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRERIFEIER 224 422
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREEURDAER 2R 1,366 3,306
19,443 10,146

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZBES N FUAT4R

For the 12 months ended
31 December 2013
#Z2013F12A31H
L1286 A

For the 16 months ended
31 December 2012
HZE2012612A31H
IE16{8 A

HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,000 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$6,000,000 to HK$6,500,000
HK$10,000,000 to HK$10,500,000

2,000,000/ 7t £2,500,0007% 7T
2,500,0017% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T
3,500,0007% 7T £4,000,0007% 7
4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007% 7T
6,000,0007% 7T £6,500,0007% 7
10,000,0007% 72 £ 10,500,000 7T
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were

within the following bands:

10. EEREEMEEH (F)

) mAEEEME
ENENEREREREZMEN FUTA

Al

For the 12 months ended  For the 16 months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012

BIZ2013F12431R  EE2012F12A31H

1128 A 1F1618 7

Nil Z 1 2

Below HK$1,000,000 11,000,000/ 7T 1 1

HK$1,500,000 to HK$3,000,000 1,500,0007% 70 £3,000,000/ 7 1 1

HK$5,000,000 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,000/ 7 25,500,000/ 7T 1 -

HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,500,000 6,000,0007% 7T £7,500,0007% 7T - 2

HK$15,000,000 to HK$15,500,000 15,000,000;8 7T 15,500,000/ 7T - 1
11. DIVIDENDS 11. BB

For the 12 months ended  For the 16 months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012

HZE2013F12A31H HZE2012%12HA31H
L1258 A IF16fE A
HK$'000 T 7T HK$000 F/& T
Dividend recognised as distribution during the year/period: =FE /HREERADEZRE :
2012: Nil (2011 final dividend of HK1 cent) per share 20124 : T (20115 AR EFRUB) - 7,940

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both periods.

The final dividend of HK2 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil) per share, amounting to approximately HK$24,061,000
(2012: Nil) in total, has been proposed by the directors of the Company and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

T 70 ] A 9 3 4 2 A5 sl B P AR B,

ARAEFERRNEE20I3F12A310 L F
B2 RE BB =2 L (20124 : F) - & H A
24,061,000/ 7T (20124F « &) » W A 5 B R0 F&
BRI K& L
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12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) and diluted earnings per share

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

12. 8REF, (EE)
AATREABESBERRF, (1) RES
A TR T A B -

For the 12 months ended  For the 16 months ended

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
#HZ2013F12A31H B Z2012412A31H
L1218 A IF16fE A
HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F/& T
Earnings/(loss) 2R/ (H8)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period attributable to owners of ~ BEFEFREREF/ (FE) REERT
the Company for the purposes of basic earnings/(loss) FAZADRAIBEAREREE/
and diluted earnings per share HEAF,/ (B8) 91,304 (324,167)
For the 12 months ended  For the 16 months ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
HZ2013%12831H HZE2012412A31H
k1218 A 1F16fE A
Number of shares RAEE
Number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic R ESREARR /(BB REEAF
eamnings/(loss) and diluted earnings per share TRz ERAREA 1,203,046,960 969,192,362

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2013 and the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
because the adjusted exercise prices of those options calculated in
accordance with HKAS 33 “Earnings Per Share” are higher than the average

market price of the shares for the year/period.

MR RIEEE G ERIFE33 [GRaF ] 55
ARRHARITRBERE 2 EHBITEESRRD
RRFE/ B2 FamE Bt 8822013
F12A31A L FE REE20125612A31H 1E16/H
AMEZzEREERNE Y BRRZTERED
i oAt
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13. PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO

SHAREHOLDERS

Profit attributable to shareholders includes an amount of HK$10,007,000
(2012: loss HK$9,420,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statement of the Company.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

13. RREMEF, (BR)

A% 5 e (5 22 KB 45 10,007,00058 7T (20124F : 518
9,420,000/ 7T) ' ER AR BB B RER AR -

14. REWHE

HK$'000 T 7T

COST
At 1 September 2011

Reclassification from land and buildings

At 31 December 2012

Currency realignment

Reclassification from buildings

At 31 December 2013

DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2011
Provided for the period

At 31 December 2012
Currency realignment

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2013

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

B
201149 A1H
e 4 3 2 1B JH

2012412 H31H

SN E R
A 5 8 B

M2013%12A31H

nE
R201149A1H
= R BHE

M2012412 A31H

SN E R

EFERE

MR2013%12H31H

AR E (B
2013512 A31H

2012412 A31H

2,607

2,607

324
31,175

34,106

59

59

246

306

33,800

2,548
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2013
was HK$117,580,000. The fair value has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an
independent property valuer. The valuation was determined by income
approach, direct comparison method and Depreciated Replacement
Cost approach (2012: vacant possession, direct comparison method and
depreciated replacement cost approach). The change of valuation technique
results in a measurement that is equally or more representative of fair value

in the circumstances.

Direct comparison method is adopted where comparison based on prices
realised on actual sales of comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and disadvantages of each

property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of market values.

Income approach is a technique in which the estimated stream of future
benefits may be enjoyed by reason of ownership, usually the anticipated or
projected earnings, is processed to indicate the amount measured through
capitalization of net income or application of multiples derived from financial
analysis of similar type of properties.

“Depreciated Replacement Cost” approach requires an estimate of the
new replacement costs of the buildings and structures of the property from
which deductions are then made to allow for age, conditions, functional

obsolescence, etc.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’

highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation.

14. BE&W* (&)

REEMEZEEWER2013FI2A3IBHNAFEE
#117,580,0007%8 - A A FBETI BB
HEM Y AT EAABRAREITOGEETER
H o BRAGETRUBA L BERLBUERITESR
BRAE (20124 # HELBUERITE
BEERAE)EE - HEBTNEHEBN TR
MTHRAFEEESREAERREZGFE

7‘—\ :I:

HRUEBENRBEER O E R HUL B ER 2 &
RERETHERKRA -REFLFHELER:
GEmEE B RS Z R B EETT
DT WAFAEERYEZ [ERME R K ERE -

RERRNERTR eHERBEERMZEMA
AARRMERE CBE RIEHINEN) #EITR
B DAE O BRE B A E LS E R
MEMBANA/ZEBAERGER-

ESERA| AR EEHYLESREEY
FEERA - LY IR ORI ERS
YB3 -

REMEZ AFEERFERETHERAFEER

E-RAVEEFEIANEEME L ZFEEKER
BRKE REYMEZERBZRITEER -

LR EMENBEREZEEFHRE0F (AR
RERE)NE-

AEEFERENENHERDED R,/ HES
1 -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

14. RE&W* (&)

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

R2013%12831H R2012412A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T
The carrying value of investment properties shown WERMREENZE ERERSE:
above comprises:
Investment properties situated in Hong Kong held URBENRHREERFL
under medium-term leases RENME 2,439 2,548
Investment properties situated in the PRC held IR BRI+ A ERAE 2
under medium-term land use rights BEME 31,361 -
33,800 2,548
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - HeE R R1E
The Group KE
Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
XABER B -£E
HEMLH B kE%E  BERES EH EEIR “E
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FiET FET FET FET FET
Cost KA
At 1 September 2011 R201159A1H 23,498 1,015,514 835,134 2,133,878 31,140 21,307 4,060,471
Currency realignment NEBREZSE (13) 1,632 797 27,022 3 420 29861
Additions B0 - - 17,233 52,283 4,166 25,714 99,3%
Reclassifications to: HEz:
~ investment properties ~-RENE (1,936) (3,144) - - - - (5,080)
- others —H1t - - 4,500 - - (4,500) -
Disposals/written-off HE/f# - - (24,644) (31,793) (7,027) - (63,464)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEWBRE (#:£39) - (46,933) (16,297) (38,131) - (3,166) (104,527)
At 31 December 2012 RO0125128318 21,549 967,069 816723 2143259 28,282 39775 4016657
Currency realignment NEREZE 1 1,994 206 232 (142) 513 2,804
Additions 0 - 2,473 3,824 70,311 749 24,586 101,943
Reclassifications to: FEz:
~ investment properties ~-RENE (36,515) - - - - (36,515)
- others —Eft - 29,945 1,295 - - (31,240) -
Disposals/written-off HE/f# - - (20,039) (35,544) (3,390) - (58,973)
At 31 December 2013 #2013512A318 21,550 964,966 802009 2178258 25,49 38634 405916
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15. Y15 - s R skt (4R)
AEE (8)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
The Group (Continued)

Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
leasehold land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KARER B #B8
HENLH BF kRE BEREE ] EEIR “E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Depreciation and impairment FEREE
At 1 September 2011 #2011F9A1R 12,376 204,443 511,065 1,154,966 22,310 - 1,905,160
Currency realignment NEHREZS - 188 203 26,814 (24) - 27,181
Provided for the period REEARE 310 55,889 76,760 207,457 3467 - 343,883
Eliminated on reclassification to AREREMERMH
investment properties (885) (1,588) - - - - (2,473)
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE/FEENE - - (22,785) (16,195) (6,284) - (45,264)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries & 1 B A &% # 3
(note 39) (Ht39) - (6,829) (5,837) (26,174) - - (38,840)
At 31 December 2012 #2012 124316 11,801 252,103 559,406 1,346,868 19,469 - 2,189,647
Currency realignment NEBEER - 354 (241) (166) (166) - (219)
Provided for the year REEER 214 41,728 46,858 167,974 2,484 - 259,258
Eliminated on reclassification to AREREMERMH
investment properties - (5,340) - - - - (5,340)
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /N - - (19,583) (19,013) (3,344) - (41,940)
At 31 December 2013 20135124314 12,015 288,845 586,440 1,495,663 18,443 - 2,401,406
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2013 20135124314 9,535 676,121 215,569 682,595 7,056 33,634 1,624,510
At 31 December 2012 20124124314 9,748 714,966 257,317 796,391 83813 39,775 1,827,010
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. W% - B RHRE (FE)

The Company Vi N/
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
Bi-#E
RfE B “E
HK$000 F &1 HK$000 F%7T HK$000 F/& 7T
Cost RA&
At 1 September 2011 R201149A1H 40,100 4,420 44,520
Additions i 3,444 1,269 4713
Disposals/written-off e/ (5,390) (877) (6,267)
At 31 December 2012 W2012412A31H 38,154 4,812 42 966
Additions #m 493 516 1,009
Disposals/written-off HE/H (1,737) (920) (2,657)
At 31 December 2013 W2013%12A31H 36,910 4,408 41,318
Depreciation e
At 1 September 2011 R201149A1H 36,365 2,714 39,079
Provided for the period TR 1,876 830 2,706
Eliminated on disposals/written-off e /R (5,387) (877) (6,264)
At 31 December 2012 #2012412A31H 32,854 2,667 35,521
Provided for the year RFEERE 1,022 668 1,890
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /F R (1,737) (920) (2,657)
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A31H 32,339 2,415 34,754
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31H 4,571 1,993 6,564
At 31 December 2012 2012512 A31H 5,300 2,145 7445

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, Pt MR G ERE 2K AR ET AT RIAE
after taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line B A B G ETE -

basis.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group REE

The carrying value of properties shown above comprises:

Freehold and leasehold land and buildings

15. Y15 - s R sk fe ()

A ERRMEREERR:

Construction in progress

XARBEREEN L HARER REIR
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
RW2013F R20124 20134 R2012F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
HK$'000 F%7 HK$000 F/& 1 HK$'000 F& HK$'000 Fi& T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong under REEUFBEERE
medium-term leases MEELH 7,200 7,415 = -
Freehold land outside Hong Kong REBAINGKAF B L 2,334 2,333 = -
Buildings erected on land in Hong Kong ~~ RBEBNFHAEEEER
held under medium-term leases T FREF 3,247 3,379 = -
Buildings erected on land in the PRC Fh ELAR B L (0 B R 10
held under medium-term land use rights £ F&IEF 601,744 638,690 33,319 39,460
Buildings erected on freehold and land REBUINKAFE R
held under medium-term leases outside AR EREFERH L LM
Hong Kong (note) g5 (Hz) 71,131 72,897 315 315
685,656 724,714 33,634 39,775

Note: The directors of the Company consider that the allocation of buildings erected on the
freehold and leasehold land cannot be reliably separated for disclosure.

M RRREERE NKARARBEN I E2ETF
DB BE R S0 ) PR R o
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16. AN HEERIE
At 31 December 2013
2012612 A31H
HK$000 87T

R2013%12A31H

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
HK$'000 ¥

114

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & B EMa
At 31 December 2012

31 December 2013 2013F12H31H
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
112,880

ERABE:
110,394

REEHEME

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:
Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong under MRBEBRINAREEE S E
medium-term leases or medium-term land use rights TiFEREFENHELN
RERMEMAT
MBEE 2,610 2,607
FRBEE 107,784 110,273
110,394 112,880

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current assets
Non-current assets
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BB EE

The Group AN S
Software
B
HK$°000 F& T
COST 2%

At 1 September 2011 and 31 December 2012
Reclassification from deposits paid for previous years

Additions

At 31 December2013

AMORTISATION
At 1 September 2011 and 31 December 2012

Provided for the year

At 31 December 2013

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

M201149A1R k2012612 A31H
REEEEL MR B
210

MR2013%F12H31H

e
#20119F9H 1 H k2012612 A31H
EFERE

MR2013%F12H31H

SREE
2013512 H31H

201212 A31H

18,371
11,913

30,284

30,284
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. FEIL I 2 Bl R &

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

M2013F12A31H R2012412A31H

HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& 1

Unlisted shares, at cost LR ARSI 28,156 28,156
Deemed contribution (note) WREBTE (H1:7) 4,612 4,060
32,768 32,216

Amounts due from subsidiaries )G 3,717,334 3,762,721
Less: Impairment loss recognised W ERRRERK (546,023) (546,023)
3,171,311 3,216,698

Amounts due to subsidiaries U ENGIERE 1,000,810 1,462,462

Movements in the impairment loss recognised are as follows:

ERERBERRZESHIT

At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

R2013%12831H 20124 12A31H

HK$'000 & HK$'000 F %

Balance at beginning of the year/period F /WS 546,023 546,025
Impairment loss reversed BEERERXLX - (2)
Balance at end of the year/period F /B 546,023 546,023

Note: Deemed contribution arises from the equity-settled share-based payments incurred by

the Company but attributable to its subsidiaries” employees.

it RARMELAMBERAMNBERARREZ AEGZEH
VAR AR B 2R 2 (R BAR R A
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and repayable on
demand. Except for an aggregate amount of HK$402,608,000 (31
December 2012: HK$1,003,316,000) which bears interest rate with
reference to the average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings of the

Group plus a spread, the balances are interest-free.

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts (net of impairment
loss recognised) of HK$3,171,311,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$3,216,698,000) were not impaired as a result of the satisfactory
assessment of the current financial position and business prospects of those
subsidiaries by the management of the Group. An impairment loss has
been recognised if after the same assessment, the amount was considered
not recoverable. At the end of the reporting period, the impairment loss
recognised is related to individually impaired amounts and the relevant
subsidiaries are considered not in a good financial position to repay their
debts after assessing their net assets value, liquidity position and business

prospects.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

18. E{hMiIB AR = (&)

B B 23 )T AR RO R FE SR B M
M 2 € 58402,608,000/8 7T (201212 A31H :
1,003,316,000/ 7T) RIBR 4N L E 2L E A S
MEITIE SN T ERFEN EEEHE K
AlA%a .

REEHR AREAEEEEEREHZS
B QA2 BB MO & T AR AT AT
ZFHE Bt BB SR (RN EERZRE

1845)3,171,311,000% T (2012412 A318 :
3,216,698,000/4% 7T ) I £& 5 (B  fis) & #E 1T 48 (A &Y
AR AERIERRAEERE - Bl RRE
B RIREEIAR - TR Z IR EB R TR B /5
RMERBERETHEEFE RBEeR N RE
RIS BWAR BB BERE ) NERITHI Bk
N2 M EAE

RHE AR RBREER B NEERER -
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18. BIEMIB AR (&)

20134 K2012F 12 A31B AR AN EEME A
RSB

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Place/country of

incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
registration and share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital ~ capital held by the Company Principal activities
FMAYL/ BRTR KRR
BRREX BEH BRITRE/
MEARER FitEs BIR BRA/BBRA BRRAEENLE TEXK
Directly Indirectly
HE LiE:3
% %
Dongguan Fuquan Garment Co., Ltd. (nofe a) The PRC United States Dollar - 55.5  Production and sales of
REGREXERAR (Hita) 3 (“USD") 3,500,000 garments
3,500,000 1 SUE R R E K
RERIBREBRAF (note a) (Hiita) The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
F 14,000,000 7T garments
SUE R R E K
Dongguan Goldlink Thread Factory Co., Ltd. (hote a) The PRC HK$3,600,000 - 100 Manufacturing of sewing
RESERBMERRR (Hita) H 3,600,000/ 7T threads
REBEREBRAF (note a) (Hiita) The PRC HK$15,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
F 15,000,0007% 7T garments
SUE R R E K
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Knitting, dyeing, printing
Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) F 307,500,000% 71T and sales of dyed fabrics
REYHEBEGHBHABRAR (Hitb) HE - RE - BEA
HEBM
Folktune Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BEERRA 05 28T REER
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and
RHEZERAA BE 3,000,000/ 7 yamns
enkesEs
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Ltd. Canada Canadian Dollar (“CAD") 51 - Trading of fabrics and
MEX 300,100 (Common shares) garments
300,100/07¢ (&) MRKKE S
Goldlink Thread Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 - Trading of sewing threads
SELEBERDA £ 5,000,000/ 75 RORES
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place/country of

18. BEME AR R (&)

incorporation/ Issued and fully paid  Proportion of nominal value of
registration and share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
S, BRTR NG S
BEREE BEH BRTRE/
WEARERE FtEs,BR BRA/BERA BRRAEENLE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# M
% %
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns
ERERAT Bk 3,000,000/ 7T Ry E 5
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BESHEERAA B 28T KEKE S
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (nofe a) The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
IREENBERAR (Hita) H (2012: USD107,000,000) dyed fabrics and yarns
110,000,000% 75 HEg RABAMEECHR
(20124 :107,000,000% ) (=E
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holdings
BROEERERAA B 28T BAER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD26,000,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of
BRAMERERAR (Mita) ] (2012: USD24,000,000) garments
26,000,000% 7T HERHEKK
(20124 = 24,000,000%T)
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee (“LKR") - 60  Khnitting, dyeing, printing
Republic of 985,000,000 and sales of dyed fabrics
Sri Lanka 985,000,0004 £ FE L FA 2 B
HEHFRENE (TEE]) HEEM
FEEA
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BFAYBERDA B 28T BAER
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs
BE(CRMBEEERSE)ERAR ! 100,000%] and chemicals
RYRECHES
LERESREHBERADE (note a) (Hiita) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H AR 5,000,0007C ehES
FINEBNGHBRBRAF (note a) (Hiita) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
H AR #35,000,0007T ehES
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5  Production and sales of
BBAMERERAR (Mita) ] 800,000 7T garments

SUERBERR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place/country of

18. BB AR R (&)

incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of nominal value of
registration and share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital  capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMEL, BRTR NG NS
BRREX BEH BRITRE/
WEAREE FitEs,BR BRA/BERA BRRAEENLE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# B
% %
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 55.5  Trading of garments
HBEBR AR 5 1,000,000 7t REKES
B RESNRBRAT (note a) (ffita) The PRC USD60,500,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
F (2012: USD40,500,000) dyed fabrics and yarns
60,500,000% T - REAEERH R
(20124 : 40,500,000% 7T ) (=K
Notes: Hiat -
a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC a. RABEAINEBEREX IO AR -
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC b. RABELAEELENEERAKIHRF -

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length. Details of the subsidiaries, which
were disposed of or deregistered during the year/period, are set out in note
39.

None of the subsidiaries had any debentures outstanding at the end of the

year/period or at any time during the year/period.

NERAFIOMBARNDERARREZTRAE
HEFEXERAEERREHRNEERARE
FEEZENMRI -ARAEFTRRHTIEA
MEARNFEEIRERBAN TR GFHERNE
FE/HEELENBUEEMINE AR ZF1EH
HTEE39 ©

RRFE/HRRERRERFE, BEEME
- B AR E I EREA -
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19. DEFERRED TAX 19. IELE IR

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and the — ANEEE K AR &) FA AN R 245 B & i 1+ i o5 Hif g
Company and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting R T ZREEHIBEE (EE) RESFHOT
periods are as follows:

The Group KEEF

Accelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Others Total
RABERE HEEE Hit #E
HK$000 F& T HK$000 F&ET HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T

(note)

(Hiit)
At 1 September 2011 862 (671) (22,825) (22,634)
Credited to profit or loss (199) (32) (3,272) (3,503)
At 31 December 2012 20124124318 663 (703) (26,097) (26,137)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RERENME (FTA) 4,998 (4,683) (24,364) (24,049)

Reversal of deferred tax arising BRI 2 B R E

on deferred income - - 18,228 18,228
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A31H 5,661 (5,386) (32,233) (31,958)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from deferred income as

disclosed in note 29, unrealised profit on inventories and unrealised gain on transfer

of plant and equipment between subsidiaries and deferred tax liabilities arising from

withholding tax charged on certain PRC and an overseas subsidiary at the amounts of
HK$Nil (31 December 2012: HK$16,648,000), HK$3,500,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$2,458,000), HK$2,981,000 (31 December 2012: HK$3,314,000), HK$1,878,000

(31 December 2012: HK$2,380,000) respectively.

Wit BERARBEEERME20MMIE 2 BRWAMEE 2R
RRAEE FENAREZRATRMEARZ S
REGBBORERIE  ARE TP ENEQRR

—FEE SN B D R NBR VTR A E A RIRERIE R

& 9 5lA/ZTHE T (2012412A31H : 16,648,000/

7t) ~ 3,500,000/ 7T (20124F12 A31H : 2,458,000/

7T) ~ 2,981,000/ 7t (20124F12 A31H : 3,314,000/

7t) 11,878,000/ 7T (2012412 A31H : 2,380,000/

JT) e
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19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$718 million (31 December 2012: HK$837 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$33 million (31 December 2012: HK$4 million) of such
losses, which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries as it is considered by the management that future taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$685 million (31 December 2012: HK$833 million) tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31 December 2013, of the
above tax losses, an aggregate amount of approximately HK$467 million
(31 December 2012: HK$475 million) can be carried forward for five years
following the year/period when the losses were incurred. Other tax losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2013, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$56 million (31 December 2012:
HK$23 million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and
equipment between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance
for doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in
the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and holds
at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced rate of 5%
will be applied. No deferred tax has been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable to
such loss amounting to HK$5,900,000 (31 December 2012: Deferred tax
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits amounting to
HK$11,200,000). Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$117,351,000
(31 December 2012: HK$89,907,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

19. JEZERI R (&)

201312 A31 8 - 7<% M 7] FA E K 8 K SR & 7
B 7 48 FA 1 TE 5 B 40 4718,000,0007% 7T (20124F
12A31A : 837,000,000 7T ) ° i It T8 /&5 18 7 49
33,000,000 Jt (2012412 A31A : 4,000,000/
TIBERRA—HBEEHEBEEE WHARARE
THEBARMMEENHEEE KEEEEZER
RARRHERHBAGTEE LB IEERB BT
#) 7% 18 &5 18 /5685,000,0007% 7T (20124F12 A31
H : 833,000,000/ 7T.) F 7 B¢ T8 8 1% 28 #) & F| 3
R AR R AELERIBEE - 7M2013F 12831
H - FatFBIEE 18 - 4 $ 5 49467,000,0007% 7T
(2012%F12 A31H : 475,000,000 7T ) Al A E &
BIEFE HRBEET c KBS e
PR BRI EE 1T o

It 5N - 720135 12 A31 8 » 4 5 8 H b °] F18 &
B 2 £ 4 456,000,000/ 7T (2012412 A31A -
23,000,000/ 7T) ' F BB EHEA A2 MR &
BEABOAZE N FENASE  RIE
REEBEURFSE R - ARAEHEE ERD
BRI ER S TIRERER ARG ER
ZAIHMREREREABREHBEELE-

WIESEEHIA H2008F1A1B £ R
B S B R B AR MR & RS B 02008 4F B LA 12
FREORNA B SEZRI0%EMATER - 1
BB B A B A A f5 D25% 8 & 1R
BE BREAERMESY% R8P RHE AL &
% SR E A Y B R 2 25,900,000 7T 1 i
ERIBEAS (2012F12A318 - ERGA M BH
KZFRFIEEHERER11,200,0007% TT1E
HIREFTEAE) - B AEE AT ARG TR ER
B2 e - B 2= £ AR ATRE N A R s e
B BWIEARRPEANBERARFRFCERER
117,351,000 7T (2012412 A31H : 89,907,000
PET) AR A ISR AL B E R E R -
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19. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For an overseas subsidiary, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits of
HK$14,729,000 (31 December 2012: HK$13,780,000). The rate applied is

the domestic income tax rate.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

19. JEFERIE ()
H—RSNHBARME  AEECHRIREF
14,729,000/ 7t (2012412 A31H : 13,780,000
BIL) 2 BB E BEHRREBARE - FTER 2
BERZIHFEHIE-

A MBRRRN2INME - ETEERRE
ENBBEEHE - UTER2HM = OETEHE
eI

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

M2013F12A31H R2012412H31H
HK$'000 F# 7T HK$000 Fi# 7T
Deferred tax assets EEHBEE (34,043) (28,517)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 2,085 2,380
(31,958) (26,137)

The Company IN/N]

Accelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Total
RABERE BESE “E
HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T HK$000 F& T
At 1 September 2011 R201149A1H 268 (268) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZERNE/ (FTA) 157 (157) -
At 31 December 2012 W2012412A31H 425 (425) -
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZERNE/ (FTA) (228) 415 187
At 31 December 2013 W2013%12A31H 197 (10) 187

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$59,000 (31 December 2012: HK$4,288,000) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax has been recognised in respect of HK$59,000
(31 December 2012: HK$2,578,000) of such losses. As at 31 December
2012, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$1,710,000 tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

201312 A318 » AR & ] A 1E K 88 & 5k & 7
#) K 58 A 1 T8 /85 18 859,000/ 7T (20124712 A31
H : 4,288,000/ 7T ) B Bt L IEE 18 H #959,0007%8
7t (2012412310 : 2,578,000/ 7T ) R — 18
IRIERTE - N2012F 12 A31H - 8 THBITEE 18
1,710,000/ JC B K 86 TR SR B A SR M A A
BRAECHIBEE -HIEEBEERHAME
e
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20. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

In prior period, the Group entered into contracts with two insurance
companies which contain life insurance policies to insure against the
death of certain key members of management of the Group, with an
aggregate insured sum of approximately US$18.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$145.8 million). Under these contracts, the beneficiary
and policy holder is the Company. The Company has made upfront
payments of HK$36,178,000 in prior period. The monthly insurance costs
and administrative charges determined by the insurance companies will
be deducted from the account value. The insurers will declare interest
(including the guaranteed interest) to the Company on a monthly basis,
based on the amount of account value, at a rate to be determined at their
own discretion. Two of the key members left the Group on 7 December 2012
and 1 May 2013, the Group is in the process of changing the life insured

person to the other key member(s).

20. \ERBREZRE

RIBA M AEEEREREARG AL
ERREABRBRE AASEETEEEE
BEKEZBNEERR BRE\ARLOA
18,800,000 7T ( #8 % 7° £9145,800,0007% 7T ) °
BEZEE4 SRARREFEAREKAR -
AR TR BB B X AT 1R ©36,178,00078
T HAXMNBNRERREBAREENHITERE R
BHREEFBEP NG RBRARE A AREES
BERARBEREZFEAARRATRAE (B
FERFBEFL) - REE2E BB M2012F12 7
7AR2013F5A1AETE  AEEFTEHZRAE
BAHEMFEERE -

21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
R2013%12831H 20124 12A31H
HK$'000 7 HK$000 F& T
Spare parts 1 70,657 92,263
Raw materials F# 829,755 577,267
Work-in-progress M 334,255 300,907
Finished goods 2K 402,105 370,116
1,636,772 1,340,553

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. EXREBEEWRIE

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

20135128310 2012412 A31H

HK$'000 Fi& T HK$000 57T

Trade receivables EEREWTIE 1,009,495 1,045,456
Bills receivables FRENE 285,866 255,364
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (29,426) (40,902)
1,265,935 1,259,918
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its
trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables based on the payment due date net of allowance for doubtful
debts:

22. EXREEEWRE (&)
REBRHETH0XZORUMTLEEES -
EERBEEWHERENREME (ENHR
BRBE) MR IR D AT T

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

M2013F12A31H R2012%12A31H

HK$'000 T#&7 HK$000 F/& T

Not yet due sl 838,616 764,880
Overdue 1-30 days #HA1-30K 214,253 265,530
Overdue 31-60 days ##31-60% 101,191 108,753
Overdue >60 days B A0K 111,875 120,755
1,265,935 1,259,918

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are debtors with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$315,444,000 (31 December 2012:
HK$374,283,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are either
settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the historical

experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

AEEREZEMNEAHELA eFAREBERR
MEEEREMATHEERB -FEHEN SR
TEERBRENEFP -FPEERBEH TN
i A o AN 5% [ BE R 28 B3 O A OR1 (B M 2 5K PR IR
BYR R EERLS -

BIETEARE S 5 R 1R B IR IE 4 0 9 B9 FE R
BEA BRI /5315,444,0008 7T (20124612 A31
H :374,283,000/7T) - AR $E B E @Al - i
REEBXYBEAEHAZSLHECANEELE
ERRIE BT ERIR AR TUE - A% BT E
FUIELREBARE AEETERZSER
BAEEMERS-
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2. E¥ENEERWFEIE (F)
Trade and bills receivables that were past due but not impaired are as CEHEVERBEN LS E N ZEERZTIENT:

follows:

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

M2013F12A31H R2012612A31H

HK$'000 F# 1 HK$000 F& T

Overdue 1-30 days #H1-30K 214,253 265,530
Overdue 31-60 days #H31-60K 101,191 108,753
315,444 374,283

No interest is charged on the overdue trade debtors. The Group has BEIEEEKBER T AFE - AEBEC BB
provided fully for all trade receivables over 360 days because historical — 360K &) Ff A & 2 fE U 71 18 2 BHR S - 1tk 5
experience is such that trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days 7 i@ 1 48 5 78 7R 80 B #8 38360K 1 & ¥ [iE U 7008
are generally not recoverable. Trade receivables between 60 days and 360  —#& 2 £ XUk @ - 60K Z=360K 2 [ #) & 5 fE
days have been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,  FRIBJyIZfEET &AWL O£ I 22 B ERFER
determined by reference to past default experience. FREESE Mt R B -

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: REEBEZZHWT:

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

R2013%12831H 20124 12A31H

HK$'000 T HK$000 F& T

Balance at beginning of the year/period F/ BN 40,902 28,223

Currency realignment SN E 2 1 (1)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised on EEREBEYGEZRBEERE

trade and bills receivables, net (#m),/ TR THE (2,245) 12,690

Amounts written-off as uncollectible AAA e M En e (9,232) (10)

Balance at end of the year/period F /B 29,426 40,902

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included #2013 12A31H  BIEERKREES LtE0nA
in the allowance for doubtful debts with an aggregate balance of 29,426,000 st (2012412 A31H : 40,902,000
HK$29,426,000 (31 December 2012: HK$40,902,000) was individually EiL)MEENEZEEWRZIBEC @RETE AR
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over & AN @I Gt 3% S A 23 A E KR T -

these balances.
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23. AR FIE - RERHEMERRE

RECEIVABLES
The Group The Company
r5E NG|
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
M20135 M20124F M2013%F 720124
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31A8
HK$'000 F%& 7 HK$000 F&ET HK$'000 F/& 7T HK$000 F& T
Value-added tax recoverable AREEER 36,816 21,672 = -
Tax Reserve Certificates HHF - 34,600 = 3,000
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables % « T 7018 [ E A fE 308 154,330 110,132 4,311 6,497
191,146 166,404 4,311 9,497

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

24.TEEMT A

The Group The Company
AEE AAT
Current Current
" ne
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
R2013F H2012F 2013 H2012F
12A31RH 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 F%7 HK$000 F/& 1 HK$'000 F&7 HK$'000 F# T
Derivative financial assets TESHEE
Foreign currency forward contracts BEHINES L 14,170 2,044 12,238 1,901
Derivative financial liabilities TESHERE
Foreign currency forward contracts EHINER L - 515 - 515
Interest rate swaps Flx=H - 14,522 - 14522
- 15,037 - 15,037




!ﬁa Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %

31 December 2013 2013F12H31H

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The principal terms of the Group’s foreign currency forward contracts

outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Notional amount Currency conversion

At 31 December 2013:

41 contracts to sell USD137,000,000 USD1:RMB6.0648 to 6.3125
in total*

3 contracts to sell USD6,000,000 USD1:RMB6.3065 to 6.3245

in total

At 31 December 2012:

33 contracts to sell USD59,450,000 USD1:RMB6.2336 to 6.4470
in total”

4 contracts to sell USD1,680,000 USD1:RMB6.3125 to 6.3500

in total

The above foreign currency forward contracts will mature within one year

from the end of the reporting period.

The principal terms of the Group’s interest rate swaps outstanding at 31
December 2012 are as follows:

Notional amount Interest rate swaps

2 contracts with HK$910,000,000 From Hong Kong Interbank
in total* Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)
to fixed rates ranging from

3.65% to 3.95%

These contracts are entered into by the Company.

The above interest rate swap contracts were matured within one year from

the end of 31 December 2012.

BRI

4. fTHEE®MT A (&)

FEERUOT

HESE Exhg
M2013%12A311:

4119 & H 4 137,000,000 1377 1H.6.0648%
ETHAH AR#6.31257T
3t & H 4 $£6,000,000 135 7T 1,6.3065%
e 0k= 0] AR #6.32457T
M2012%12A311:

33N E H A 459,450,000 13T H6.2336%
ETHNEY AR ¥6.44707T

417 E H 4 $£1,680,000 13714 6.3125%
e 0k= 0] AR #6.35007T

LAUERHSNE S A B A MK R —F A

/Hgo

R2012F 128318 » AEBE MR HEH O F R85

ZEBERMT

HESE F 2 4 1A

2154 $£910,000,000 REBIRITRER

BSILHAH* B ([BBRT
REFRE|)EE
BN T3.65%
%£3.95%

Uil ESE il
BHR

B R2012412A31HE1IFE A
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24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

The fair values of the above derivative instruments are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on quoted
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on the
applicable yield curves of interest rates which were provided by counterparty

financial institutions.

25. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 6.00% (31 December 2012: 0.01% to 4.40%) per

annum.

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

24. FTES®MI A (8)

ERTETANAFEEDNRBEAREERS
6 DA ST 75 B A5 M R 41 0 8 P 6 R K et AR T
BENMSEMEXRFRBEREDTELEM

sl
FrE-

25. EHARITERURBITEREE

%
WEHRTEARBRTESKIETSER RN
F0.01%%E6.00% (2012412 A31H : 0.01% %
4.40% )&t 8 e

26. EXREEEMN A

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012

R2013%12A31F 720124128311

HK$'000 F# T HK$000 F% 7T

Trade payables EERMHE 515,406 488 414
Bills payables ZEENTE 486,375 295,298
1,001,781 783,712

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the payment

EERMNFERNRI A BENREDTT:

due date:
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
M2013F12A31H R2012412A31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$'000 F% T
Not yet due 38 458,408 405,062
Overdue 1-30 days #H1-30K 42,833 62,641
Overdue 31-60 days #HI31-60K 6,450 10,440
Overdue >60 days 1 HR B B60K 7,715 10,271
515,406 488,414
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26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

All the bills payables of the Group are not yet due at the end of the reporting
period.

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that payables are within the credit time frame.

27.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

6. EXRREEMNRE (&)
REEBE  REE2 A RBRNHREIRE

o

N

&

BEHNTHEERROKREI20R - AEEDE
BHRAREREER UWHRRENERROENEE
HAR A -

27. HitENREAREFER

The Group The Company
X&EE LN

At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
R2013% 20126 R2013% 201245
12A31H 12A31A 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 F#& 7 HK$000 F/& T HK$'000 F& 7 HK$'000 F& T
Other payables Hith e 50E 123,971 118,928 240 334
Accruals B ER 215,828 223,232 9,398 24,712
339,799 342,160 9,638 25,046

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

29. DEFERRED INCOME

In prior years, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000
for the purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise
as income over the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfillment
of the relevant conditions. An amount of HK$1,458,000 (31 December
2012: HK$1,946,000) was amortised as income during the year, with a

corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets previously recognised.

During the year, deferred tax arising on deferred income was reversed due to

offset against tax losses.

28. RFERBRRAIEA

ZEFRBALEEN B REEREE-

29. WA

RBEFE  AEREEW—IEBT#EL72,912,000
B ARBEETEE BN ERAER GG
BIZEBEEFRAFHERABRA-FR B
1,458,0005% JT (2012412 A31H : 1,946,000/
TEHARA  WERERNERZECHEEE
fEH AR R

RER RLERASIEZELEHAD #ELE - AEA
TEIRSHTR BB R -
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30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK

30. /BITRHMEE BITEX

OVERDRAFTS
The Group The Company
r5E NG|
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
M20135 H20124F M20135 720124
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31A8
HK$'000 F#& 7 HK$000 F&ET HK$'000 F/& 7T HK$000 F& T
Secured borrowings: BEREE:
Bank loans (note (a)) RITEH (M) 33,300 34,207 13,644 14,551
Import bills loans (note (a)) ENER(WitE) 54,978 226,136 - -
Unsecured borrowings: sERER:
Bank loans BITER 737,971 841,594 - h81,817
Import bills loans EOER 527,478 366,256 = -
Bank overdrafts RIEL - 7,751 = -
Other loan (note (b)) Hin &R (M) 1,817 7,129 1,817 7,129
1,355,544 1,483,073 15,461 603,497
Repayable as follows: AR TSI EREER:
On demand or within one year (note (c)) ~ EEREZSIEN (i) 838,946 1,242,486 15,461 362,910
More than one year, but not exceeding 1F A BT BB2E
two years 302,928 240,587 - 240,587
More than two years, but not exceeding 2F L\ HETHBIBYE
five years 213,670 - - -
1,355,544 1,483,073 15,461 603,497
Less: Amounts repayable on demand or B EEREBEXIFENIE
due within one year shown under SEBARYAERE
current liabilities
— bank borrowings due within - 1FERIHOBITEE
one year (837,129) (1,229,423) (13,644) (357,598)
— other loan due within one year —1FRIANEMER
(note (b)) (HizE ) (1,817) (5,312) (1,817) (5,312)
— bank overdrafts —RTEY - (7,751) - -
Amounts due after one year 1FRIEeE 516,598 240,587 = 240,587
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30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Bank loans of HK$33,300,000 and import bills loans of HK$54,978,000 (31
December 2012: HK$34,207,000 and HK$226,136,000) are secured by certain life
insurance policies as detailed in note 20.

(b)  The other loan of HK$1,817,000 (31 December 2012: HK$7,129,000) is unsecured
and borrowed from an independent third party, charged at 3.99% per annum.

(c)  The current liabilities include bank loans of HK$13,644,000 (2012: HK$94,551,000)
that are not scheduled to repay within one year. They are classified as current
liabilities as the related loan agreements contain a clause that provides the lenders
with an unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its own discretion.

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 1% to 3.35%
(31 December 2012: 0.4% to 3.35%) or London Interbank Offered Rate
plus a spread, ranging from 1.3% to 3.0% (31 December 2012: 1.30% to
3.0%) or cost of fund plus a spread, ranging from 1.5% to 2.0% or SIBOR
plus a spread, ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% per annum in Hong Kong. The
average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings of the Group is 2.54%
(31 December 2012: 3.03%) per annum. Some other bank borrowings of
the Group carry interest at fixed-rates ranging from 0.85% to 2.86% (31
December 2012: 1.35% to 7.26%) per annum.

The bank borrowings of the Company are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 1% to 3.35%
(31 December 2012: 0.4% to 3.35%) or SIBOR plus a spread, 1.0% per
annum. The average effective interest rate of the bank borrowings of the
Company is 3.27% (31 December 2012: 2.94%) per annum.

In addition, the average effective interest rate of the bank overdrafts of the

Group was 2.47% per annum for the period ended 31 December 2012.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required
to maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the year, the Group had
complied with all covenant ratios. In the previous period, the Group was in
breach of the bank loans covenant. The Group obtained waiver letters in
relation to the breach of covenant for the bank loans from relevant banks
and the lenders have agreed not to demand payment as a consequence of
the breach as at 31 December 2012.

PRSI RE

30. RITRAfEE H|ITEX
(%)

Bat:

(@)  #R{7E 33,300,000/ T I it O B 554,978,000/ 7T
(2012512 A31H : 34,207,000 7T % 226,136,000/

TOTVAETASRBREERER  FEHNHE
20 °

(by E A E 1,817,000/t (20124 12H31H:
7,129,000 70) A EEM WA —RBILE =T
N REF K3 99%:TH

(0 RBHEEEETER —FARIHEEZRITER
13,644,000/ 7T (20124F : 94,551,000/ 7T ) ° AR
HMERBARE GR FTRERAE BIEEET IR
HRIEESCER  MEBRTEERSBARDAE -

AEBEMBITEETZARAIEMEE READ
ZEBBEITRAEREMEBEZN T1%%3.35%
(2012412A318 : 0.4%%3.35% ) sk s BiR 77 A
EREMEBENT1.30%%E3.0% (20124124
31H:1.30%%3.00% ) sk E& KA M EBENT
1.5%E2.0%kF ML RITRIEFREM EBZEN
F1O%E2.0%Z FHMEFT B -AEBRITEE
Z B E R R A254% (2012412318 ¢
3.03% ) - AREEEMD H M RITEE THIZEEFH
LN T0.85%%2.86% (20124 12A31H : 1.35%
£7.26% )&t B

AARIMBITEEXERZERBE DREBR
TREFREMEEZN F1%%3.35% (2012F
12A318 :0.4%%3.35% ) 3k 1 h0 3 8B 17 [ 2 47
BINESBZELORZ FREGB -AAAIRITEE
ZFHEBRERNE A3.27% (20124128318 :
2.94%) °

UboN - B ZE20125F12 A31H IEEAF - AREE R 1T
BXRFHERFENER247% °
REBAEENRITRE K NEEAERBE
%i’ﬂtt%c’f%im'$$§Ehvﬁﬁﬁ§€%@tt$°

BEHM AEERRBITERZLDY 72012
¢12H31E| AEEREBRTERERZNE
HERBHABRITHNR2HN MERARBHA
A E R BN ERK -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

31. /A

Number of ordinary shares

of HK$0.20 each Amount
SREE0.20ETZEERYE ¢8
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
RW2013F R20124 2013 R2012F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Authorised: EEBRA
At beginning and end of the RREE/HRERASRR
year/period ST 1,400,000,000 1,400,000,000 280,000 280,000
Issued and fully paid: ERETRBRRA:
At beginning of the year/period REREE,/ HRFERE 1,203,046,960 794,010,960 240,609 158,802
Issue of shares BIIRG = 409,036,000 = 81,807
At the end of the year/period RREE /BEEER 1,203,046,960 1,203,046,960 240,609 240,609

On 6 June 2012, the Company allotted and issued a total of 409,036,000
shares of HK$0.2 each at the price of HK$1.25 per share to Yieldfull,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned
by Chinatex, a state-owned enterprise under the direct supervision and
administration of, and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Committee of the State Council of the PRC.
These shares rank pari passu in all respects with other shares in issue.
Immediately after the issue of shares, there were 1,203,046,960 shares in
issue and Chinatex held approximately 34% of the issued share capital of

the Company and became the single largest shareholder of the Company.

R20129F6A6H * AR AIEER1.25 T 2 BIR
fic 2% & 2% 17 A& $£409,036,0000% & I m 1E0.278 7T
Z B3 FYieldfull —RRARBR 2B Sz
ZAR AR EERE MRS —REFEER
BREAAEEEEREEEREERERMU
REZBAZEABCE ZEROHIUMEFEY
HEMBEITROHZARSEZR BEETRG
& RN FA B BITR191,203,046,9604% - 1
HEARRR D BITIRALZA% W AR A
-t N T
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2002 Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”), which was
adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 25
January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was expired on 24 January 2012. The
primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible mean of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such other purposes
as the board of directors of the Company may approve from time to time.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to
full time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options
granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the 2002 Scheme.
The Company may seek approval from shareholders of the Company in
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such higher
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any employee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, subject to approval from shareholders of the Company. Options
granted must be taken within 28 days of the date of grant or such longer or
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company may think fit. The
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is one year or such other period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit commencing from the date of grant (“Holdup period”). An
option period, at the absolute discretion of the board of directors of the
Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Holdup period and expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the board of directors of the Company and will be at least the

highest of the followings:

2. URMDARERZARRS
20024 &t &l

AAREAE —BBRET S ([2002F:18]) - T)
AR AIR2002F 1 A25 A BT 2 R REFHI R E
EER#N - 20024F 51 &I B 720121 A 248 & i ©
2002 EINF EE N ABRAARIAMEES T
EE - S E B BERIEHENREAA
AEEETHIENEMBOM S RH— AR
73R o IR #E20024F 51 & - AR A A& = g A #2002
FAEMERBETFARRR SEMERARCE
PBAANNZHES (RE2BNTES) BRE
NREARRRD  BABEIBRENKRERLS
TC o AR ER20024 51 B A tH 89 B AR A T 2217 80 IR
DY HZ T BB B20024 B+ 3
EHMEEITRMDBEMI0% - AAF A LR E
ARG LSRR SE - FRUL10%H) LR o L oh -
IRIE20024F 51 &I R A1 B fa] H A B AR =T8I 2
R E M ARITE R BRI TE M BEITHRRMD 2
2 BEZTEBBADTTED BTN EEDN
30% (ShiRIE E AR ABREFTOERS LR) -BREE
AR SRS - 10 (R B AT 1218 A B A -
HEMTESERBRENROEE 52 TEH
WMARNBEBITRNDAERNLI% EELVERERE
BRI AR2SENR AN ES AR AE
EHHMBR B EBENERTERTHER
E-RENESIRELBRHIFHARARES
SRR AEEWEMEE ([BEaH]) BEER
% AL RE REHEAR A EFTGIRE
HRIEEET BhFEHERERBITERT
BRBELBRICEFER THEEHRARAES
CHT ENBARUTIETNESE:
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

(a) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option;

(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

Under the 2002 Scheme, 22,400,000 options were granted on 17
September 2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$1.29. Details of the movements of those

options and other information of the grant are set out below.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the 2002 Scheme was early terminated and the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on the same date. Further details are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 10 December 2010.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same
as those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover only
directors and full-time employees. In addition, there is no specific period
for accepting the share options granted and also no specific Holdup period,
which are determined by the board of directors upon the grant of share

options as they think as appropriate.

The 2011 Scheme will expire on 20 January 2021.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options of 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 were
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant were
HK$1.80 and HK$1.21, respectively.

2. URBB/BER2ARRE (F)

20024 5+ & (48)
() BRDIBEAIESR ) A BT (8

(b) B EEIRER L B 2 BI5E S % B HF 15
Wi fE: &

() BOHESREE-

B E2002F 5 & - B R2010F9A17H &
22,400,00017 B AR 1 - AR BIR MR BER L B
Bz WmERLI2EB T - EBZEEREZ S
BRELZ i EREH IR T o

201145 &l

M20114F1 A20H + 2002F 5T BB AWHERTALLE - T
RRARBRBERFABRIT ZREFIAE @ik
2 —IERERRN BB RS ([20114 5
gl]) - R IBEMN A QT HHA2010612AH10
AZzRER-

201 14F 518172 1651 R A SC 7R E B220024F 5t &7
Rl HE2011F AT EI 2 B ERSEERTE (AT E
BEENEBIRBER  M002F82AE
R2REERREELE2RBIES - I HEME
FENBRERIBCEE ZEMD R OBRE
FHERR TESTHEH (WRERZER) -

20114 518l M 2021F1 A208 @i °

RIE20114F 51 &) - K20114°5 18 H K201148A
18H B 43 BlI# H3,352,00017 £ 23,045,00017 &
A RFBRMRBEZRLE AR ZBWHESRR
1.80/8TT K1.21/8 T °
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 2. U AERZARRS (&)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options N #&RIXEE AN R IE2002F 5128 R 2011F 122
granted under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme. REERECEEBR -
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Forfeited 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2013  during the year 2013
A20134%F A2013F
1A18 12A31H
8 BEAH TEE 14 R AT 18 FRERW 8 R AT

Category 1: Directors

FlE-ESF
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - 4,600,000
BRTEE 20024  20104F9A17H 1.297 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20115  201148A18H 1.217% 7T
Dr. YEN Gordon 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 (4,600,000) -
BRESE LT 20024  20104F9A17H 1.297% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
20115  201148A18H 1.217 7T
Total Directors T =& # 15,800,000 (4,600,000) 11,200,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 6,600,000 (2,000,000) 4,600,000
FEofH BB 20024  201049A17H 1.297 7T
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 2,634,000 (186,000) 2,448,000
20115  201145A188 19177t
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 12,200,000 (3,900,000) 8,300,000
20115  201148A18H 1.217% 7T
Total Employees & 8 & # 21,434,000 (6,086,000) 15,348,000
Two categories 48 Bl & 37,234,000 (10,686,000) 26,548,000

Exercisable at the end of the period/year
PAER AR AT T AT 5,380,000 8,846,000
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

2. URBB/BER2ARRE (F)

(Continued)
Outstanding at Transferred Forfeited Outstanding at
1 September during during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2011 the period the period 2012
R2011% n20125
9A1R 12A31RH
& BHBH THE 8 RATHE HrE AR HRERR 18 R AT
Category 1: Directors
FUREF
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - - 4,600,000
BRREE 20024 201069A17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
20114 201148A18H 1.21%7T
Mr. HA Hon Kuen 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - -
BERgERE 20024 201049A17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - -
20114 201148A18H 1.21%7T
Dr. YEN Gordon 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - - 4,600,000
BEH#EL 20024 201049A17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
20114 201148A18H 1.21%7T
Total Directors £ 4 20,800,000 (5,000,000) - 15,800,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 6,600,000 2,000,000 (2,000,000) 6,600,000
M EE 20024 201049A17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 3,352,000 - (718,000) 2,634,000
20114 201145A18H 191%7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 13,445,000 3,000,000 (4,245,000) 12,200,000
20114 201148A18H 1.21%7T
Total Employees {& & & 3% 23,397,000 5,000,000 (6,963,000) 21,434,000
Two categories 874 £ 44,197,000 - (6,963,000) 37,234,000
Exercisable at the end of the period
RERAER AT T 1718 - 5,380,000
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 2. URBAERZARR S (&)
(Continued)

Share options granted on 17 September 2010 under the 2002 Scheme are 201049 A17 B 1B 1520024 51 &) % 1 = B A% %

exercisable during the period from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 in  A]R2014F3A178 201743 /817H M D 31E

three tranches, being PEER T LAFT(E - BN

e 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 (up to 30.00% of the share options e 201443 A17H &2017F3A178 (&% 1k
granted are exercisable) BB 230.00% 7] T17{4)

e 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options e 20153 A17H 201743 A17H (&% 1k
granted are exercisable) B R 260.00%7] T174)

e 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017 (all share options granted are o 2016%F3A17H Z201743A17H (FTEE
exercisable) Wz EREN T176)

Share options granted on 18 May 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are 201145 A18H R E20114 51 819% 1 2 B i
exercisable during the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 in three  A] ®20124F5H18H £2015F5A817H HifE 3@
tranches, being P& B T DATT(E - A

e 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 (up to 32.52% of the share options e  201295H18H £2015F5A17H (&% 1h
granted are exercisable) B HERE 232.52%A] F171F)

e 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2015 (up to 65.04% of the share options e 2013%F5H18H £201545A17H (&% 1h
granted are exercisable) B HERE 265.04%7] F17{F)

e 18 May 2014 to 17 May 2015 (all share options granted are e 201445H18H £2015%5A17H (A D
exercisable) B BN T1T{E)
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 18 August 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are

exercisable by 2 batches as follows:

Batch 1: 15,900,000 share options are exercisable during the period from
19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 in five tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 (up to 20.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017 (up to 40.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 (up to 80.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Batch 2: 7,145,000 share options are exercisable during the period from 19
August 2012 to 18 August 2015 in three tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 (up to 34.15% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2015 (up to 68.31% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

2. URBB/BER2ARRE (F)

MR2011F8 A18H B E2011F 5T 2I4% 1 2 B s 4
Al 2ft FLATTE - E AT

14k : 15,900,00017 B % 4 7] 722012F8 A 19H
Z2017F8 A 180 HAfM o SfEBS . T A7 - B

e 201248A19H E201748A18R (& Z 1A
B BB B 2 20.00% ] T 1T )

e 201348A19H £201748A18R (& Z 1A
B BB i 2 40.00% 7] T 1T )

e 2014%8A19H £201748A18R (& Z 1A
B BB i 2 60.00% 7] T 1T )

e 2015%8A19H £201748A18R (& Z 1A
B B8 2 2. 80.00% 7 T 1T )

e 2016%8A19H £201748A18H (AL
B2 AR R T1T(E)

F2#k 1 7,145,00017 BE M R] A2012F8 A 198 &
201548 A 18 H HAR /31 M EX F LATT(#F » Bl

e 2012%8A19H £2015%8A18H (% %14
B ERE234.15% 7] F171E)

e 201348A19H £2015%8A18R (&K Z 1A
B EEE 26831% F1T#)

e 2014%8H19H =201548A18H (AL
B2 BRAER] T1T(E)
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Binomial

model:

2. AR RE# 2

Under the
2002 Scheme

Share options

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

5 (&)

BREZAFEEDRAB ZEAEAEE:

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

granted on granted on granted on

17 September 18 May 18 August

2010 2011 2011

152002 F 5+ & HRIE2011F 5+ & RIE2011 5 518

M201069A17H H2011%5H18H M2011568H18H

B 1% 1 #1958 B 1% i KO BE BR R B 8% i BB R

Number of options EREZE 22,400,000 3,352,000 23,045,000
Grant date fair value RHBHBZzATER HK$15,812,000/% 7T HK$2,718,000/ 7T  HK$13,156,00058 7T
Grant date share price R Az RE HK$1.29% T HK$1.807% T HK$1.217%8 7T
Exercise price I7EE HK$1.29/8 7T HK$1.91%8 7T HK$1.218 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor RETEER 2 2 2
Contractual life BHEH 6.5 years 4 years 4-6 years “F
Expected volatility TERHR 8 58.25% 66.97% 59.96%-66.16%
Dividend yield R E & 0% 0.568% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate 2 [ B | o 1.59% 1.23% 0.48%-0.99%

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the
stock return of the Company over the previous 4 to 6.5 years. The risk-
free interest rates used in the model were determined based on the yield of
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 17 September

2010 and the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note for the share options

granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011.

T8 HR 18 Ty SR A 2N R A 8 R 4ZE6.5F IR B Bl )
LR EEE R R TR A 2 A R =
THAR #5775 2 R th 47 [51 2 % (yield of Hong Kong
Sovereign Curve) (312010F9A17HE R L 2 B
W) REBINER S EHERE (512011F5A

18 N2011F8A18HERE ZERIE)ET -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The Group recognised a net reversal of HK$77,000 (31 December 2012:
total expense HK$10,268,000) for the current year in relation to share
options granted by the Company. Out of the amount, a net reversal of
HK$80,000 (31 December 2012: total expense HK$3,616,000) is related to

the directors of the Company.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 2.9 years (31 December 2012: 4 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss over
the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an

option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

2. URBB/BER2ARRE (F)

AEERAFEERAARR L 2 BRIERER
P [B] 7% 5877,0007% 7T (20124128310 : B X
10,268,000/ 7T ) ° & #80,000/% T & & [B1 )5 58
(20124124311 : #25 £3,616,000/% 7T ) B A<
NRRIEEHM-

H2013F 128318 14 & 1715 &9 B8 % # /9 0 #E
AR A 4 F B 52,94 (20124F12 A31H : 4
F)o

REBERR AREBTHEAENEREBNOE
BEHE 2 fErt- B RABHEEZFE (I
B BRAGHEEFHRBERER  WNERERRE
EHAAE AR -

BhEZAFEERE BB G FAER
BN FEEMRAZEHEERBRRIREE
EZREMBMET -BREZEENETIE
BRRZEHEAZTEHMTR -
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BRI

33. RESERVES 33. #fE
The Company PIN/N]
Capital Share
Share  redemption options Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
&x EkE
R 8 WERE R RERA #E
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THET T8 THET
At 1 September 2011 M201149A1H 197,124 210 3,395 628,518 829,247
Loss and total comprehensive EHHEERZARY 85
expenses for the period - - (3,994) (3,994)
Equity-settled share-based payments — WATEZ & E LAY BER 2
OES - - 10,268 - 10,268
Dividend recognised as distribution BHEREDRZKE - - (7,940) (7,940)
Issue of shares BT 429,488 - - - 429,488
Share issue expenses Mein 817> (5,220) - - - (5,220)
At 31 December 2012 7201246128318 621,392 210 13,663 616,584 1,251,849
Profit and total comprehensive EFERMNRE2AREEE
income for the year - - - 872,133 872,133
Equity-settled share-based NEREEARD BER
payments reverse F3EmE - - (60) - (60)
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12A31H 621,392 210 13,603 1,488,717 2,123,922
34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 4. EXREKREE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will ZAEEEEBEEAZ BN EREERAEEZSEERE
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to  BUABELE RS BNEESEERS BN

stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the

borrowings disclosed in note 30, and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

=EFE AFEOEFREALRK NEEREE
REEEFF e

AEBWERR
BENEER) RARRHEA ARIG#R

SR BREEY (B 2EME30m

TR R H M) °

BEDE#®
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going

basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and

the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of

the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the

payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

issue of new debts.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

4. BEXEREE (&)

ARRESRHEER

# %

R BARRE - MEREBE

— & BEEGE BE RN R E AN RO 8 B R
B REBEFNER AREREBRERS - #
TR EBEERDERETHESATEOERE

RIRHE -

35. 8@ T A

(a) =BT A5

The Group The Company
x5 NG|
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
RW2013F R20124 2013 R2012F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31AH 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET FET FET
Financial assets EREE
Available-for-sales financial assets AHHESRERE
(Investment in life insurance policies) (ANBRRREZEE) 37,346 36,742 37,346 36,742
Loans and receivables (including cash and & 3t % JEU 308
cash equivalents) (RERSKERASLER) 2,444,115 2,502,818 3,298,172 3,672,463
Derivative financial instruments fTESBMTA 14,170 2,044 12,238 1,901
Financial liabilities SRAR
Amortised cost BEKA 2,513,082 2,393,212 1,016,271 2,171,498
Derivative financial instruments TEEBIA = 15,037 = 15,037
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group and the Company include
investment in life insurance policies, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from/to subsidiaries, bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, derivative financial instruments, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
bank and other borrowings and bank overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
The Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate

the risk.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities and derivative
financial instruments of the Group and the Company that are considered

significant by the management are as follows:

35. 2T A (&)

(b) BATEEREIE B AZ MR
AEERADANEIESRTABEABRRER
B RE SRR CGROR  H R YOR -
WEBARMK, RIBARORE FITEX-
RITHEERRAS TEERTA SERZHEN
RO M OB © RIEERRARIR MO BOE - 4R 4T
REMEERFTEL -ZE2RTAZHED
REMIRRE BZZeRTAEHNARE
ETERR (ENRREFEER)  EERR R
RBESER - TXHIEBNARELSEAR
MBGE - EREEEREERSAY - AR R
R0 28t SR BB B s o

=Y

() E¥ERE

AEBETEREBINER S HAKRE S RINE
LR

REBEDR R EEINER K AR KB K
WRBUEE Bt ARB ORI EAINESH
AR 3% 5 Rz o

RBEEHR BEEERRBEANETEE AR
ANINESIENEREERERAERITESR
TAMNKEEWNT
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

35. 2T A (&)

TS mEE (F)
() EEmE(E)

(b) MBEREEBZENBE (&)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EMEEREYEE:
The Group
r5E
Assets Liabilities
-1 af

At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
R2013%F R2012% 20135 20124
12A31AH 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET FET TET
usb e 840,431 1,078,904 1,106,801 934,505
RMB ARE 793,093 612,685 413,966 378,059
CAD illba 5,000 2,480 - -
LKR Bt 1,476 112 - 1,651
HK$ BT 6,347 35,848 3,224 3,497
British Pound (“GBP”) _eE 3,292 3,224 = -
EURO BT 2,318 2,388 - -
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") HeE 4,990 513 1,799 1,253

The Company

LN
Assets Liabilities
BE =N

At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
R2013%F R2012% 20135 201245
12A31H 12A31A 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
usb e 76,615 153,575 - -
RMB AR 61,347 89,715 - -
CAD illbw 2,360 1,632 - -
GBP 3 3,245 3,178 - -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B R AR EE

35. 2R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) I REREREBZEREE (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEEE ()
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EER (E&)
Derivative financial instruments: PTEERTA:
The Group The Company
N | b NG|
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
M2013F R20126F M2013% A20124F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FAT
Derivative financial assets fTEEHEE
Foreign currency forward contracts tobuy ~ BEAARERE L
RMB and sell USD ETHREINEAD 14,170 2,044 12,238 1,901
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeMERE
Foreign currency forward contracts to buy ~ EAARERE L
RMB and sell USD ETHREINEAD - 515 - 515
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD
and HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group
entities.

The following tables detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$
is pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and derivative financial instruments
and adjusts their translation or fair value in the case of derivative financial
instruments at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
On this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit for the
year/period where USD, RMB and CAD strengthen against the functional
currency of the corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice versa. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

LK%.IR/ZF&%E AR RBET (EiZ
EHEAREBERANESETRE) K
i}jﬂ"ﬂuno

TRA@ARS AINE SRR EEBEREER
THESEZ E5% M SURE - BT R T
F BT ETTRIN - 5% /AT BEEABRE
EWIMNERB KR EREHEXRTRSEEBHT
HATRANGRE L X - FRENTEBREHE AR
REDNEDIENEBRARITESRTA X
NFEILERMIMNE RSB HEEME S ITED R
TRAZRAFEE -RIEE BXT ARBEEM
TRAEERERDRERTES%  —=FE/ B
RMAT RN EEN ORd) RZTR-FH
DA T54R20124F B A8 A EAEAE 1T
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

35. ¢ TH (&)
(b) MAEEREEAELRKE (8)

TS5 mE (E)
() E®mEE (&)
BURE DT (#)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: BEEEEREYKBE:
The Group The Company
A5E NN
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
RW2013F W20124 20134 R2012F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit REEHABFLN (RD)
for the year (2012: decrease/(increase) (2012% : R HAERAIEE
in pre-tax loss for the period) wd/ ()
HKD against RMB BLRAARE 173 1579 = -
USD against CAD ELAEMT 1,120 1,328 - -
RMB against HK$ ARBHEET 18,949 11,537 3,067 4,486
CAD against HK$ ML A AT 248 122 118 82
20,490 14,566 3,185 4,568
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

35. ¢ TH (&)
(b) IBEBREEEELREE (8)

TS5 mE (E)
() E®mEE(E)
BREST (&)

Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRITA:
The Group The Company
A5E NG|
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2013 2012 2013 2012
R2013F 20124 2013 R2012F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A318
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Increase in pre-tax profit for the year (2012: EFEF A1 27150 (20124
Increase in pre-tax loss for the period) < HE AT EEEN)
Foreign currency forward contracts to  EAAREREBEHETH
buy RMB and sell USD EHHEAD 55,341 23,747 53,017 23,097

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate

risk primarily in relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is

the Group’s policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so

as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest

rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the

Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings. In light of low interest

rate expected to be maintained in long period of time, the Group shall

monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate financial

instruments to minimize the interest rate risk.

(i) FIF @
AEBERARBNRSREN XE R T E 8T
RITEFREEEE AEENBREZHFHR
TIEERZ B X LUK A FEENERR - A&
SENRSRENTRREIEEPREBRITA
EWRBREBFAEIBAEBEETIENEE -
REMEARGS -BRERHE FAEEaT#
BHXES LA ENERTARENERE

B o

=]

o
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for both non-derivative (included variable-rate borrowings
only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances is not
significant) and derivative instruments at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
(31 December 2012: 50) basis points increase or decrease in interest rate
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s and
the Company’s pre-tax profit for the year/period would increase/decrease by
HK$6,019,000 and HK$68,000 (31 December 2012: increase/decrease in
pre-tax loss by HK$6,238,000 and HK$3,001,000), respectively.

In the previous period, derivative financial instruments, if HIBOR had been
50 basis points higher and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's and the Company’s pre-tax loss for the year/period would decrease

by the same amount of HK$2,235,000, and vice versa.

35. ¢ TH (&)
(b) MAEEREEAERKE (&)

mG ()

(i) F)Fmp (&)

UK E DT

TOSBEESTREITELE (ERIEZEE

E AESRARRITERIREZRBRIT T5

R) ROT4H T AR20134 k2012612 431 H &9 F)
R RE o A BT TH R S R S HRAS 1 R (B R

MEBEYEEAFREAFENGAREE -ME

ZEEAB NI 2RI EEMB TR A50ME (2012

F12A31H :5018) ERMFAR REEEEEF

KA A B BT o

SRIECTERITEEM = - MFIE EF T HS0E
BB -MAABEMEHEFRIE AXREERAR
RNAIMRFE, BB AT 45 5 Bl a0, 5
6,019,000/ 7T %68,0007% 7T (2012412 A31 A :
T A E5 4838 o035 6,238,000 7T % 3,001,000

BIT) e

RBEHRE ROTESRITAMS  WEBRT
RIZEHFE LTT50EER  MAAE KB BT
2 AFRKEERARBNEFEHETAER
R > 18 [F & #82,235,000/8 7T - R Z TR9A ©
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the maximum exposure to credit risk by the
Group and the Company which will cause a financial loss due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees

provided is arising from:

o the carrying amounts of the recognised financial assets as stated in the

statements of financial position; and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees

issued by the Company as disclosed in note 38.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers
with good credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and
individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
a net impairment loss of HK$2,245,000 in respect of the trade and bills

receivables was reversed.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its
subsidiaries after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial
conditions. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's and the Company’s credit risk are significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group and the Company is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group and the Company
has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

B R

35. 2R T A (&)

(b) AR EREBEREE (&)

= Em R
M2013F12A31H  REB R AAREEF 7R
EETETRREUVMBERMEBABEINK
SRR T SIEESE

=BEE

R RAKRMEVN ERASHEENRR
(ERDN

MFESSAIR A AR RIMBELMBERZ
HARBEHI AR

REBHEGERR ASENEREEZR—4
ANEAEEERFERE FESHREMEZER
Fr - AT REREURETTBI M D@ A EIE - ERm{EE
HEERETAERIGELERERCHOT
ot ol AR5 B B IR R 88 R (B Bl B AR
& T ) A YR [B) B8R - DA (R b 4 SR R B BRBE 4R
RARSREB K - HE2013F12A31HILFE
REBED B E R ERERFERERERKF
182,245,000/ 7T °

BESN - AR EHER TR E B E B 2 B H B K
MEDAEMBRRREMBER-RUME
ARREBEERRAEERARFNEERREX
TR ©

AEERARFRNRBDECEERRER A
FHURBEBREEFEBBRTREEFRNR
T
BRERRETHEEFRRTORPESIN K
SEEARBYEAHERETEERR HRE
BRDENZEEFT7
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company monitor
and maintain a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s and the Company’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with the relevant loan

covenants.

Other than equity, the Group and the Company relies on bank borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2013, the
available unutilised banking facilities of the Group and the Company are
approximately HK$1,763 million and HK$333 million (31 December 2012:
HK$1,765 million and HK$123 million), respectively.

The following tables detail the Group's and the Company’s remaining
contractual maturity for their non-derivative financial liabilities and
derivatives financial liabilities (including foreign currency forward contracts
and interest rate swaps contracts) based on the agreed repayment terms.
For non-derivative financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net
cash flows are presented. Whereas they require gross settlement, the
undiscounted gross outflow/(inflow) on these derivatives are shown on the

tables.

35. 2R T A (&)

(b) HBEREREBRNRBE (&)
RERRDESRRE AEERARTTER

REREEERARMWKINEELFRAREE
B UBNAREERARBEERTRERS
MERPNTE ERESERRITEENER
B X HELR B T ARRE B R R A

RS ARERAQRFERITEREERE
ZRBE SR MN2013F12A310 A& E K
ARAMAIPHRERERBITEERERINOR
1,763,000,0005# 7t 333,000,000/ 7T (20124
12A31H :1,765,000,0007% 7t % 123,000,000/

JT) e

TRFAVREZREERGRAEERANRBET
TERAERTEASRAE (BEEINESD
EMEIEMELQ) BT A RBEBER - SLIET4E
THEE ZRDRBEAEERA DB TREKE
KNFNRFAHARBEEREBEENRBERRER
EBRE - ZRERENEERASRERE - AN BN
RASBNEZREN KBRS BETI B RE S
B2 MEIGH

FHEEENTETIR UAMBEReREFER
5 INFBIARRRAEE - ZEITET AN ARMEIR T
S ORA) BBEHIN T & -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. &@ T H (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) I REREREBZEREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (F)
The Group KEEE
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2013
R20135F
mETLY  SRIUEAD FEERE 12A31A

EBA= EEX 12388 3fEAZEIE HB1E nEAE HERAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET FHET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities FTEeREE

Trade, bills and other payables 2% FRERAMENTE - 640,061 379,756 57,621 - 1,077,438 1,077,438
Amounts due to non-controlling TR RFA

shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Bank and other borrowings BIKEMEE

— fixed rate -EE 2.53 51,196 51,356 50,616 - 153,168 151,817

~ variable rate 28 243 191,933 245,415 268,132 532,860 1,238,340 1,203,727

963,290 676,527 376,369 532,860 2,549,046 2,513,082

Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2012
20125

mEFS SRIEAR AERRS 12A31H

RIS EE% 1237 3EAZELEF BBIE nERE MEREE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AT FHET THET FET TET FET

Non-derivative financial liabilities kTEERER

Trade, bills and other payables 2E EREREMEMNTE - 675,159 371,092 79,085 - 1,125,336 1,125,336
Amounts due to non-controlling RIEERRR A
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
- fixed rate ) 2.52 492 41,108 197,259 1,832 240,691 239,129
- variable rate —28 3.02 428,091 281,097 311,306 241,995 1,262,439 1,243,944
1,183,842 693,297 587,650 243,827 2,708,616 2,688,509
Derivatives - net settlement FTETR-NFELEE
Interest rate swaps STy 0.04 7383 7,146 - - 14,529 14,522
Derivatives - gross settlement fIETRA-NAEEE
Foreign currency forward contracts RENERND
- outflow — - 15,502 31,004 139,518 - 186,024 N/A
- inflow -RA - (15,479) (30,957) (139,073) - (185,509) N/A

23 47 445 - 515 515
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

35. ¢ TH (&)
(b) MAEEREEAERKE (&)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) HEELEE (F)
The Company A
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2013
R2013F
mERH  HSRUERS AEERE 12A31H
ERAE EER 123f8F 3EAZLE BBLE RELE HEREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEemEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries RIBRRFE - 1,000,810 - - - 1,000,810 1,000,810
Bank and other borrowings RIOKEMEE
- fixed rate —~EB 3.99 458 916 458 1,832 1,817
- variable rate -%8 1.21 13,658 - - - 13,658 13,644
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREH - 3,433,000 = - - 3,433,000 =
4,447,926 916 458 - 4,449,300 1,016,271
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 1-3 3 months to Over  undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2012
20126
mEF  SRUEA RERRE 12A31A
LIRS JEEK 12387 3EAZELE BiBIF mELE HREE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FAT
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRER
Amounts due to subsidiaries RIBARZE - 1,462,462 - - - 1,462,462 1,462,462
Bank and other borrowings RIOREMEE
- fixed rate ~EE 399 458 916 4121 1,832 7,327 7,129
- variable rate —%8 311 214,133 1,953 155,104 241,995 613,185 596,368
Financial guarantee contracts MBERED - 3,284,000 - - - 3,284,000 -
4,961,053 2,869 159,225 243,827 5,366,974 2,065,959
Derivatives - net settlement fETA-URELEE
Interest rate swaps Fkim 5 0.04 7,383 7,146 - - 14529 14,522
Derivatives - gross settlement fTEIA-NABLEE
Foreign currency forward contracts EHINERH
-outflow — R - 15,502 31,004 139,518 - 186,024 N/A
-inflow —mA - (15,479) (30,957) (139,073) - (185,509) N/A
23 47 445 - 515 515
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Company could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by
the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Company considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty claiming
under the guarantee which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit

losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due
from/to subsidiaries, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due
to non-controlling shareholders, bank overdrafts, financial guarantees issued

and bank and other borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills

payables, other payables and bank overdrafts approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of the group’s and the company’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 2013 except for derivative

financial instruments and investment in life insurance policies.

35. ¢ TH (&)
(b) BIBEBREEEELREE (8)

mBELEE (&)

PR BERANSHEBERERE T IHEH
EReB|RHBAR AIARREIRES LA
BRENZERSB-RENKREHR2ESR:
ARRRRBAIGLBARBERLH XN EANE
BN UL TERAR RERE - BT Y F I IRBER
RREAZRZAREN Mkl se I RIZARFHF
FAELRERZBERRFBAZEREBR A

BEMET E

43T B 7 2 BB E BN N B E BRI E 2 7
RS A LAETEZSREETIETA
ZEEARRE

(c) R¥(EE

(i) WHUAFPEEGTEBZZHTA
THUNRFEEFEZERTARERERER
REAE  EERFEBREFIE  EtRiksRE
MER AR, R BARRIE & ERERE
RIE - E AR FRIR - ROFFEER R F0R - #R1T
B DEHNYBERERITEREMBES-

HRBENEE ReELERAREER EXME
BREURIE i WO - £ X RFIBEMNK
B HEtENRIERRITEXMREERL QY
EERE-

BROTESRIAMASRRREZREIN A&
BRARBREASEHEKANEN SR T AED
BRTME - 1% 20124 K2013F12A318 KM A
FEETEERER-
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value (Continued)

(ii)  Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s and the Company
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified and is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

inputs.

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment in life insurance policies and derivative financial instruments are

grouped into Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year and prior

period.

35. 2T A (&)

(c) RFEE(H)

(i) UAFEEHEZEBTA
AFEEREHE
TR2IRTHEERNBEPRABOAEER
AARASRTANDTEME TRESYBERE
RRIE13% [A T EE ] RENIRATE
EERHE AT BEBHOSEREE HRE
EERTAEREALBNTEEEREEHE
e HI T

o FIRFHE:RAFEEEERFIRBAZH
FPE - AMREEHBENERBMERRE
MIZH R EHBERE -

o E2RMHE: AFEENERFERBAZE
FECATHAFIRREENAHEHAS
gBTEERTABENERBAZEC
TABRBGALBRLETSRIBEAIELE
o

o E3REHE: ATFEEDNERERNTAIBRER
ASHGE-

RBERL AEERARAFAEAFTRBRRE
ZRERMTESMIALBERFE2HA-

RER BT IR ER3ER R 2 FIE LR -
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. 2T A (&)

(c) Fair value (Continued) (c) RF¥EE(E)

(i)  Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued) (i) URAFEETEZEMTA (F)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements BORMN-FIEEEAEFIGERTTREAZ
#

The fair value of derivative financial instruments are calculated using #T44RITANAFEBEDIEAREEBER I
generally accepted pricing models based on quoted forward exchange rates LAY F 75 B #5418 P 3R A9 3= B 0B = N A H Frig it
and discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield curves of — HY @B A R UGB THWAIIRE S RED T
interest rates provided by counterparty financial institutions. EEMEE -

The fair value of investment in life insurance policies is determined based R ASRBREZIRENAFEEBIERERRE R
on account value as stated in cash surrender value statement issued by FIFFEZEMFRERSEBEXRFAINESEBES

=)

insurers. He
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAREIE
The Group NS
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
R2013%12831H M2012412A31H
HK$'000 T HK$000 F/& T
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided BENBERGAVBREABELREEL
in the consolidated financial statements in respect of: BARREY
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment -BEWME BHERLE 86,950 31917
- additions to intangible assets -NEEWEE 14,909 64,455
101,859 96,372
Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for EHEEBREONERRS
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment ~-BEME BHERLE 122,418 8,141
- additions to intangible assets -REEWEE 314 306

122,732 8,447
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Company

36. EAREIE (M)

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
in the financial statements in respect of:

- acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Capital expenditure authorised but not contracted for
in respect of:

- acquisition of property, plant and equipment

37. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

ERNERMBRRARBIELEREZ

BEARX:
-BEME HERZME

EHEERRONERRT:

-BEME HELZME

7:N/NCY
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
R2013%12A31H R2012412A31H
HK$'000 T HK$000 T/
704 11,687
2,400 -
37. £ EHE
REBEREMEA
The Group
AEH
For the For the

16 months ended
31 December 2012

12 months ended
31 December 2013

EHE2013% HZ2012%
12A31HE12(8R 12A31HE16MEA
HK$'000 T HK$000 F/& T
Minimum lease payments paid under REE/HBHLEREM
operating lease during the year/period: IAMSEERES L
Land and buildings THREF 47,175 66,893
Plant and machinery o5 Rt 2% 5,200 13,970

52,375 80,863
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37. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 37.€EHE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBEREMEA (B)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future A ¥RE B4R » ANE B gk 1 Al U & 8 8 8 K 5k
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall &K & X HAIER N5 EH A S

due as follows:

The Group
A58
At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
R2013%12A31H R2012412A31R
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
T REF BER#E THRET B R

HK$'000 &7  HK$'000 F&7 HK$000 F/& HK$000 F/% T

Within one year 1FR 47,317 4,209 49,028 1,651
In the second to fifth year inclusive E2FERESF N (BERMF

BREAR) 90,509 4,440 105,936 2,014

Over five years S5EPLF 47,324 = 56,110 -

185,150 8,649 211,074 3,665

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for & EHRESLZHNIAEBGEE THAE LR
certain of its office premises, factories, and plant and machinery. Leases 2N #EWHOEMEE SEFNHEEFEH L
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty five years for land and ~ RIEF N F1E25F 2 - stHE RSB T
buildings and from one to five years for plant and machinery. There is no  1E5F 7B W ARG AH ST HE -

contingent rental arrangement.
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37. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)
The Group as lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during
the year was approximately HK$2,423,000 (2012: HK$413,000). The
related outgoings amounted to HK$53,000 (2012: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in

respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.

37. 4EHE (&)
REBER/LHEA

PREFEAN NEBBREYMEMRSHESBAL
1B 49 /52,423,000 7T (20124F : 413,000/ 7T.)
B RS H 453,000 7T (20124 « &) o

RBERL AEBEBEPHEEMECITHON
ARFREEERALT :

The Group
r5E

At 31 December 2013 At 31 December 2012
M2013F12A31H R2012412H31H
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 F/& T
Within one year 1R 4,492 2,354
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFEEEFN (BEEMERELER) 10,743 1,758
15,235 4,112

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments or

arrangements at the end of the reporting period.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY

The Company has given limited guarantees to various banks to secure
general banking and loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the
extent of HK$3,433,000,000 (31 December 2012: HK$3,284,000,000). As
at 31 December 2013, the aggregate amounts utilised by these subsidiaries

amounted to HK$1,755,666,000 (31 December 2012: HK$1,167,124,000).

R|EPL ARFLEERLERERENR
B

38. RARAE

PIN/NE
ARABRAZEBITHTERIINERE
£3,433,000,000 7T (20124 12H310 :
3,284,000,0008 ) " RZEFRITHTE
FTHEBARI —RBITREREENER R
2013%12A31H ZEMBAREERNR
% /1,755,666,0005% T (20124 12A318 :
1,167,124,000/ 7t ) °
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group deregistered its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Fountain Set (Macau) Limited. Fountain Set (Macau) Limited was inactive

before the deregistration.

During the 16 months period ended 31 December 2012, the group
deregistered its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Beijing Megawood Fashion
Limited (“Beijing Megawood”), Megawood Fashion Group Limited and
Megawood International Limited (collectively referred to as “Megawood
Fashion Group”), P.T Higon International (“P.T. Higon”), Winner Win
Limited and B FEEZE4 4% AR A ). In addition, the Group sold its 100%
equity interests in New Achieve Investments Limited and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, namely Able Jubilee Limited and Jiangyin Jintian Machinery
Limited (collectively referred to as “New Achieve Group”) to an independent
third party, at an aggregate consideration of RMB90,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$109,756,000). The Group also sold its 100% equity interests in Bio
Venture Investments Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely
Tower Knitters Limited, JTPITEMB S BBR AR, FAPEEHBERA
A and FEEEREAMR DT (collectively referred to as “Bio Venture
Group”) to an independent third party, at an aggregate consideration of

RMB6,116,000 (equivalent to HK$7,643,000).

Beijing Megawood, Megawood Fashion Group, Winner Win Limited, & )E
FE4H BB A B were inactive before their deregistration. P.T. Higon was
previously engaged in trading of garment products while New Achieve Group
was engaged in manufacturing of machineries and Bio Venture Group was

engaged in production and sales of yarns.

30. HEMBE QA

RER - A& B EUATHTE 2 & & 2 5] Fountain
Set (Macau) Limited » FAHUE L Al - Fountain Set
(Macau) Limited 3 £ 2 75 -

B ZE2012412 831 R 1618 A B3 - AEBEUH
AMEZERBEARERMERMREER QA
(TERTERM])  BRMREEEERAR R
BEHRERAF (SB[ BRMRESE])
P.T Higon International ([P.T. Higon | ) X EH|3%E
ERABRBFEEHBAR DA LI KE
| £ H 7 New Achieve Investments Limited }&z E&
2EMBRARAZBERAR LIRS HERER
A7) (%78 [New Achieves M) 2 100% & 4 F1
FEUE=T7 BRERARK0,000,0007T (4
F1109,756,00078 7T ) ° A & [8 75 th & H 1 Bio
Venture Investments Limited & 2 2 & i & A 7 2=
NEERAR AR IFITEMSEER AR
P EENBARDGRNBEERERRDF
(#c7# [Bio Venturefk [ ]) 2 100% /% # T 14 %
NE=T BRERARYE,116,0007T (HER
7,643,000 7T) °

IERTERN BRMREER  BEFNERAERA
AIRETEESBERARNIUEEMAIE mE
o PT. Higoni@ At 5 E &R KE @ E - New
Achievefs B F 515 # 83 5 7% K2 Bio Venture££ &
WEEERHERDER-
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 9. HEMBAT (&)
The net assets of these disposed subsidiaries at the respective dates of ZECDHEZHBATNEAHERRZEEF
disposal were as follows: BEINT
For the 12 For the 16
months ended months ended
31 December 31 December
2013 2012
EZE2013% HZE2012%F
12A318 1t 12A3181F
12f8R 16{E A
Total Total
&t Bt
HK$'000 T#&7 HK$000 F/& T
Cash consideration received EHREKE = 117,400
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which HEREZEHEZEEREBZOM:
control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment VERY I - 65,687
Prepaid lease payments BRHEHIEA - 9,292
Bank balances and cash BIEHEAE - 29
Trade and other receivables EEREMEWRGIE = 13,468
Trade and other payables SR EMEMNFIE - (394)
Net assets disposed of FHECEEFE = 88,082
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HENHBLR 2B KE:
Consideration received BURE = 117,400
Net assets disposed of gz EERE - (88,082)
Translation reserve released [l B 5 A = 13,537
- 42,855
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERFEENRSRAFE:
Cash consideration ReRE - 117,400
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B THENRITESR KRS - (29)

- 117,371
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the

required contributions.

During both periods, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to

reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited contributions
of HK$121,000 (2012: HK$790,000), amounting to HK$48,533,000 (2012:
HK$61,217,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year/period and

included in employee benefits expense as set out in note 9.

41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in

the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 28.

Details of the Company’s outstanding balances with related parties are set

out in the statement of financial position and in note 18.

BRI

40. RIKER T E

AEBERBB R BN ERGIE MK — R EHE
HREH 8 ([BEERKEHE)) RIRBERBIEATRES
FHEEPIR S —RBHIEATE R 8 ([BERs
B THAEAERNAKETERE - EME
ENEEDHERABUFERER -EERN
ORR R RAR MR A TS A SR B AR R 51 81 BE i e X
STEREM R

AEBEEMBDEME A EBHRIESHEZA)
BT 2 38 B9 B ZOR K8 FU At 81 SkoE RE (AT 81 -
AEBAKREREFMNET A D LHATFZE
ERBHNES ARBEHZEHINE AT
R EEH SR

R E R FE BR HR KA R YA
HFRA AER - R A A AEFRR SR E
SR o

KR EE /HIRE B R0k 8 R K8 F
a1 21 5k & 58 °F (B 548,533,000/ 7t (2012
% : 61,217,000 7T ) - & F 2 EDR M E R
121,000 7T (20124 : 790,000/ 7T ) » ¥ 2 5T A
B sTOFT®L < B BAE RIS HI A o

41. BB RBEEALTWRE

(a) BEBEA LV

AEBERBEBATOERFBRIINGE
R MM 28

B TR

ZAUNCIESYEa): N O
K HIsE18/

BRI BEINRPBAHRE
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41.

(b)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions

41. BB R BAEAN LI E (&)

(b) BIEALRS

For the 12
months ended
31 December

For the 16
months ended
31 December

Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2013 2012
BEALEH RHMHE BZ2013F HE2012F
12A318 L 12A31R 1k
1218 A 16fE A
HK$'000 F 70 HK$000 Fi# T
The FM Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 152,879 186,200
FMEE (HzH) EEME Y RENUER
The AH Group (note ii) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 91,400 80,774
AHEE (Hizii) SEME Y REANER
The LFK Group (note iii) Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items 97,440 71,763
LFKEE (47:2ii) EEMK YREUER
Factory Co (note iv) Provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co 31,299 38,903
BRANE (Hstiv) B RREE BN TR
Chinatex Group (note v) Purchase of yarns 26,792 9,562
RERE (M) Rigy
Notes: it -

(i) The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Feroz”) entered into a master agreement

(the “FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master Sales Agreement (the

“Renewed FM Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 10 December 2010 and

19 April 2013 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group

to the FM Group. Mr. Feroz is a director of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company, and accordingly a connected person of the Company under the Listing

Rules. The FM Group includes companies which Mr. Feroz or/and his relatives who
are persons referred to in Rules 14A.11(4)(b)(i) and 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing
Rules individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than half of the

voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the board

of directors and hence the FM Group are associates of Mr. Feroz. The transactions

contemplated under the FM Master Sales Agreement and the Renewed FM Master

Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under

the Listing Rules.

The FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011

to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term

commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

(M

R R Feroz Omarst 4 ([Ferozft & 1) 93 51722010
F12A108 %X2013F4 19 AR ERFMER HE
R W RENERT AR ([FMBHERZ]) &
EEHMEOFMBHE T ([CEMFMBESRZE]) -
FerozZt £ RA R AR EMB AR 2 EE RIE
EHRA BARRAZEEAL FMEBZKER
BB fEAFerozft £ R E R EHARAIE14A.11(4)
(D)X EBELAA LA )RR 2 BB R EZ S A )
B AR TR R & 1 B3t 3k FE R 3017 455 4% )47 5 3B - 8
LA EBFRAE  SERIZEARNESEABOKE
AT HtFMERE AFerozt £ 2 BB AL - iR £
MRA FMARSEE G RE B HMFMBEERRAIET
BAOZRGBHAARBZHEBAERS -

FMA 85 E 1% < BIIR 201141 A20H #£ £201348
A31H 1L - TAEE #FMAR 35 5 1775 2 iR h20134°9
A1H#2%20155F12A31H Ik
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41.

(b)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The four-months cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ending 31 December 2015
for the Renewed FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000
and HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the revised annual cap
of HK$230,000,000 for the twelve months ended 31 August 2013 as set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 30 November 2011 and the four-months cap
of HK$77,000,000 for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013

respectively.

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”) entered
into a master agreement (the “AH Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed AH
Master Sales Agreement (the “Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement”) respectively
on 10 December 2010 and 19 April 2013 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns and
similar items by the Group to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and accordingly a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The AH Group includes companies which Mr.
Hirdaramani or/and his relatives who are persons referred to in Rules 14A.11(4)(b)
(i) and 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules individually or together exercise or control
the exercise of more than half of the voting power at general meetings or control
the composition of a majority of the board of directors and hence the AH Group are
associates of Mr. Hirdaramani. The transactions contemplated under the AH Master
Sales Agreement and the Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The four-months cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ending 31 December 2015
for the Renewed AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000
and HK$230,000,000 as set out in the announcements of the Company dated 19
April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$225,000,000 for the twelve months ended 31 August 2013 as set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 December 2010 and the four-months cap
of HK$77,000,000 for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013

respectively.

41.

(b)
Mt

()

(ii)

FABREEATHKE (&)

BEALRS (&)

(48)

(%)

MINA A E HEAR2013F4 19 2 REFTE - K F
FTFMAR 85 & 17 % h2013F9 A 1H 2013512 A31H
IHERR R4 A IR & /8 R B E20155F 12 A31H LM
B RFRENFE LRSS FI/77,000,000/ 7T
230,000,0007% 7T }2230,000,0007% 7T °

ZEMER ZA BB BARF A HHK2011F11H30
HZ AEREEZE2013F8 A31H (F12{E A H &£ & 7T
% E£MR230,000,000/% 7T * A 2 12013F9 A1 H i
Z£2013%12A31H IE HfE e941E A £R77,000,0007%
I o

KA @ B Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanist &
(THirdaramani%t 4 1) % 201012 A10H &%201344
AR AEEMAHEB L EME ¥ RENUER S
BIRTSL 4B e (TAHARSH E hag | ) RS ERAHRIHE
aE ([ EHAHLEERZE]) - Hirdaramanife £ 5
AARNEFE2ENBARZES RIFE EMRA-
BARAARRZHEEALT AHEE KB AR RIER
Hirdaramanist & sk /K& Z 7 £ 47 B £14A.11(4)(b)
MEREBLAA LU () EFTILZ 3B AT EZ ZE R AR
R E b Rl kR 3 77458 5k 12 i 1T 45 3 B
FRRRE LEHZEAREETEABIKENR
7] E It AHE® AHirdaramanio £ 2 BB A+ - R 1
TR AHAR 85 15 5 I A B RTAHAR S B e 1E
THITZRGERARBNZHFEERERS -

AHZE S E 1755 2 HARR 20114F1 A20H #£ £201348
A31H Ik - MAE FAHAESEE % 2 HIfR 201349
A1B#£%=2015%12A318 Ik

MR NEBEB2013F4R 198 2 REFTHE, KK FE
FTAH#E S & 7% B2013F9 8 1A £2013%12A31H
IFEARIMAE B IR €88 R B ZE2015F 124318 [EW
B BEENFE FRE %5 R /&77,000,0007 7T
230,000,0007# 7T 12 230,000,000/ 7T ©

ZEMER W EBBA AT AL A20106128108
ZAEEB E2013F8A31RILI2EAZFE LR
225,000,000/ 7T * JA & $120134F9 A1 H Z20134 12
A31H IE#AR#4E A £FR77,000,0007 7T
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41.

(b)

Notes:

(iii)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and LFK (Holdings) Limited (“LFK") entered into a master agreement
(the “LFK Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement
(the “Renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 10 December 2010
and 19 April 2013 regarding the sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items by the Group
to members of the LFK Group (i.e. LFK and its subsidiaries). As the relatives who are
persons referred to in Rule 14A.11(4)(c)(i) of the Listing Rules of a director of the
Company, Mr. HA Kam On, Victor, together exercise or control the exercise of more
than half of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a
majority of the board of directors of LFK, members of the LFK Group are associates
of that director of the Company under the Listing Rules and the transactions
contemplated under the LFK Master Sales Agreement and the Renewed LFK Master
Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The four-months cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ending 31 December
2015 for the Renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$124,000,000,
HK$372,000,000 and HK$372,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$372,000,000 for the twelve months ended 31 August 2013 as set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 December 2010 and the four-months cap
of HK$124,000,000 for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013

respectively.

41. BB RBEEATHRE (&)

(b) BEALRS (&)
Wt ()

(iii)

AT EELFK (Holdings) Limited ([LFK J) 72010412
A10H k201364198 AL MALFKEEK E R
B (AILFKREMBAR) HEME - H REUER D
RIRTSZ 48 ek ([LFKAB SR E a8 ) S AS B 3T LFKAR 8K
EhE ([CEFLFKEHEEHE]) - ARARAES
ESRR AR EMRRE14A 114 (C)()GFT T2 3B
A FELFKAR A & b 2L 3077186 sk 4% 77 (65 3 2 B
ERFRRE RIEFILFKESE KRB DK EN DR
RE EMRA LFKEEZKERRIAZEESY
BEAL FUBIE ETRA LFKEHEEREREE
HLFKAAHEHAE BT 2R BERARR ZHE
RAE 5 o

LFK4 S5 3% 2 BABR h20114E1 A20H #£ 201348
A3181E MEEFLFKEHE Has < BIPR 201349
A1B#£Z%2015%12A318 Ik

WMINA A E HEAR2013F4H19B 2 REFTSE - K F
FLFKEIH E 12 m2013F9 A 1R 2013512 A31H
IHERR R4 A IR & /8 R B E20155 12 A31H L/
BB A S B R PR %843 Bl /124,000,000 7T »
372,000,0007% 7t %372,000,000/% 7T ©

ZEMER S W EBBARF A A/2010512A10H
ZRNEPTHBE2013F8HA3IR IFI2A A ZFE LR
372,000,000/ 7T * A K 1201399 A1 H £2013%12
H31H I B &4E A £ R124,000,000% 7T ©
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41.

(b)

Notes:

(iv)

(v)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and ;TIE[EERET 4B R AR (“Factory Co”) entered into a master
agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”) and a renewed Master Services
Agreement (the “Renewed Master Services Agreement”) respectively on 10 December
2010 and 19 April 2013 regarding the provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory
Co to the Group. As Factory Co is owned as to 51% by the brother of a director of
certain subsidiaries in the Group, it is an associate of that director under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Master Services Agreement and the
Renewed Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of

the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 20 January 2011
to 31 August 2013 and the Renewed Master Services Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2015.

The four-months cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ending 31 December 2015
for the Renewed Master Services Agreement are HK$16,000,000, HK$49,000,000
and HK$49,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$61,000,000 for the twelve months ended 31 August 2013 as set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 December 2010 and the four-months cap
of HK$16,000,000 for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013

respectively.

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a material purchase framework
agreement (the “Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) with Chinatex
Corporation (“Chinatex”) in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton, other materials for
the manufacture of fabric, garments and cooking oil and foodstuffs by the Group from
the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries) commencing from 25 January
2013 to 31 December 2015.

Chinatex is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected

person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual caps amount for the Material Purchase Framework Agreement for
the three financial years ending 31 December 2015 are HK$310,000,000,
HK$411,000,000 and HK$512,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$310,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013.

41. BB BAEA T HIRE (8)

(b) BEALRS (&)
Wt ()

(iv)

AARETIRERHBAERAR ([EERARIR
2010412 A 108 K%2013F4 A 198 sLAkRR A 7] M A &
MRS I T RIS 5 BIRT A2t ([42 RIS ik 1)
RS E B Rs s ([EERERBIHE]) - ARG
BARBEAEEMETHERARZIZEEZBRHES
51%A%HE - FLIRIE ETRA SR AR AZBEE Y
B AT IRIR ET IR A 48 ARG 1H R S A T AT 4R AR
BHBETETZRIBRARRZFHERERS -

RART 1% % 2 BABR 120114F1 H20 8 #& 201348 A
310 1k MARE ARG A2 MRH2013F9A1R
#E2015%12H31H °

MR A E HEAR2013F4 19 2 REFTE - K F
142 RS 7% R20139F9 A 1A £2013F12A31H IF
B AE A LR €% ME E2015F12A31R IEW
B BRFENFE LRSS FI/16,000,000/ 7T
49,000,0007% 7t £249,000,000/% 7T

ZEMER S W EBBARFHHA/2010512A10H
ZRNEPHBE2013F8HA3IR FI2AAZFE LR
61,000,000/ 7T » LA J2 9201349 1 H 22013124
310 | H3fE #9418 A £ R 16,000,000 7T ©

2012612 A19H  AARERERLHEBE QR ([
1) EI B RBIER R ([MERBERBE]) -
NABRAEEMATHER (BIFHRERBAR) K
iRy - iR1E - B EEMAER O R R K k&
R 201361 425 8 E2015F 12831 k-

THRARR ZERER - Bt BB ETRA - hH
RARARZBEANL

WMINA AR BB R20126128198 2 R E A& -
B ZE2015F12A31 A I3EM B FE  WERBIE
Rip#E 2 FE LR2 85 5 /310,000,000 7T
411,000,0007% 7t %512,000,000/% 7T ©

ZEMER S W BB E2013F12A31HIEFEZ
FZ £FR310,000,0007% 7T °
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41.

(b)

Notes:

(vi)

(vii)

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

On 19 December 2012, the Company entered into a product and service supply
framework agreement (the “Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement”) with
Chinatex in relation to the supply of textiles products such as fabric and garments and
dyeing service by the Group to the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries)
commencing from 25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

Chinatex is the controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual caps amount for the Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement
for the three financial years ending 31 December 2015 are HK$150,000,000,
HK$170,000,000 and HK$190,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$150,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013.

During the period from September 2012 to December 2012, each of Highscene
Limited, Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd, Jiangyin
Fuhui Textiles Limited and Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
(collectively, the “FS Group”), all being subsidiaries of the Company, entered into
various material purchase contracts (“Material Purchase Contracts”) with Bao Ding
Chinatex Yimian Textiles Co., Ltd ({RE R & KIB4 4 AR A7) and Zhu Cheng
Chinatex G-way Textiles Co., Ltd (F&E¥ T4 & 447458 R 2 7)) (collectively, the
“Chinatex Group”) respectively, both being subsidiaries of Chinatex, in relation to the
sale of yarn by the Chinatex Group to the FS Group.

As each of members of the Chinatex Group are subsidiaries of Chinatex, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, they are therefore connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules and the transaction contemplated under the
Material Purchase Contracts constitute continuing connected transactions of the

Company under the Listing Rules.

As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 December 2012, the
total transaction amount under the Material Purchase Contracts was approximately
HK$11,000,000 as at December 2012 and no further transaction was made pursuant
to the Material Purchase Contracts thereafter.

41. BB RBEEATHRE (&)

(b) BEALRS (&)
Wt ()

(vi)

(vii)

72012412 198  ARQ R B4 ET L E Y R RIS 4
JEAEZ R ([EMRRGHEIERRZE]) NEEH
ARG (AP 4 R E SR R R
RRKREG HERRNAEMIRE  B2013F1725
A#ZE2015F12A318 k-

THRARA ZERER - Et - BB TR hE
RARBZHEANL-

AR AR BHRB2012612A198 2 A& A E - &
F2015%12A31H IL3EM B EE &Y R RB e
1E SR 15 3% 2 F & IR £ %85 Bl A150,000,0007% 7T »
170,000,000 7t % 190,000,000/ It

ZEMER W BB BEZE013FI2A3IBIEFEZ
F[Z FMR150,000,000/% 7T ©

201269 A 2012 12 A Biff - AR A 2 M & 2~ 7
ERARAF REPHBEHBDLERLIR T
BREMHAERARTREZ CRPIBIEHERE) BR
RF] (B [FSRE]) & B BREPHEBHBAER
RARFRTHHSHRGBERIR (RB[HHE
B AR ZEMEREAR ([MERBEAR]) -
ANERBBETHEEMFSEE B ERL -

BHRPHERSKE R R/RARERERRTH 2
MEBAR Bt REETRE REHARATZH
BAL MRELTRA MERBERETETZ
RHBERARTZFHERMER S -

MR RF AHR2012F12A248 2 REFTE
R2012F12A MERBARETZXZEBENR
11,000,000/ 7T » B 1% - WRMRIEY EREA RAETTE
M35 -
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41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management
during the year/period was as follows:

41. BB RBAEA LW E (&)

(c) TZEBEABMMEE
REE /HEEELEMFEEEABNEBIN
T

The Group
33
For the 12
months ended
31 December

For the 16
months ended
31 December

2013 2012

EHE2013% HE2012F

128318 k128 A 12A318 1168 A

HK$'000 T#&7 HK$000 F/&

Short-term benefits HHER 6,559 26,337
Post-employment benefits HRRERN 286 747
Equity-settled share-based payments DEREEURDAER 2R 1,157 3,946
8,002 31,030

The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the
board of directors and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

(d) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”).
The Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are
concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw
materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to
these state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition,
approximately 48% and 39% (31 December 2012: 46% and 25%
respectively) of the Group’s bank balances (including short-term bank
deposits) and borrowings are placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at
31 December 2013.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION A% 3R & &l

Listing : Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

since 20 April 1988

Stock Code : 420
Board Lot : 2,000
Shares Issued : 1,203,046,960

Financial Calendar 2013

Financial year ended

Interim results announced

Annual results announced

Register of members closed for
determining the right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting

Annual general meeting

Register of members closed for
determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend

Distribution of dividend

2014 interim results to be announced

Shareholder Services

31 December 2013
23 August 2013
21 March 2014
23 - 25 June 2014

25 June 2014
2 -4 July 2014

22 July 2014
End of August 2014

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,
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BEEN : 2,000

ERTRHA 1,203,046,960
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please contact the Company’s share registrar:
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel +852 2980 1766

Fax +852 2861 1465

Investor Relations

Ms Charmaine CHENG

Assistant General Manager — Corporate Affairs
Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel +852 3478 7017

Email pr@fshl.com
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